
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Legal and Civic Services Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
13th March, 2024 
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room, City Hall on Tuesday, 19th 

March, 2024 at 5.00 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below. 

 

You are requested to attend. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
John Walsh 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Apologies   

 
 (b) Minutes   

 
 (c) Declarations of Interest   

 
2. Committee Site Visits   
 
 (a) Note of Committee Site Visits   

 
 (b) Proposed pre-emptive Committee Site Visit for:LA04/2022/1046/F - Proposed 

demolition of existing building and construction of a residential development 
consisting of 14 No. units (9 No. apartments and 5 No. terraced dwellings) 
with associated landscaping and car parking (amended plans received). -18 
Annadale Avenue.   

 
 (c) Proposed pre-emptive Committee Site Visit for:LA04/2023/4366/F - Proposed 

14 storey (plus basement) purpose-Built Grade A Office premises with 
retail/restaurant unit at ground floor, including external landscaped terrace 
areas, public realm works, and all associated site works.- 14 Dublin Road   

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
- 2 - 

 (d) Proposed pre-emptive Committee Site Visit for:LA04/2023/4373/F - Erection 
of 17 storey Purpose Built Managed Student Accommodation (PBMSA) with 
additional use of accommodation outside term time comprising 459 no. units 
with communal facilities, internal and external communal amenity space and 
ancillary accommodation - 14 Dublin Road   

 
3. Notifications of Provision/Removal of Accessible Parking Bays   
 
 (a) Provision: 38 Geary Road  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 (b) Provision: 219 Cregagh Road  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
4. Planning Appeals Notified  (Pages 9 - 10) 
 
5. Planning Decisions Issued  (Pages 11 - 34) 
 
6. Miscellaneous Reports   
 
 (a) Delegation of Local Applications with NI Water Objections  (Pages 35 - 40) 

 
 (b) DFI Consultation Paper - Potential update to SPPS respect of Climate 

Change Policy  (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

 (c) Advanced Notice of Listed Buildings - Colenso Parade, Botanic Gardens and 
University Road/Stranmillis Road   

 
7. Planning Applications Previously Considered   
 
 (a) LA04/2017/1991/F - Construction of a new 5 storey office development for 

science and I.T. based business and associated car parking and public realm 
works. - Land adjacent to Concourse Buildings, Queens Road  (Pages 47 - 
72) 

 
 (b) LA04/2020/2105/F - Residential development comprising 55no. apartments 

comprising 12 no social, and 43 no private apartments and associated site 
works. - 1-5 Gaffikin Street   

 
 (c) LA04/2023/4021/F - Change of use from dwelling to 5 Bed House in Multiple 

Occupation (amended description). - 166 Upper Newtownards Road  (Pages 
73 - 84) 

 
 (d) LA04/2022/1384/F - Residential development of 10 no. apartments within a 

single building, including demolition of existing structures, car parking and 
relocation of existing access, and all other associated siteworks. - Lands at 
12 Inverary Avenue  (Pages 85 - 102) 

 
 (e) LA04/2023/3481/F - Change of use from dwelling to 6 bed HMO (sui generis) 

- 272 Limestone Road  (Pages 103 - 114) 
 

 (f) LA04/2023/3319/F - Change of use from dwelling to 6 Bed House in Multiple 
Occupation (amended description). - 27 Ponsonby Avenue  (Pages 115 - 
126) 

 
8. New Planning Applications   
 



 
- 3 - 

 (a) LA04/2020/2607/F - Residential development for the erection of 33 no 
dwellings (including 5 no affordable units) including public open space, 
equipped children's play area and associated development as enabling works 
to deliver the refurbishment of 3 no listed pavilions within the Belvoir Park 
Hospital complex (previously approved under Y/2014/0401/F and 
Y/2014/0390/LBC). [amended scheme] - Former Belvoir Park Hospital Site 
Hospital Road   

 
 (b) LA04/2023/3778/F - Demolition of existing Russell Court buildings and re 

development of existing surface car park to accommodate two new buildings 
(five storey and four storey) for the QUB Institute of Research Excellence for 
Advanced Clinical Healthcare (iREACH Health), including landscaping, 
parking, and servicing. - 38-52 Lisburn Road  (Pages 127 - 144) 

 
 (c) LA04/2023/2890/F - Proposed demolition of existing buildings and erection of 

a housing development comprising of 43No. social housing units including 
dwellings and apartments (Cat 1), car parking, landscaping including an 
equipped children's play area, and all associated site and access works - 
Christ the Redeemer Parish Hall and lands immediately north and west of 
Christ the Redeemer Church, Lagmore Drive   

 
 (d) LA04/2023/3856/F - Short duration Geothermal Ground Source Heating 

Demonstration Project comprising shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 
no. exploratory boreholes, associated temporary access, compound areas 
and mobile public information kiosk. - Lands at Stormont Estate Upper 
Newtownards Road  (Pages 145 - 158) 

 
 (e) LA04/2023/4208/F - Change of use from Dwelling to HMO - 24 Orient 

Gardens   
 

 (f) LA04/2023/3076/F - Single storey extension to the Gael-Ionad Mhic Goill 
building, to provide additional common room space and classroom facilities, 
reception area, a multi-purpose room and heritage cafe space, with 
associated toilets and ancillary spaces in addition. An external outdoor 
performance area and landscaped areas will be provided in addition to car 
parking areas and bin stores. - Glór na Móna, Gaelionad Mhic Goill 4 
Whiterock Close  (Pages 159 - 172) 

 
 (g) LA04/2024/0054/F - Change of use to conference centre facility with 

associated use as events/entertainment space - Former Print Hall,Ground 
Floor, 124-144 Royal Avenue  (Pages 173 - 184) 

 
 (h) LA04/2023/3758/F - New Pedestrian Footbridge and replacement steps to 

comply with DDA requirements. - Waterworks, 40m North of 260 Antrim Road  
(Pages 185 - 190) 

 
9. Restricted Items   
 
 (a) Financial Reporting - Qtr 3 2023/24   

 
 (b) Update on closure of Call for Sites Public Consultation   

 
 (c) Presentation: Living with Water   

 
 
 



 
- 4 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 
Dear Mr Walsh 
 
PROVISION OF AN ACCESSIBLE/DISABLED PARKING BAY AT OPPOSITE 38 
GEARY ROAD, BELFAST 
 
I am writing to advise you that we propose to provide an accessible/disabled parking 
bay at the above location. (see attached plan) 
 
We would welcome your comments on this proposal.  
  
Yours sincerely  
 
 

 

PP Alfie O'Hare 

Noel Grimes    
Traffic Management  
 
 
ENC 
 

Network Traffic, Street Lighting and 
Transportation 
 
Eastern Division 
 
 
Mr John Walsh 
Chief Executive  
Belfast City Council  
City Hall 
BELFAST 
BT1 5GS 
 
 
 
 
OfficeoftheChiefExecutive@BelfastCity.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                        Annexe 7 
                                              Castle Buildings 
                                                        Stormont Estate 
                                          Tel: 0300 200 7899 
        Email: traffic.eastern@infrastructure-ni.gov.uk 
 
                   Being Dealt With By: Mr Alfie O'Hare 
                                  Direct Line: 02890526241 
 
                                           Your reference: 
                                                 Our reference: TM 2 

 
                                 Date:     20 February 2024 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a

mailto:OfficeoftheChiefExecutive@BelfastCity.gov.uk
mailto:traffic.eastern@infrastructure-ni.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



N

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Network Traffic, Street Lighting and  
Transportation 
 
Eastern Division 
 

 

 

Mr John Walsh 
Chief Executive  
Belfast City Council  
City Hall 
BELFAST 
BT1 6RB 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Annexe 7 
 Castle Building  
Stormont Estate 

Upper Newtownards Road 
Belfast  

BT4 3SQ 
 

Telephone: 0300 200 7899 
Email: Traffic.Eastern@infrastructure-ni.gov.uk  

www.infrastructure-ni.gov.uk 
 

Being Dealt With By: Mr Alfie O’Hare  
Direct Line: 028 9052 6241 

 

Your Ref:          
Our Ref: TM 2  

 
Date:    27 February 2024 

  

Dear Mr Walsh  
 

219 CREGAGH STREET, BELFAST – REMOVAL OF AN ACCESSIBLE/BLUE BADGE 
PARKING BAY  

 
I am writing to advise you that we propose to remove an accessible/disabled parking bay at 
219 Cregagh Road, Belfast, as it is no longer required; I have attached a plan showing the 
location of the bay.  
 
We would welcome your comments on this proposal.  
  
Yours sincerely  
 
 
 

PP Alfie O'Hare 

Graeme Salmon  
Traffic Manager   
 
 
 
 
 ENC  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



Reformed

Presb Ch

T
IL

D
A

R
G

  S
T

R
E

E
T

 

C
R

E
G

A
G

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

R
A

V
E

N
H

ILL
 A

V
E

N
U

E

CREGAGH  ROAD 

2
1

3 

2
2

8 

2
2

8 

9
3

9
4

393 

1
0

9 

1
1

2 

2
3

7  1
0

1 

1
1

2a

2
4

8 

1
0

2 

2
2

9 

8
52
2

1 

5
7

7
8

8
8

6
2

8
6

7
0

5
4

5
1

6
1

6
9

7
7

2
0

5 

2
2

0  

2
1

8 

2
1

2  

1
9

7 

2
1

0 

1
0

9a

2 

438 

432 

430 

420 to 428

418 

417 

408 

409 407 

405 403 

2
4

9 

2
3

6 

1
8

9 2
0

2 

2
0

2 

440 

427 

2
4

4 
2

3
6 

2
3

8 
2

4
6 

2
5

6 
2

6
8 

429 N

8
8

.5
 m

e
tr es  

2
1

9  
2

2
3

2
1 3

 2
28

 

2
37

 

2
48

 

2
29

 
2

21
 

2
05

 

2
18

 
2

36
 

2
1 9

 
22

3

5
.3

 m

1
.8

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1. 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 19 MARCH 2024 
 

APPEALS NOTIFIED 
 

     COUNCIL:  BELFAST 
 
ITEM NO 1 PAC REF:   

 
2023/A0108 

    
PLANNING REF: LA04/2023/3063/A   
    
APPLICANT: J C Decaux  
    
LOCATION: 461 Donegall Road, Belfast, BT12 6FS   
    
PROPOSAL: Replacement of 3 No existing illuminated 48 sheet LED digital 

display 
 

   
PROCEDURE:   

 
 
 

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED 
 
 

 
ITEM NO 1 PAC REF: 2022/A0100 
  
PLANNING REF: LA04/2022/0375/F 
  
RESULT OF APPEAL: DISMISSED 
  
APPLICANT: Tullycar Ltd 
  
LOCATION: Site location 40 and 40A Donegall Pass, Belfast, BT7 1BS 
  
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing building and construction of ground floor retail unit with 

6 No accessible apartments above 

 

  
ITEM NO 2 PAC REF: 2021/A0176 
  
PLANNING REF: LA04/2021/0624/F 
  
RESULT OF APPEAL: WITHDRAWN 
  
APPLICANT: Hutchison 3G UK Ltd 
  
LOCATION: Public Footpath, Junction of Strathmore Park and Antrim Road - 18m South of 

554 Antrim Road, Belfast, BT15 5GJ 
  
PROPOSAL: Proposed installation of a 15m High Telecoms Streetpole with Integrated 

Antenna and 4 No Equipment Cabinets with Ancillary Equipment (Amended 
Description and Plans) 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2. 
 

 
 

APPEAL DECISIONS NOTIFIED (CONTINUED) 
 

 
 

ITEM NO 3 PAC REF: 2022/A0093 
  
PLANNING REF: LA04/2021/2320/F 
  
RESULT OF APPEAL: DISMISSED 
  
APPLICANT: Patrick McManus 
  
LOCATION: Lands between No 7 and 11 Manse Road, Castlereagh, Belfast, BT6 9SB 
  
PROPOSAL: Retention of existing hardstanding to facilitate agricultural activity 

 

Page 10



Application number Category Location Proposal Decision

LA04/2022/2162/DC LOC Lands approx. 40M South of No 77 

Edenderry Road

Edenderry Village

Belfast

Discharge of conditions 23-25 - 

LA04/2020/0995/F

Condition Discharged

LA04/2023/3189/DC LOC 236 Upper Newtownards Road,  

Belfast,  BT4 3EU

Discharge of Condition 9 

LA04/2021/0911/F 

Details of drainage works

Condition Discharged

LA04/2023/3654/DC LOC A Wing, Crumlin Road Gaol, 53-55 

Crumlin Road,  Belfast,  BT14 6ST

Discharge of condition no.21 - 

LA04/2019/2756/F

final noise impact assessment

Condition Discharged

LA04/2023/3708/CLEUD LOC Apartment 17, Block B, 110 

Cromwell Road,  Belfast,  BT7 1NE

Existing use: Application for a 

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing) for 

a change of use of existing residential 

apartment 

to short term holiday let accomodation

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4093/F LOC 5 Squires Hill Road,  Belfast,  BT14 

8FJ

Raise ridge to accommodate dormer to 

side elevation and fenestrational 

changes to front and rear elevation 

and 2x skylights 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4165/F MAJ Lands at "The Bullring" located 

parallel to the Westlink motorway 

and adjacent Denmark 

Street/California Close between 

Peters Hill and Regent Street

 Belfast.

Vary Conditions 15 and 16 of 

LA04/2020/0673/F, relating to trees 

and landscaping

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/2595/F LOC 19 PALESTINE STREET

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT7 1QJ

First Floor rear extension and new rear 

window to existing HMO.

Permission Granted

Decisions issued February 2024 - No. 161

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



LA04/2023/3285/F LOC 5A LENNOXVALE

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 5BY

Minor alterations to existing building 

and new vehicular access 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4039/F LOC 10 Greenwood House Assessment 

Centre,  Greenwood Avenue,  

Belfast,  BT4 3JJ

Proposed demolition of an existing 

single storey modular classroom unit 

and replacement with a new single 

storey modular classroom 

accommodation unit with associated 

ancillary support rooms, external south 

facing canopy, new access ramps, 

steps and new soft surface play area. 

External works in area around the 

existing modular buildings to include 

the replacement of perimeter security 

fencing, internal site fencing and 

associated hard surfacing paths.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4005/A LOC Glentoran Football Club Parkgate 

Drive, Dee Street,  Belfast,  BT4 

1EW

Replacement of existing static billboard 

signage with new digital billboard 

signage on north stand. 

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4256/F LOC 8 Barnetts Court Mews,  Belfast,  

BT5 7FJ

Single story side extension and 

alterations to front elevation. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4285/CLOPUD LOC 45   Belfast Harlequins Sports Club 

Deramore Park,  Belfast,  BT9 5JX

Replacing the existing metal halide 

light fittings with led light fittings, no 

works are proposed to the light 

columns. The proposed lux levels are 

the same as the existing.

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4349/DCA LOC 5A LENNOXVALE

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 5BY

Partial demolition of existing facade to 

enable new vehicular access and 

internal demolitions

Consent Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 12



LA04/2023/4431/A LOC NEXT, UNIT 12

BOUCHER CRESCENT

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT12 6HU

6x Shop Signs Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4426/F LOC 4 Blenheim Drive,  Belfast,  BT6 

9GB

Single storey side extension Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4512/F LOC 20 Spruce Hill,  Hannahstown,  

Belfast,  BT17 0HS

Proposed roof space conversion 

creating dormer to rear of dwelling.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4555/DC LOC 73 Kingsway Park,  

Belfast,  

BT5 7EX

Soft Landscape Scheme. Condition 2 - 

LA04/2023/3844/F

Condition Discharged

LA04/2024/0167/PRELIM LOC 236 Upper Newtownards Road

Ballyhackamore

Belfast

BT4 3EU

Proposed amendments to prev app 

LA04/2021/0911/F

PAD Concluded

LA04/2023/0169/PRELIM LOC FORMER PSNI STATION, 62 – 78 

YORK ROAD, BELFAST

Prelim Enquiry PAD Concluded

LA04/2023/4089/F LOC 32 Ravensdene Crescent,  Belfast,  

BT6 0DB

Single storey extension and paved 

path to rear of property.

Permission Granted

LA04/2024/0142/WPT LOC 7 Mount Pleasant, Stranmillis BT9 

5DS

Fell 1 x Tree Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2024/0176/WPT LOC 38 Sans Souci Park, Belfast, BT9 

5BZ

Remove one side of split tree trunk Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2023/4484/F LOC 36 Credenhill Park, Belfast, BT17 

0ES

Single Storey side extension Permission Granted

LA04/2024/0002/NMC LOC Lands to the north east of 3 

Westbank Road and immediately 

south west of the existing Stena 

Line terminal, Belfast Harbour 

Estate, Belfast, BT3 9LJ

Erection of a HV Switch Room, re-

configuration of cantilever canopies 

over delivery bays and reconfiguration 

of car parking layout. 

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2023/2647/CLOPUD LOC UNIT 2, 74a ANDERSONSTOWN 

ROAD

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT11 9AN

Change of use from a taxi depot to a 

convenience store 

Application Required

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 13



LA04/2023/2929/F LOC 170 Upper Malone Road 

Malone Upper 

Dunmurry

BT17 9JZ

Erection  of 1no. detached dwelling. Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3262/F LOC 3-9 Corn Market,  Belfast,  BT1 4DA Erection of acoustic barrier around 

rooftop plant and services area on 3-9 

Corn Market to include the erection of 

the plant and services to serve the 

building

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4406/NMC LOC 23a Andersonstown Road,  

Andersonstown,  Belfast,  BT11 9AF

Alterations to proposed dwelling No 2 

including addition of pitched roof to 

single storey elements of dwelling and 

alterations to windows. 

No changes to proposed dwelling No 

1. Proposed House 01 to remain as 

originally approved under the original 

application LA04/2021/0407/RM

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4519/F LOC 91-93 University Road,  Belfast,  

BT7 1NG

Remove existing ATM's and night 

safes and infill with stone to match the 

existing. Remove the existing fascia 

letters and existing projecting signs 

and make good wall.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4511/DCA LOC 91-93 University Road,  Belfast,  

BT7 1NG

Remove existing ATM's and night 

safes and infill with stone to match the 

existing. Remove the existing fascia 

letters and existing projecting signs 

and make good wall.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/2623/F LOC 186 ANDERSONSTOWN ROAD

BALLYMONEY

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT11 9BZ

change of use from retail to hot-food 

carryout

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 14



LA04/2023/3265/DCA LOC 3-9 Corn Market,  Belfast,  BT1 4DA Demolition of roof top plant room Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3685/CLOPUD LOC 113 Cromac Street,  Belfast,  BT2 

8JE

Use of one bedroom as a short term 

let.

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/3739/F LOC St. Gerard's Community Hall 722 

Antrim Road,  Newtownabbey,  

BT36 7PG

Proposed ground floor extension to the 

rear (west elevation) of the existing 

building and demolition of 2 ground 

floor returns (north elevation).

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3895/F LOC 265 Falls Road, Belfast, BT12 6FD Proposed first & second floor rear 

extension and two dormer windows to 

front elevation. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4131/F LOC 35 Cloverhill Park,  Belfast,  BT4 

2JW

Single storey rear extension and 

internal alterations.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4174/F LOC 44 MYRTLEFIELD PARK

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 6NF

Single storey rear extension to 

dwelling, external alterations and 

associated site works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4170/F LOC 4 WILLOWVALE GARDENS

BALLYMONEY

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT11 9JW

Single storey rear extension and first 

floor side and rear extension

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4268/DCA LOC 44 MYRTLEFIELD PARK

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 6NF

Proposed partial demolition of single 

storey rear return and new openings to 

be formed in existing house for new 

windows & doors

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4429/F LOC 32 LINENHALL STREET

TOWN PARKS

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT2 8BG

Installation of a serviced living wall 

utilising a sustainable water source

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 15



LA04/2024/0040/DC LOC Former NI Water Ltd Sewage 

Treatment Works Blackstaff Road,  

Belfast,  Belfast,  BT11 9DT

Discharge of condition 20,

LA04/2022/1479/F

Piling Risk Assessment and Method 

Statment

Condition Discharged

LA04/2024/0199/WPT LOC St. Brigids Parish,42 Derryvolgie 

Avenue, Belfast, BT9 6FP

Works to trees in CA Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2023/3060/F LOC 16B Forest Park,  Dunmurry,  

Belfast,  BT17 0ET

Proposed two storey extension to side. 

Single Storey extension to rear. 

Landscaping works and a pergola to 

the rear and rear garden level raised 

(Amended Description). 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3179/F LOC 236 Stockmans Lane,  Belfast,  

BT11 9AR

Proposed  two storey side and rear 

extension to provide kitchen, living 

room and bedrom. Including 

fenestration changes to side elevation

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 16



LA04/2023/3410/PAD MAJ Plots 3 and 4 City Link Business 

Park,  Albert Street,  Belfast

It is proposed to make an application 

for a certificate of lawfulness to confirm 

that the development approved under 

Ref: Z/2007/2999/F was commenced 

and can be completed.  

The approved development was 

described as: 

"Residential development comprising a 

total of 133 no. units within 2 

apartment blocks; Stanley Block and 

Albert Block both housing 11 storeys of 

accommodation including 2 no. levels 

of parking at ground and lower ground 

level, and 9 no. levels of apartment 

units.  Re-location of office business 

park boundary wall and railings along 

Albert Street to behind the proposed 

residential buildings.  Extensive 

landscaping to open areas around 

proposed buildings."

PAD Concluded

LA04/2023/3729/F LOC 133 The Mount,  Belfast,  BT5 4ND Change of use to 5-bedroom House in 

Multiple Occupation.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3888/F LOC Cathedral Gardens

Belfast

BT1 2GT

Proposed two year extension to 

planning approval LA04/2021/1707/F 

for an Active Travel Hub Comprising 

2no. Shipping Containers. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4151/F LOC 289-291 Castlereagh Road,  Belfast,  

BT5 6AA

Single storey extension to side of 

building and roof solar panels.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4186/F LOC 1 Kinedar Crescent,  Belfast,  BT4 

3LY

Two storey rear extension and single 

storey rear extension 

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 17



LA04/2023/4211/F LOC 8 Bristow Drive,  Belfast,  BT5 7QU Single-storey rear extension Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4384/F LOC 2 Shaneen Park,  Belfast,  BT14 

8JP

Proposed rear dormer to faciltate loft 

conversion including hip to gable roof, 

revised ridge height and chimney 

extension.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4469/F LOC 2a Ventry Street,  Belfast,  BT2 7JP Change of use from commercial 

vehicle repair garage to public house 

with associated internal and external 

alterations.

Permission Granted

LA04/2024/0006/DC LOC Lands to the north east of 3 

Westbank Road,  Immediately 

South West of the existing Stena 

Line Terminal, Belfast Harbour 

Estate,  Belfast,  BT3 9JL

Discharge of condition 5 of planning 

approval LA04/2022/0063/F (method 

of sewage disposal)

Condition Discharged

LA04/2021/0917/DC LOC 30-44 Bradbury Place

Belfast

BT7 1RS

Discharge of condition 02 

LA04/2017/2753/F.

Condition Discharged

LA04/2022/1846/DC LOC Lands directly south of Titanic 

Belfast and north-west of Hamilton 

Dock located off Queens Road

 Belfast.

Discharge of condition 4 

LA04/2022/0293/F (vibration 

monitoring)

Condition Discharged

LA04/2022/1812/LDE LOC 183 Falls Road

 Belfast

 BT12 6AF

Retention of House in Multiple 

Occupancy (HMO)

Permitted Development

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 18



LA04/2022/2045/F LOC 741 Lisburn Road, Belfast, BT9 

7GW and rear of existing building at 

No. 743-745 Lisburn Road

Demolition of rear out buildings to 

allow erection of 2 storey rear 

extension to existing building and for a 

change of use from Guest house to 

dental practice. Reconfiguration of 

existing carparking to provide 

additional spaces.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3247/F LOC 37 Osborne Park,  Belfast,  BT9 6JP PROPOSED TWO-STOREY 

EXTENSION TO REAR OF EXISTING 

THREE-STOREY PROPERTY TO 

INCLUDE TWO-STOREY CARRIAGE 

HOUSE IN REAR GARDEN. 

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING YARD 

WALL & MONO PITCHED ROOF

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3248/DCA LOC 37 Osborne Park,  Belfast,  BT9 6JP DEMOLITION OF EXISTING YARD 

WALL & MONO PITCHED ROOF 

(Amended Description)

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3608/F LOC 59 MYRTLEFIELD PARK

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 6NG

Single storey rear/ side extension 

including new garage. (Amendments to 

LA04/2020/1807/F)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4060/A LOC Revolución de Cuba Belfast 25-39 

Arthur Street,  Belfast,  BT1 4QG

Signage boards at street level and 

images printed on scaffolding wrap for 

the duration of repair works to the 

building.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4195/F LOC 24 MEADOWHILL

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT11 8QR

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

SIDE OF DWELLING

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 19



LA04/2023/4455/A LOC 57-63 DONEGALL PLACE

TOWN PARKS

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT1 5AG

Replacement of existing fascia signs, 

projecting signs and ATM surrounds 

with illuminated new logo signage and 

window vinyls.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3439/F LOC 107 Donegall Avenue,  Belfast,  

BT12 6LT

Change of use from Dwelling to HMO, 

and proposed rear dormer 

(retrospective).

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3713/F LOC 5 WINDSOR PARK

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 6FQ

Single storey rear extension. 

Demolition and replacement of garage. 

(Amended description)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3831/F LOC 5 Riverview Meadows, Belfast, 

BT11 9RA

Conversion of existing ground floor 

garage into bedroom and existing utility 

room into shower room.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4139/DCA LOC 5 Windsor Park,  Belfast,  BT9 6FQ

DEMOLITION OF GARGAE AND 

PARTIAL DEMOLITION OF 

INTERNAL & EXTERNAL WALL TO 

REAR EXTENSION. REPLACEMENT 

GARAGE TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON 

THE SAME FOOTPRINT, FINISHED 

IN SIMILAR BRICK TONES IN 

KEEPING WITH THE AREA AND 

EXISTING GARAGE. (AMENDED 

DESCRIPTION)

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4180/CLOPUD LOC 35 Dunmurry Lodge,  Belfast,  BT10 

0GR

The erection of a single storey rear 

and side extension.

Permitted Development

LA04/2021/2774/NMC LOC 25 Kingsdale Park

 Belfast

 BT5 7BZ.

Non material change to 

LA04/2021/0367/F by omitting the 

approved side extension.

Non Material Change Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 20



LA04/2022/0874/F LOC 69 University Road

Belfast

BT7 1NF

Change of use from cafe to office to 

include internal alterations. (Amended 

Description)

Permission Granted

LA04/2022/1038/DCA LOC 7 Marlborough Park Cross Avenue 

Belfast BT9 6HQ

Part demolition of side and rear walls 

to facilitate enlarged / new openings.

Consent Granted

LA04/2021/1404/F LOC Footpath on Island Street at 

entrance to "Morgan" Factory

 opposite No1 McArthur Court

 Belfast

 Antrim

 BT4 1EQ

Proposed Installation of an 15m High 

Telecoms Streetpole c/w wraparound 

cabinet, with Integrated Antenna, and 

3no. additional equipment cabinets 

and ancillary equipment.

Permission Granted

LA04/2022/0880/LBC LOC 69 University Road

Belfast

BT7 1NF

Change of use from cafe to office to 

include internal alterations. (Amended 

Description)

Consent Granted

LA04/2022/1203/F LOC Glenriver Lands adjacent to

78 Cloona Park

Belfast.

Relocation of 5 No. allotments 

approved under LA04/2020/0042/F. 

Introduction of an additional No. 8 

allotments, a sensory garden and 

support hub building for day care of 

young adults (Amended application 

site boundary, proposal description 

and drawings)

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 21



LA04/2022/2207/LBC LOC Merok Burn 1 Upper Knockbreda 

Road,  Belfast,  BT6 9LL

Alterations and extension to include 

single storey side extension and 4 no. 

rooflights, demolition of existing 

decayed timber garage & concrete 

structure adjacent to garden house, 

erect new timber post & beam carriage 

house in place of old timber garage. 

Internal works i.e. remodelling, new 

openings, double glaze windows, 

insultation and replacement fireplace. 

General like for like repairs to roof, 

timberwork, plasterwork, using similar 

materials. New fence & gates

Consent Granted

LA04/2022/2182/WPT LOC 17 Harberton Avenue

Belfast

BT9 6PH

Works to trees in a Conservation Area Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2022/2208/NMC LOC Lands at Riddel Hall

185 Stranmillis Road

Belfast

BT9 5EE

Non material change 

LA04/2019/2442/F.

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2023/2574/F LOC 155 LISBURN ROAD

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 7AJ

Change of use rom derelict property to 

Pizza and Kebab Takeaway with 

change of shopfront

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/2769/F LOC Royal Victoria Hospital Grosvenor 

Road,  The Royal Hospitals,  

Belfast, BT12 6BA.

Temporary planning permission for 

proposed Radiopharmacy cleanroom 

extension

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/2900/WPT LOC 420 Ravenhill Road,  Belfast,  BT6 

0BU

Tulip tree overhanging boundary line. 

Arborist to remove 2-3 feet on 2 

branches only. Minor trim.

Works to TPO Granted

LA04/2023/2952/PAD LOC 8 A Old Pump House Balmoral 

Park,  Upper Lisburn Road,  Belfast,  

BT10 0JP

Skylight Podcast Belfast - Fully setup 

podcast studio available to hire

PAD Concluded

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 22



LA04/2023/3198/F LOC 20m North of 90 Shaws Road,  

Shaws Road,  Belfast,  BT11 8NP

Installation of a 17m high slim-line 

monopole, supporting 6 no. antennas, 

2 no. equipment cabinets, 1 no. 

electric meter cabinet, and ancillary 

development thereto.  

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3138/F LOC 1 Cairo Street,  Belfast,  BT7 1QS Demolition with retention of front 

facade and erection of 2no. 1 bedroom 

apartments

Permission Refused

LA04/2023/3139/F LOC 42-48 Howard Street,  Belfast,  BT1 

6PG

Partial demolition of the ground floor 

and first floor. Proposed extension at 

ground floor to create a new hotel 

reception, bar/restaurant area and bin 

store, including change of use from 

pharmacy and optician to form part of 

proposed bar/restaurant. Change of 

use of retained rooms at first and 

second floor from 18No. short 

stay/visitor suites to 17No. hotel suites 

and staff room. Proposed external 

flues on the rear elevation.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3142/DCA LOC 42-48 Howard Street,  Belfast,  BT1 

6PG

Partial demolition of the existing 

reception area, retail units and 

restaurant unit at ground floor and 

partial demolition at first floor 

comprising a storage area, 2No. short 

stay/visitor suites and part of a third 

short stay/visitor suite. 

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3180/F LOC 79 Tates Avenue,  Belfast,  BT9 

7BZ

Extension to HMO to provide additional 

bedrooms and kitchen space

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 23



LA04/2023/3290/F LOC 12 Cleaver Gardens,  Belfast,  BT9 

5HZ

Alterations to access with new gate, 

boundary wall, fence and alterations to 

existing boundary wall.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3323/F LOC 17 Cooke Street,  Belfast,  BT7 2EP Single storey rear extension. Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3299/DCA LOC 7 Kings Road,

Belfast,

BT5 6JF

Demolition of existing single storey 

garage, external utility room, 2no 

external stores, external WC and 

pantry. Construction of new single 

storey rear extension. New gates to 

front + additional site works.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3438/F LOC 17a Donegall Park Avenue, Belfast, 

BT15 4ET

Detached garage / store to rear 

(retrospective)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3475/F LOC 9 Cadogan Park,  Belfast,  BT9 6HG Partial demolition of existing entrance 

splay walls, removal of existing timber 

post and rail front boundary fence and 

construction of a single detached 

dwelling with parking and associated 

site, access and landscaping works.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3592/PAD MAJ 451-455 Donegall Road,  Belfast Proposed specialist nursing and 

residential care facility comprising 158 

beds, including car parking provision, 

cycle parking, refuse storage, 

landscaping and associated site works.

PAD Concluded

LA04/2023/3553/F LOC THE MISSION TO SEAFARERS 

1 PRINCES DOCK STREET

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT1 3AA

Extension to existing building with 

external alterations including lantern.

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 24



LA04/2023/3554/DCA LOC 59 Myrtlefield Park,  Belfast,  BT9 

6NG

Demoltion of existing single storey 

garage and rear/side return to existing 

dwelling.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3536/CLEUD LOC 28 Wellesley Avenue,  Belfast,  BT9 

6DG

Existing use: 2no. short term let 

apartments (1no. 2 bed and 1 no. 3 

bed)

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/3582/F LOC 5 Cleaver Park,  Belfast,  BT9 5HX Single storey extension to rear and left 

side of property  proposed single 

storey garden store in rear garden.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3583/DCA LOC 5 Cleaver Park,  Belfast,  BT9 5HX Partial demolition to front, rear and 

side elevations and existing roof to 

facilitate single storey extension to rear 

and left side of property proposed 

single storey garden store in rear 

garden.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3638/F LOC 47 Richhill Park,  Belfast,  BT5 6HG Proposed single storey extension and 

first floor bedroom extension 

(Amended Proposal Description) 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3653/F LOC 72 Thornhill Crescent

Dunmurry

Belfast

BT17 0RJ

Single storey extension to the rear and 

level access.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3689/F LOC Kiloran House 

62 North Road

Belfast

BT5 5NJ

Installation of PV solar panels to front 

and rear of roof.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3709/F LOC 3-5 Commercial Court

Belfast 

BT1 2NB

Upgrade of existing roof to include; 

removal of existing roof finish and 

replacement with 'lead effect' single ply 

membrane, increasing the parapet 

height, new roof access 

walkway/steps, installation of rooflights 

and photovoltaic panels.

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 25



LA04/2023/3725/WPT LOC 73-75 Somerton Road, Belfast, 

BT15 4DE

Works to 1 tree. Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2023/3746/F LOC 62 Omeath Street,

Belfast,

BT6 8ND.

Alterations to rear single storey 

extension (Amended Proposal 

description)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3765/A LOC Lidl,  61 High Street,  Belfast,  BT1 

2AB

3 Shop signs Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3830/F LOC 62 Onslow Gardens,  Belfast,  BT6 

0AQ

2 storey rear / side extension, new 

front porch and widening of access.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3851/F LOC 185 Riddel Hall Stranmillis Road,  

Belfast,  BT9 5EE

Installation of a closed loop geothermal 

system (Retrospective). 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3847/LBC LOC 185 Riddel Hall Stranmillis Road,  

Belfast,  BT9 5EE

Installation of a closed loop geothermal 

system (Retrospective). 

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3883/F LOC 64 Fruithill Park,  Belfast,  BT11 

8GF

Proposed single storey extension to 

rear of dwelling replacing existing 

single storey extension and roof space 

conversion creating dormer to rear with 

the existing hip roof to the main 

dwelling being replaced with a gable 

wall.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3864/DC LOC 722 St Clement's Retreat Antrim 

Road,  Belfast,  BT36 7PH

Discharge condition 19 

LA04/2017/0882/F attached to 

Z/2010/0523/F - Archaeological 

Programme of Works

Condition Partially Discharged

LA04/2023/3886/DCA LOC 3-5 Commercial Court,  Belfast,  

BT1 2NB

Demolition of existing defective roof 

finish and replacement and demolition 

and reinstatement of existing coping 

and ornamentation.

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3876/DCA LOC 15 DERAMORE DRIVE

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 5JQ

Demolition of rear garden room and a 

number of internal walls

Consent Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 26



LA04/2023/3905/A LOC 20 CASTLE LANE

TOWN PARKS

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT1 5DB

1 Other - High level internal signage, 2 

Shop sign, 2 Projecting sign, 1 Other - 

High Level internal signage

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3908/DC LOC 1-5 Graham House Albert Square,  

Belfast,  BT1 3EQ

Discharge Condition 2 of 

LA04/2017/1707/F.

External material specification 

Condition Discharged

LA04/2023/3931/PAD MAJ Lands north west of PRONI, east of 

Queens Road and south of Belfast 

Metropolitan College, Titanic 

Quarter, Belfast

Erection of Purpose Built Managed 

Student Accommodation (PBMSA) 

development, comprising circa 1172 

no. units, entrance plaza, courtyards, 

landscaping, ancillary accommodation 

and facilities, cycle and car parking 

and other associated site and access 

works.

PAD Concluded

LA04/2023/3918/F LOC Royal Victoria Hospital Grosvenor 

Road,  The Royal Hospitals,  

Belfast,  BT12 6BA

Proposed brick built substation to 

house HV switchgear, two 

transformers and various control 

panels. Alterations to adjacent carpark 

to allow access to substation - involves 

the removal of 7 parking bays. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3927/F LOC Church of Ireland Office 61-67 

Donegall Street,  Belfast,  BT1 2QH

Proposed alterations to building façade 

including increased window openings 

at third floor level and rendering of 

existing brickwork and entrance 

pillars’Office use to be retained 

(Amended Proposal Description)

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 27



LA04/2023/3928/DCA LOC Church of Ireland Office 61-67 

Donegall Street,  Belfast,  BT1 2QH

Associated demolition for alterations to 

building façade including increased 

window openings at third floor level 

and rendering of existing brickwork 

and entrance pillars’ Existing Office 

use class to be retained’ (Amended 

Proposal description) 

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/3966/F LOC 215 Ravenhill Road,  Belfast,  BT6 

0BS

Single storey rear extension with 

external raised patio and privacy 

screen.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/3972/F LOC 6a Prince Regent Road,  Belfast,  

BT5 6QR

Overclad of existing building and 

repairing wall cladding. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4009/F LOC 7 Norwood Gardens,  Belfast,  BT4 

2DX

Single storey rear extension and 

fenestration changes to side elevation

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4026/F LOC Unit 2B, Boucher Retail Park, 

Boucher Crescent, Belfast, BT12 

6HU

Application under Section 54 of the 

planning (NI) Act 2011 for variation of 

condition 5 of planning approval 

Z/86/1385 regarding restrictions on 

goods to be sold, to allow the retail 

area floorspace within unit 2B to be 

used for the sale of convenience 

goods with an ancillary range of 

durable goods along with ancillary cafe 

with seating area.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4061/F LOC Mount Vernon Court, 1 Mount 

Vernon Grove,  Belfast,  BT15 4BG

Extension of exisitng parking facilities, 

creation of 7 new spaces to the front of 

the property. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4076/F LOC 15 DERAMORE DRIVE

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 5JQ

Single storey rear extension and 

dormer window

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 28



LA04/2023/4140/CLEUD LOC 22 Penrose Street,

Belfast,

BT7 1QX

Change of use to HMO. Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4144/CLEUD LOC Apartment 7f, 13, Kent Street,  

Belfast,  BT1 2JJ

Existing use: Short term rental 

accommodation

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4158/CLEUD LOC Flat 5 82 Rugby Avenue,  Malone 

Lower,  Belfast,  BT7 1RG

Existing use: A house in multiple 

occupation. In use for more than 5 

years. 

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4257/NMC LOC 6 Houston Gardens,  Belfast,  BT5 

6AU

Proposed Changes:

1. Changes to first floor Bedroom 2 

and Shower room configuration.

2. Changes to windows in bedroom 2 

and shower room. Now a singular 

window into Bedroom 2 (North-West 

elevation) of equal size to the existing 

window in Bedroom 1 (South-East 

elevation). 

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2023/4295/F LOC Site at No. 10 Lorne Street,  Belfast,  

BT9 7DU

Modification of Condition 13 previous 

approval LA04/2017/1153/F 

(Landscaping)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4309/F LOC 3 Forest Lane,  Belfast,  BT17 0YT Proposed Single storey extension to 

side and rear. Attic conversion with 

dormer to rear.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4346/F LOC 81 Holland Drive,  Belfast,  BT5 6EJ Single Storey Extension to side/rear. Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4361/CLEUD LOC Apt 1,2 and 3 , 66 Lisburn Road,  

Malone Lower,  Belfast,  BT9 6AF

Change of use to short term lets. Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4357/A LOC 287 Shore Road, Belfast, BT15 

3PW

Proposed replacement of existing 96 

sheet hoarding to a 48 sheet digital 

screen.

Consent Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 29



LA04/2023/4399/F LOC 100 Trench Park,  Belfast,  BT11 

9FG

Proposed single storey extension to 

rear of dwelling and alterations to 

existing attached garage to provide 

living space with external changes to 

dwelling. 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4383/CLEUD LOC 18 Malone Avenue, Belfast, BT9 

6ER

Existing Use - House of Multiple 

Occupancy 

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4401/F LOC 27 Trench Park,  Belfast,  BT11 9FF Proposed single storey extension to 

side/ rear of dwelling, internal 

alterations and level access/ raised 

platform to side/rear of dwelling.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4403/F LOC 64 Severn Street,  Belfast,  BT4 1FB Two-storey extension to gable of 

existing house and 2x parking spaces 

to side 

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4445/A LOC Unit 03 - The Keep, Castle Lane,  

Belfast,  BT1 5DY

Shop sign Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4443/F LOC 6 Glencregagh Drive, Belfast BT6 

0NL

Demolition of single storey garage. 

Erection of single storey rear/side 

extension, with first floor dormer 

extension

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4448/DC LOC Lands adjacent to and south east of 

the river Lagan

west of Olympic Way of Queen's 

road,

Queen's Island,

Belfast,

BT2 9EQ

Discharge of condition 38 

LA04/2021/2280/F.  Archaeological 

Evaluation Report 

Condition Discharged

LA04/2023/4452/F LOC 49 Knockvale Park,  Belfast,  BT5 

6HJ

Alterations & extension to dwelling 

comprising single storey extension to 

rear, extension of existing first floor 

bathroom return and addition of 2No 

new window openings to ground floor 

side elevation

Permission Granted

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 30



LA04/2023/4507/A LOC Unit L2 The Odyssey Pavilion 

Queens Quay,  

Belfast,  

BT3 9QQ

2 Mixed internal illuminated and non 

luminated signage

Consent Granted

LA04/2023/4516/F LOC 243 Finaghy Road North,  Belfast,  

BT11 9EG

Proposed porch to front of dwelling 

and alterations to rear.

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4553/CLEUD LOC 9 College Place North,  Belfast,  

BT1 6BE

Existing use: House of Multiple 

Occupancy 

Permitted Development

LA04/2023/4586/F LOC 422 FALLS ROAD

BALLYMURPHY

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT12 6EN

Change of use from a domestic 

dwelling to 5 bed House in multiple 

occupation (HMO)

Permission Granted

LA04/2023/4599/F LOC 18 Olde Forge Manor,  Belfast,  

BT10 0HY

Internal alterations to convert a garage 

into a home office with alterations to 

the front elevation only.

Permission Granted

LA04/2024/0005/LBC LOC ULSTER MUSEUM BOTANIC 

GARDENS

MALONE LOWER

BELFAST

ANTRIM

BT9 5AB

Temporary contra vision panels Consent Granted

LA04/2024/0039/CLEUD LOC Apartment 42 St Georges Harbour,

51 East Bridge Street, 

Belfast,

BT1 3SG

Apartment to be used as HMO Permitted Development

LA04/2024/0067/F LOC 5 Kings Crescent, Belfast BT5 6PR Proposed erection of single storey rear 

extension and erection of single storey 

side/rear lockup/bin store

Permission Granted

LA04/2024/0119/DC LOC The Arc Apartments,  Queens Road,  

Belfast,  BT39DE

Discharge of condition 2 

LA04/2023/3960/F Cover Letter 

Written Specification of Materials

Condition Discharged

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 31



LA04/2024/0117/PAD LOC 21 Windsor Park,  Belfast,  BT9 6FR Amendment to existing permission 

LA04_2022_0404_F. 

The current planning permission is for 

a 2 storey extension extending the full 

width of the property. The revised 

permission reduces this significantly to 

a single storey extension, which does 

not extend to the full width of the 

property. 

This proposal retains all of the original 

building, and removed only the 

elements which were added as an 

extension which appears to have been 

built within permitted development 

prior to the applicants ownership. 

PAD Concluded

LA04/2024/0157/WPT LOC 2 Mount Carmel, Belfast, BT15 4DQ Works to tree in CA Works to TPO Granted

LA04/2024/0166/NMC LOC 24 Glasvey Court,  Belfast,  BT17 

0DY

Non Material Change to 

LA04/2023/4359/F - Alteration of door 

and window location.

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2024/0174/CLEUD LOC Flat B, 25 Rugby Avenue,  Malone 

Lower,  Belfast,  BT7 1RD

House Multiple Occupancy Permitted Development

LA04/2024/0188/NMC LOC Lands north of 14 Mill Race and 15 

Belfield Heights and south of 2-15 St 

Gerards Manor, Ballymurphy, 

Belfast, Co. Antrim

Non material change to 

LA04/2022/0129/F - proposed 

boundary changes, fencing changes 

and repositioning of access gates

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2024/0189/NMC LOC Lands north of 14 Mill Race and 15 

Belfield Heights and south of 2-15 St 

Gerards Manor, Ballymurphy, 

Belfast, Co. Antrim

Non material change to 

LA04/2022/0129/F - minor 

amendments to house type G

Non Material Change Granted

LA04/2024/0198/WPT LOC 39A Malone Park, Belfast, BT9 6NL Felling 1 Tree Works to Trees in CA Agreed

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 32



LA04/2024/0215/WPT LOC 12 Lady Ishbel Avenue, Belfast, BT8 

8FS

Works to tree TPO Works to TPO Granted

LA04/2024/0239/WPT LOC 5A Deramore Park South, Belfast, 

BT9 5JY

Works to TPO protected trees in CA Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2024/0304/WPT LOC 11 Osborne Park, Belfast, BT9 6JN Proposed works to tree in CA Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2024/0308/WPT LOC 2 Knockdene Park, Belfast, BT5 

7AD

Works to TPO  Tree Works to Trees in CA Agreed

LA04/2024/0318/WPT LOC Stormont Castle, Upper 

Newtownards Road, Belfast, BT4 

3ST

Works to TPO protected trees Works to TPO Granted

Total Decsions

 12/03/2024 11:08:30

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 

Subject: 
Delegation of Local applications with NI Water objections 

 
Date: 19 March 2024 

 
Reporting Officer(s): Kate Bentley, Director of Planning and Building Control  

Contact Officer(s): 
Ed Baker, Planning Manager (Development Management)   
Ciara Reville, Principal Planning Officer  

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes 
 

No 
 

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision  
 

  

After Council Decision  
 

  

Some time in the future  
 

  

Never  
 

  

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 

The Planning Committee will recall that at its meetings on 27 June 2022, 15 November 2022 
14 February 2023, 14 March 2023 18 April 2023, 15 August 2023 17 October 2023, 12 
December 2023 and 12 February 2024, it agreed to delegate authority to the Director of 
Planning and Building Control the determination of a number of Local applications to which 
NI Water had objected.  
 
The Council continues to receive objections from NIW to some Local applications. The 
purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s agreement to delegate to officers those 
Local planning applications to which NI Water has objected as set out at Appendix 1. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, it is only those applications which would have been delegated to 
officers under the Scheme of Delegation were it not for the objection from NI Water which 
are proposed to be delegated. Therefore, any of the Local applications listed at Appendix 1 
which it may later transpire require to be referred to the Committee for other reason/s (other 
than the NI Water objection) will be reported to the Committee to determine. Individual 

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 35

Agenda Item 6a



Members can also still request that the applications at Appendix 1 are referred to the 
Committee under paragraph 3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 
 
 

That the Committee agrees to delegate to the Director of Planning and Building Control 
those Local planning applications to which NI Water has objected set out at Appendix 1.  
 

3.0 Main Report 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background 
 
The Committee will be aware from the Committee Workshop on 18 November 2021 that NI 
Water has objected to a significant number of Local applications on grounds of insufficient 
waste-water infrastructure capacity.  
 
As advised at the Committee Workshop, officers have been engaging with NI Water to try to 
resolve those objections. Whilst progress is being made, and NI Water is actively considering 
a threshold for the scale and nature of development above which they would like to be 
consulted on future planning application, the objections to these Local applications remain. 
 
Scheme of Delegation  
 
Members will be aware that the Council operates a Scheme of Delegation for Planning which 
identifies which matters are to be determined by the Committee and which are delegated to 
officers.  
 
Paragraph 3.8.5 (f) of the Scheme of Delegation (January 2020) states that planning 
applications are not delegated where ‘There is an objection from a statutory consultee and 
the recommendation of the Planning Officer is to approve.’ This means that those 
applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.  
 
The Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (Northern Ireland) 2016 identifies NI 
Water as a statutory consultee ‘…where a development proposal is likely to significantly 
impact upon the availability of suitable water and sewerage infrastructure to service 
development proposals.’ 
 
This means that where NI Water has lodged an objection to a Local application and the officer 
recommendation is to approve, the application cannot be delegated and must be determined 
by the Committee.  
 
Therefore, at its meeting on 27 June 2022, 14 November 2022, 14 February 2023, 16 March 
2023, 18 April 2023 15 August 2023 17 October 2023 and 12 December 2023, the 
Committee agreed to delegate Local applications, as appended to the respective reports, 
with NI Water objections to the Director of Planning and Building Control. This has avoided 
the potential need to report to date 198 applications individually to the Committee. To have 
reported all those applications to the Committee would have been logistically extremely 
difficult, costly and would have resulted in further delays for applicants.   
 
Nature of NI Water objections 
 
NI Water has lodged objections to Local applications for one or both of the following reasons. 
 

a) There is insufficient capacity at the local Waste Water Treatment Plant to support 
the proposed development, and/or  

b) There is insufficient network capacity within existing Combined Storm Overflows 
to support the development, and/ or 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
 
 
3.10 
 
 
 
3.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.12 
 
 
 
3.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.16 
 

 
c) There is insufficient network capacity within the foul sewerage system and a 

Wastewater Impact Assessment is required.  
 
In broad terms, NI Water is concerned that a lack of infrastructure capacity would give rise 
to risk of environmental harm including pollution, flooding and adverse impact on existing 
property. In some cases, NI Water is concerned that the application site may be 
hydrologically linked to Belfast Lough and may harm its water quality. 
 
However, despite requests, NI Water has to date not provided robust evidence to support 
individual objections including demonstration of actual specific impacts resulting from 
individual proposals that stems from their broad concerns outlined above.  
 
Importantly, allowance must be made for existing significant committed development across 
the city including extant planning permissions. It is highly unlikely that all such development, 
which includes unimplemented permissions for over 20,000 houses and significant levels of 
commercial floor space across the city, will come forward at once, if at all. In practical terms 
it would be unreasonable for the Council to withhold planning permission given the fall-back 
of the need to connect those developments to existing waste water infrastructure.  
 
In the case of Waste Water Treatment capacity, NI Water advises that there will be increased 
capacity from July 2023, albeit this will not be sufficient to address long term waste water 
treatment plant infrastructure requirements. 
 
The Council must be mindful that were it to refuse planning permission based on NI Water’s 
concerns, it would need to provide robust evidence to the Planning Appeals Commission in 
the event that the applicant appeals the decision. In the absence of robust evidence, it would 
be unreasonable to refuse planning permission. NIW have in recent months added further 
detail to their responses but sufficient robust evidence has not been provided..  
 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 
 
Officers have met with Shared Environmental Services (SES). Belfast City Council is the 
Competent Authority under the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations (Northern 
Ireland) 1995 (as amended) for undertaking an Appropriate Assessment where a proposal 
is likely to have a significant environmental effect on Belfast Lough, an environmentally 
protected Special Protection Area (SPA), RAMSAR and Special Area of Conservation (SAC). 
Water quality of the lough is a key consideration. The Habitats Regulations are framed in 
such a way that it is not only the impacts of individual development proposals that need to 
be considered, but also “in combination” impacts with other development. 
 
Whilst a precautionary approach applies to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), SES 
confirms that the onus is on NIW to provide evidence of likely actual impacts, rather than 
hypothetic impacts. As Competent Authority, the Council may take its own objective view on 
whether a proposal is likely to have a “significant effect” on water quality of the Lough. 
However, having regard to the precautionary approach, where there is clear intensification 
the Council will consult SES and ask them to undertake a HRA Appropriate Assessment 
Screening to ascertain whether there would be a likely significant impact. This would also 
trigger statutory consultation with DAERA NI Environment Agency. The Planning Service will 
consult SES and DAERA on a case by case basis as required. 
 
Local applications for which delegated authority is sought to determine 
 
The further Local applications to which NI Water has objected and which delegated authority 
is sought to determine are listed at Appendix 1. 

Page 37



 
3.17 
 
 
 
 
 

 
It should be noted that only those applications which would have been delegated to officers 
under the Scheme of Delegation were it not for the objection from NI Water are proposed to 
be delegated. Therefore, any of the Local applications listed at Appendix 1 which it 
transpires need to be referred to the Committee for other reason/s under the Scheme of 
Delegation will be reported to the Committee to determine. Individual Members can also still 
request that the applications at Appendix 1 are referred to the Committee under paragraph 
3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation. 

 

4.0 Financial & Resource Implications 

4.1 
 
 
 
 

The cost, time and resources involved in individually reporting all Local applications to which 
NI Water has objected to the Planning Committee would be considerable. It would also 
require several additional sittings of the Committee. The recommended approach set out in 
this report is considered to be a much more efficient use of resources. 

5.0 Equality or Good Relations Implications / Rural Needs Assessment 

5.1 No adverse impacts identified. 
 

6.0 Appendices – Documents Attached  

 Appendix 1 – List of Local applications which are proposed to be delegated to officers to 
determine. 

 
 

 

Page 38



1 
 

Appendix 1 – Local applications with NIW objections  

(March 2024) 

 DEA 
 

REFERENCE 
 

DATE 
RECEIVED 

 

PROPOSED 
 

ADDRESS 
 

1 Botanic LA04/2023/3906/F 31/08/2023 Conversion of vacant office 
space into 8 No. short term 
let bedrooms of 1st & 2nd 
floor of building. 

1-9 Winecellar Entry,  Belfast 

2 Botanic LA04/2024/0061/F 12/01/2024 Change of use from 
First/Second Floor Hair 
Salon to 3 No. two-bedroom 
Residential Apartments, 
including elevation changes, 
second floor dormer, 
removal of the gable 
chimney stack and re-slating 
of existing roofs.   

537a Lisburn Road, BT9 7GQ 

3 Lisnasharragh LA04/2023/4148/F 06/10/2023 Proposed housing 
development for 3no. 
dwellings 

15 GALWALLY PARK 
GALWALLY 
BELFAST 
DOWN 
BT8 6AG 

4 Castle  LA04/2023/4613/F 20/12/2023 Proposed building ranging 
between 5 - 10 storeys 
(20.60m - 42.35m) including 
offices (Class B1a), ground 
floor retail (Class A1), 
community and cultural 
(Class D1) and restaurant 
uses, and licensed 
restaurant at upper level with 
external terrace, rooftop 
plant area, landscaping, 
servicing, public realm 
improvements, and all 
associated site works. 

Lands west of Donegall Quay, 
east of Tomb Street, south of 
Corporation Square (opposite 
Belfast Harbour Office) and 
immediately north of the NCP 
Multi Storey Car Park, Belfast.   

5 Titanic  LA04/2023/4179/F 11/10/2023 DEMOLITION OF VACANT 
BUILDING AND ERECTION 
OF 3NO ONE BEDROOM 
APARTMENTS 

1A CANADA STREET 
BALLYMACARRET 
BELFAST 
DOWN 
BT6 8DZ 

6 Lisnasharragh LA04/2023/4615/F 20/12/2023 – 
Valid 
17/01/2024 

Change of use from offices 
(B1) to short term let (Sui 
generis) (5 bedrooms), plus 2 
storey extension. 

425 Woodstock Road, Belfast, 
BT6 8PW 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
BRIEFING NOTE  
 
 
 

Subject: 
Department for Infrastructure - Call for Evidence: Future Focused 
Review of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) 

Date:  19 March 2024  

Reporting Officer: Kate Bentley, Director of Planning & Building Control 

Contact Officer: 
Keith Sutherland, Ext 3578, Planning Manager (Plans & Policy) 

Dermot O’Kane, Ext 2293, Principal Planning Officer 

 

1.0 Purpose of Briefing Note or Summary of main issues 

1.1 
 
 
1.2  

 

The Department is undertaking a ‘Call for Evidence’ on a potential focused review of the 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement on the issue of Climate Change.  
 
The primary purpose of the ‘Call for Evidence’ is to engage with stakeholders on the 
proposed areas of focus for a review of the SPPS and to invite the submission of evidence 
on the relevant factors that can assist with determining the best way forward. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
2.1 Committee is requested to:  

 Note the Council’s draft response to the DFI consultation attached (Appendix 1) 
 

2.0 Background 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 

The Call for Evidence on Planning Policy and Climate Change  focuses on a number of policy 
areas including water (Flood Risk Management), transport, planning in respect of climate 
Change. 
 
The information gathered through the Call for Evidence will be considered by the Department 
and will help inform any decision by a future Infrastructure Minister on a review of the SPPS 
and the options for it.  
 

3.0 Main Report 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 

The Strategic Planning Policy Statement (the SPPS) ‘Planning for Sustainable Development’ 
was published in September 2015, following Executive Committee agreement. It has a 
statutory basis under Part 1 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and the SPPS is 
judged to be in general conformity with the Regional Development Strategy 2035 (the RDS). 
 
The provisions of the SPPS apply to whole of Northern Ireland. They must be taken into 
account in the preparation of LDPs and are material to all decisions on individual planning 
applications and appeals. 
 
Whilst the SPPS and the planning system has the objective of furthering sustainable 
development at its heart, there has been much contextual change in the period following its 
publication, particularly with regards to the wider efforts of government in seeking to address 
the challenges presented by a changing climate. 
 
Since the SPPS was published in 2015, tackling Climate Change has become a legislative 
requirement and it is a priority consideration in the context of the work and functions of DfI, 
other departments and the wider public sector. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6b

https://www.infrastructure-ni.gov.uk/news/department-launches-call-evidence-planning-policy-and-climate-change


 

3.5 

 

 

3.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.7 

 

 

 

3.8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.9 

 

 

 

 

3.10 

 

 

 

3.11 

 

 

 

 

3.12 

 

 

This Call for Evidence is part of the process of gathering the necessary information to inform 
a potential focused review of the SPPS in relation to Climate Change and the options and 
scope for any such review. 
 
Should the outcome of this Call for Evidence lead to a decision to formally review the SPPS, 
such a focused review could seek to update and bring forward new and revised policy 
provisions on Climate Change on:- 
 

 The Purpose of Planning, 

 Furthering Sustainable Development (including Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 
Change and The Importance of Ecosystem Services), and 

 The Core Planning Principles of the two-tier planning system. 

If there is a decision to formally review the SPPS, the Council would have the opportunity to 
input into any more detailed consultation at that stage, and a further report would be brought 
to the Committee. 
 
A focused review could also encompass a fresh look at the appropriateness of extant policy 
provisions on flood risk, transportation, and development in the countryside, given these are 
three key policy areas which are impacted by Climate Change (in addition to the review of 
regional strategic planning policy on renewable and low carbon energy which is already being 
progressed). 
 
The consultation includes 7 questions seeking views on the SPPS’s approach to:- 

 The Purpose of Planning  

 Furthering Sustainable Development 

 Core Planning Principles 

 Flood Risk 

 Transportation 

 Development in the Countryside 

 Climate Change Agenda 

The Call for Evidence is seeking evidence on how and why the Department should update, 
revise, and improve a series of high-level strategic policies support the Climate Change 
agenda.  For the most part the nature and approach to strategic policy in the SPPS is broadly 
appropriate for the purposes of planning and is consistent with similar regional policy.  
Moreover, the approach is consistent with that taken in the Council’s recently adopted Plan 
Strategy (PS). Indeed, one of the tests of soundness of the PS was that it complied with the 
policy approach of the SPPS.  

From an operational planning perspective, the policy provisions in the SPPS when read 
alongside the recently adopted PS and its Supplementary Planning Guidance provide 
adequate policy provision for dealing with the causes and effects of climate change. In 
preparing the LDP the Council agreed to take a greater focus on climate change, and this is 
reflected in the current policies.    

Whilst the Call for Evidence is about seeking evidence on how and why policy should be 
amended; the Council’s primary concern relates to any potential unintended conflation or 
ambiguity that could arise as a consequence of changes to the regional policy and how it 
relates to the LDP.  There is a risk of confusion for participants in the planning process if 
there was to be a significant departure from the current policy.  Whilst the provisions of the 
Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 is clear in respect of the hierarchy of planning policy 
and the plan-led approach, it is important that this provision is clear, and care is taken to 
avoid any ambiguity.  

The second issue is that the creation of new policy is probably less important at this stage 
than delivery of the policy objectives through planning and other related 
disciplines.  Mechanisms around for example the adoption of SUDs schemes with new 
developments needs to be taken forward as a matter of urgency, as do processes for blue 

Page 42



 

 

 

3.13 

and green infrastructure, district heating and wider energy supply etc. as these are seen as 
critical to delivery.  

There is a potentially significant policy contradiction with the acknowledgement of the 

importance of the proximity principle between where people live and where they avail of 

work and services with the relatively relaxed regional approach to rural housing. A 

concerted effort needs to be made to address this acknowledged anomaly by ensuring a 

more sustainable spatial approach to land use across the region. It may be appropriate to 

address these issues and their concerns to climate change through a formal review of the 

Regional Development Strategy. 

Financial & Resource Implications  
None associated with this report.  
Equality or Good Relations Implications/ Rural Needs Assessment  
None associated with this report 

4.0 Appendices 

 Appendix 1: Council’s draft Response to the DfI Consultation 

  

Page 43



 

APPENDIX 1: Council’s draft Response to the DfI Consultation. 

Summary of Questions 

1) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve ‘The Purpose of Planning’ as contained within the SPPS so that it is fit for purpose and 

suitably future proofed to appropriately support the Climate Change agenda going forward? Please 

detail. 

Planning can provide lasting resilience to the impacts of climate change. It can implement local 

measures such as sustainable drainage, direct development to places that reduces the need to travel 

and enable better designed development more generally. Planning can also provide a strategic 

framework to deal with the impact of climate change and draw together a variety of disciplines. 

The definition of the 'Purpose of Planning' is sufficiently generic to encapsulate Planning ability to 

address the causes and effects of climate change.  The real focus needs to be on the delivery of the 

many good operational policies that already exist in the  SPPS and the new LDPs and their 

Supplementary Planning Guidance to ensure that things like sustainable drainage is delivered 

through appropriate statutory mechanisms.  

2) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve ‘Furthering Sustainable Development’ (including Mitigating and Adapting to Climate Change 

and The Importance of Ecosystem Services) in order to better support the Climate Change agenda? 

Please detail. 

There are a number of key improvements that need to be made to help us to further Sustainable 

Development protecting us from the worst excesses of climate change and reducing our carbon 

footprint. These should be focused on delivery based on the existing policy context with the SPPS 

and the recently adopted Plan Strategies and their supplementary guidance (Adopted Belfast Plan 

Strategy documents and SPG). A key consideration of this call should be not to confuse or hinder a lot 

of this good work by introducing ambiguity to the policy framework that could inadvertently cause 

difficulties around policy implementation. The SPPS's approach to mitigating and adapting to climate 

change and the importance of Ecosystems is sound.  A greater focus need to be paid to 

implementation and its correlation with seemingly contradictory policies, particularity in relation to 

development in rural areas, including housing. 

3) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve the ‘Core Planning Principles’ in order to better support the Climate Change agenda? Please 

detail. 

The Core Planing Principles in the SPPS are well founded, and largely derived from the European-

wide planning approach to sustainable development.  It is difficult to criticise objectives that seek to 

improvement people's wellbeing, economic output, and improving and protecting the environment. 

They closely mirror the three pillars of sustainable development.  As the emerging LDPs are also 

required to follow this approach and are legally bound to be assessed against the statutory 

requirements of the Sustainability Assessment, they should in effect if followed provide a strong 

policy basis for addressing the core issues associated with climate change.  Issues such as reducing 

the need to travel and providing for sustainable transport, providing opportunities for renewable and 

low carbon energy technologies decentralising energy and heating and promoting low carbon design 

approaches to reduce energy consumption in buildings are already provided for. The implementation 

of policy is key and a major focus of the Department should be on ensuring its implementation and 

providing the menchanisms to ensure its delivery. 

4) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve the subject policy ‘Flood Risk’, as set out in the SPPS, in order to better support the Climate 

Change agenda? Please detail. 

Page 44

https://www.belfastcity.gov.uk/Planning-and-building-control/Planning/Local-development-plan-(1)/Local-development-plan/Adoption-of-Plan-Strategy-documents
https://www.belfastcity.gov.uk/Planning-and-building-control/Planning/Local-development-plan-(1)/Local-development-plan/Adoption-of-Plan-Strategy-documents


 

Considering the impact of and promoting design responses to flood risk and coastal change for the 

lifetime of the development is a crucial factor in assessing affected planning applications.  The core 

principles of preparedness and mitigation against the worst effect of flooding in  the SPPS are sound.  

The need to update guidance on climate projections and updates to flood maps are undoubtedly 

beneficial, but the current approach to consultations with the incumbent authority still provides for 

advise from appropriate experts.  There has been a significant move in recent years at local authority 

level to bring forward both guidance and projects on the ground to deliver multi-functional green 

infrastructure, which can manage flooding and help species adapt to climate change – as well as 

contributing to a pleasant environment which encourages people to walk and cycle. 

Planning has a key role at managing the interaction of development and flood risk.  Clearly this 

approach needs to balance a variety of competing issues and it is important that flood risk does not 

decisively outweigh other factors that can help reduce factors that contribute to climate change. For 

example it would be easy to conclude that we only build in areas of low flood risk that merely create 

a greater dependence of car travel which ultimately contributes to the causes of climate change in 

the first instance. 

5) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve the subject policy ‘Transportation’, as set out in the SPPS, in order to better support the 

Climate Change agenda? Please detail. 

The planning system has an important role to play in supporting the priorities that can help to address 

climate change and there is a clear intent in the SPPS about improving connectivity, promoting more 

sustainable transport patterns and support the decarbonisation of the transport sector.  Further it is 

acknowledged in the policy that it is imperative to reduce the need to travel and provide for 

sustainable transport.  This is the correct strategic policy approach. The distribution and design of 

new development and the potential for servicing sites through sustainable transport solutions, are 

particularly important considerations that affect transport emissions. Sustainability appraisals should 

be used to test different spatial options in plans on emissions. This is evidenced in a myriad of 

academic and policy papers.  Like many of the contributing factors of climate change the key factor 

is the implementation of this policy narrative. This does at a regional level mean a serious rethink 

about how and where we distribute housing and other development and its relationship to wider 

employment and services. 

6) Can you provide any evidence on how and why the Department should update, revise, and 

improve the subject policy ‘Development in the Countryside’, as set out in the SPPS, in order to 

better support the Climate Change agenda? Please detail. 

The SPPS acknowledges the need to improve the health and well-being of our society, improve air 

quality and manages and mitigates against factors that contribute to climate change, it also 

acknowledges the benefits of the proximity principle which aligns the importance of locating housing 

at locations that can easily avail of employment and services.  The objectives do appear to be 

somewhat at odds with the approach to the delivery of housing in the countryside.  There is a clear 

need to address rural housing which encourages high levels of car ownership and more clearly 

acknowledge the correlation between creating critical population masses to support investment in 

necessary infrastructure.  Again there is an abundance of evidence to support this approach and in 

many ways it is self evident. The levels of single car journeys into Belfast every morning and evening 

and the detrimental impact that that is having on often working class community in the city centre in 

terms of air quality, lung diseases and wider amenity issues with sporadic car parking are all direct 

consequences of this policy approach.  Indeed the desire to repopulate our city centre and inner city 

communities is being stymied by the poor living environment created by cars.  There is considerable 

evidence that using multiple modes to complete a single trip deters people from using public 

transport.  Sporadic rural housing increases the propensity for multiple journey modes. 

Page 45



 

7) In light of the declared climate emergency and the requirements of The Climate Change Act 

(Northern Ireland) 2022, can you provide any other evidence on how and why the Department should 

update, revise, and improve the SPPS to better support the Climate Change agenda? Please detail. 

In addition to supporting the delivery of appropriately sited green energy, effective spatial planning 

is an important part of a successful response to climate change as it can influence the emission of 

greenhouse gases. In doing so, the SPPS should be more explicit in directing local planning 

authorities to ensure that protecting the local environment is properly considered alongside the 

broader issues of protecting the global environment. Planning can also help increase resilience to 

climate change impact through the location, mix and design of development. 

Addressing climate change is one of the core land use planning principles which the SPPS expects 

to underpin both plan-making and decision-taking. To be found sound, Local Plans will need to reflect 

this principle and enable the delivery of sustainable development. These include the requirements 

for local authorities to adopt proactive strategies to mitigate and adapt to climate change in line with 

the provisions and objectives of the Climate Change Act (Northern Ireland) 2022, and co-operate to 

deliver strategic priorities which include climate change. 

In addition to the statutory requirement to take the Framework into account in the preparation of 

Local Plans, there is a statutory duty on local planning authorities to include policies in their Local 

Plan designed to tackle climate change and its impacts. This complements the sustainable 

development duty on plan-makers and the expectation that Local Development Plans will contribute 

to the achievement of sustainable development. The Council supports the SPPS emphasis that 

responding to climate change is central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of 

sustainable development. 

Page 46



 

 

ADDENDUM REPORT  

Committee Decision Date: 19th March 2024 
   

Application ID: LA04/2017/1991/F    

Proposal:  
Construction of a new 5 storey office 
development for science and I.T. based 
business and associated car parking and 
public realm works. 

Location:  
Land adjacent to Concourse Buildings 
Queens Road Belfast BT3 9DT.  

Referral Route: Major development 

Recommendation: Approval subject to Section 76 planning agreement 

Applicant Name and Address:  
Catalyst Inc 
The Innovation Centre  
Queens Road 
Belfast BT3 9DT 
  

Agent Name and Address:  
McAdam Design 
1c Montgomery House  
478 Castlereagh Road 
Belfast BT5 6BQ 
 

Background 
 

1. This application relates to a proposed 5 storey office building off Queens Road, 
Queens Island. The application was previously approved by the Planning Committee 
in April 2020, subject to conditions and a Section 76 planning agreement. 
 

2. Delegated authority was given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to 
finalise the wording of conditions. The Section 76 planning agreement required the 
completion of the Eastern Access Road prior to occupation of more than 40% of the 
floor space of the proposed office building; and submission and implementation of a 
vibration monitoring and condition survey of the Thompson Dock. The Committee’s 
decision was subject to no new substantive issues being raised by third parties by 
close of consultation. In the event such issues are raised a decision will be taken 
following consideration of any responses with members being consulted. 
 

3. The Section 76 planning agreement has yet to be completed and so the decision is 
still to issue. The application is reported back to the Committee for re-assessment 
against the Belfast Local Development Plan: Plan Strategy 2035. 
 

4. The Plan Strategy was adopted in May 2023. This provides a new policy framework 
for decision-making. In accordance with the advice given to Members at the April 
2023 Committee, the application is required to be re-assessed having regard to the 
policies in the Plan Strategy. 
 

5. This report should be read in conjunction with the original case officer report to the 
April 2020 Committee, appended.   
 

Updated consultations 

6. DfI Roads provided a final consultation response on the day before the April 2020 
Planning Committee, advising no objection subject to conditions. These include 
limiting occupancy of no more than 40% of the floor space until the Eastern Access 
Road has been constructed; provision of the access and visibility splays; provision of 
the parking and servicing areas; securing 24 cycle parking stands; travel plan; and 
removing any necessary street furniture or landscaping that interferes with the 
visibility splays or access. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7a



 

 

Updated Policy Context 
 

7. Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and 
the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

8. Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council 
must have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, 
and to any other material considerations. 

 
9. The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP), when fully completed, will replace the 

Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The 
Belfast LDP will comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains 
strategic and operational policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the 
Local Policies Plan, which will provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast 
and has not yet been published. The zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the statutory local development plan 
(“Departmental Development Plan”) until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 

 
10. Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies 

relevant to consideration of the application, which are set out in the following section 
of the report. The Plan Strategy replaces the operational policies previously provided 
by the Departmental Planning Policy Statements (PPSs). Those policies no longer 
have effect, irrespective of whether planning applications have been received before 
or after the adoption date (par. 1.11 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement). 

 
11. Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council 

must have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area 
Plan (v2004 and v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The 
weight to be afforded to these proposals is a matter for the decision maker. It is 
considered that significant weight should be given to the proposals map in draft 
BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its advanced stage in the development process, save for 
retail policies that relate to Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 

12. The site is un-zoned “white land” in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP). It is 
within the Titanic Quarter in both version of draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 
2015 (dBMAP). It is within “Zone F” in dBMAP v2004.  

 

Relevant Planning Policies 
 
Plan Strategy 
 

13. The following policies in the Plan Strategy are relevant to consideration of the 
Section 54 application.  
 
Policy SP1 – growth strategy 
Policy SP1a – managing growth and supporting infrastructure delivery 

Policy SP2 – sustainable development 

Policy SP3 – health and wellbeing 

Policy SP5 – positive placemaking 

Policy SP6 – environmental resilience 

Policy SP7 – connectivity 

Page 48



 

 

Policy DES1 – principles of urban design 

Policy DES2 – masterplanning approach for major development 

Policy BH1 – listed buildings 

Policy BH4 – works to grounds affecting built heritage assets 

Policy BH5 – archaeology 

Policy HC1 – promoting healthy communities 

Policy EC1 – delivering inclusive economic growth 

Policy EC3 – major employment and strategic employment locations 

Policy TRAN1 – active travel – walking and cycling 

Policy TRAN 2 – creating an accessible environment 

Policy TRAN3 – transport assessment 

Policy TRAN4 – travel plan 

Policy TRAN6 – access to public roads 

Policy TRAN8 – car parking and servicing arrangements 

Policy TRAN10 – design of car parking 

Policy ENV1 – environmental quality 

Policy ENV2 – mitigating environmental change 

Policy ENV3 – adapting to environmental change 

Policy ENV4 – flood risk 

Policy ENV5 – SuDS 

Policy OS3 – Ancillary open space 

Policy NH1 – protection of natural heritage resources 

Policy TRE1 – Trees   

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance  

Placemaking and Urban Design 

Masterplanning Approach for Major Development 

Transportation 

Planning and Flood Risk 

 
Updated Assessment 
 

14. The adoption of the Plan Strategy requires the following updated assessment.  
 

Consultation responses 
 

15. Whilst consultees may have referred to the no longer extant Planning Policy 
Statements in their consultation responses, the substance of those policies remains 
sufficiently similar in the Plan Strategy so as not to require the consultees to re-
evaluate the proposal in the context of the Plan Strategy.  

 
Principle of development 
 

16. The site is previously developed land (car park supporting the adjacent office uses) 
within the development limit in Titanic Quarter. The site is a sustainable location with 
good access to public transport including the Glider. 
 

17. The site forms part of zoning BHA 01 in dBMAP v2014. Policy BHA01 zones the site 
and wider lands for mixed use development including employment. Acceptable uses 
include business uses Classes B1(a), (b) and (c). There is a limit on Class B1(a) 
offices of 15,000 sqm, however, the proposal falls under Class B1(c) research and 
development and would be restricted as such by condition. 

Page 49



 

 

18. Policy BHA01 is subject to a number of Key Site Requirements (KSRs) including, 
amongst others, the restriction on Class B1(a) floor space. Other relevant KSRs 
include: 
 

 Development shall accord with an overall Development Framework for the 
area – a Development Framework was adopted by the former Department of 
Environment in 2008 and assigns the site and lands around it as the Northern 
Ireland Science Park. It is considered that the proposal is consistent with the 
Framework including use and provision of high quality landmark buildings. DfI 
Roads is satisfied that appropriate transport infrastructure is in place; 

 The Development Framework shall be accompanied by a Transport 
Masterplan – the Transport Masterplan is also in place; 

 The overall design concept shall have particular regard to the maritime 
heritage of the site, tourism potential and the need for connectivity with the 
rest of the City Centre – the architectural approach to the design of the 
building is considered bold, innovative and an appropriate reference to the 
industrial heritage of Titanic Quarter. The site has good connectivity to the 
City Centre and wider city; 

 Provision for appropriate public transport to the site – the site benefits from 
regular public transport services including the Glider; 

 Provision shall be made for appropriate pedestrian/cycle routes and facilities 
– there is a cycle lane as well as pedestrian pavement on Queens Road to 
the site. Provision is to be made for secure cycle parking.  

 
19. The proposal is considered consistent with the relevant KSRs and would not 

undermine their objectives. 
 

20. The proposed office building will be used for science and IT related businesses, 
which are supported by Policy EC1. 
 

21. The site is within an existing employment area and therefore the proposal accords 
with Policy EC3. 
 

22. The proposal would provide R&D employment for around 1,400 people and would 
support economic activity and the economy.  
 

23. Having regard to these factors, the proposed development is considered to remain 
acceptable in principle.  
 

Design and placemaking 
 

24. The design and layout of the building and car park are considered to remain 
acceptable for the reasons set out in the original report. The architectural approach 
to the building is considered bold and innovative, being of appropriate high quality 
design, and a reference to the industrial heritage of the Titanic Quarter. There would 
be large areas of new public realm, providing an appropriate setting to the building 
and good connectivity. The design of the car parking is considered acceptable. The 
proposal is considered compliant with Policies DES1 and TRAN10. 
 

25. In terms of masterplanning, the proposal is mindful of adjacent sites and has been 
designed to integrate with the existing concourse buildings. The proposal would help 
enhance the waterside character and setting of the River Lagan. The building is to 
be constructed to BREEAM Excellent (or equivalent) standards. A public art scheme 

Page 50



 

 

can be secured by condition. The proposal is considered to accord with the key 
objectives of Policy DES3. 

 
Impact on adjacent uses 
 

26. The proposal is considered compatible with the adjacent commercial uses and would 
not result in conflict in terms of noise, overlooking, loss of light or outlook. The 
proposal is considered compliant with Policies DES1 and ENV1, and relevant 
provisions of the SPPS. 

 
Heritage impacts 
 

27. The site is adjacent the Thompson Dock, a Scheduled Monument, beyond which is 
the Listed former pump house, converted into a distillery. DfC HED was consulted on 
the application and offers no objection to the proposal. It is considered that the 
proposal would respect the setting of the Scheduled Monument and setting of Listed 
Building, compliant with Policy BH1 and relevant provisions of the SPPS. 
 

28. In relation to archaeology, as set out in the original Committee report, in view of the 
piling construction, monitoring of vibration levels is required to protect the structural 
integrity of the Scheduled Thompson Dock. As the vibration monitoring is to take 
place outside the application site, it should be secured by a Section 76 planning 
agreement. Subject to this provision, it is considered that the proposal would have 
an acceptable impact on archaeology, compliant with Policy BH5 and relevant 
provisions of the SPPS. 

 
Access, parking and transportation 
 

29. DfI Roads offers no objection to the proposal subject to conditions, which are 
recommended. 
 

30. Due to concerns about capacity of the road network, it was originally required that 
only 40% of the floor space of the building could be occupied until such time as the 
Eastern Access relief road onto Sydenham Road was constructed. This has since 
been built out with the road having been certified as substantially complete. 
Accordingly, there is no longer a requirement to restrict the occupancy of the building 
and therefore this obligation in the Section 76 planning agreement can be removed. 
 

31. The proposed building has previously been committed through the Committee’s 
previous resolution to grant planning permission and the road network capacity is 
considered to remain acceptable. DfI Roads has confirmed that it has no technical 
objections to the proposal subject to conditions, including completion of the Eastern 
Access Road. 
 

32. In terms of parking, the proposal would provide 716 car parking spaces to support 
the proposed and existing commercial buildings. DfI Roads has no objection to the 
level of parking, which is considered acceptable. 
 

33. The site is a sustainable location with good access to public transport services 
including the Glider and cycle path. Provision will be made for cycle parking. 
 

34.  The proposal is considered compliant with Policies TRAN1, TRAN2, TRAN3, 
TRAN4, TRAN6, TRAN8 and TRAN10. 

 

Page 51



 

 

Climate change 
 

35. The layout of the scheme will allow the building to benefit from solar gain. The 
building would be constructed to BREEAM Excellent standard (or equivalent), which 
is welcomed and should be secured by a planning condition. The proposal is 
considered compliant with Policy ENV2. 
 

36. In terms of adapting to climate change, the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 
Strategy indicate that flood risk and surface water will be appropriately managed. 
There is no objection from DfI Rivers. The proposal complies with Policy ENV3. 
 

37. SuDS measures are proposed via tree planting and permeable paving, and the 
approach is considered proportionate. The proposal complies with Policy ENV5. 

 
Open space 
 

38. Policy OS3 requires that all new development proposals include appropriate 
provision for open space. The precise amount, location, type and design of such 
provision will take account of the specific characteristics of the development, the site 
and its context. A normal expectation will be at least 10% of the total site area. The 
proposal would provide a significant area of public realm and around 30% of the site 
would be open space. The proposal is considered to satisfy Policy OS3. 

 
Health impacts 
 

39. The site has good connectivity and the travel plan will promote walking and cycling 
to encourage active travel, exercise and wellbeing. Hard and soft landscaping, as 
well as the general design quality of the building, will provide a pleasant working 
environment for employees. The proposal complies with Policy HC1. 

 
Environmental impacts 
 

40. Environmental Health offers no objection to the proposal and advises conditions in 
relation to contaminated land, which are recommended. No unacceptable impacts 
have been identified in respect of noise and air quality. The proposal is considered 
compliant with Policy ENV1. 

 
Drainage and flood risk 
 

41. DfI Rivers offers no objection and the proposal is considered to remain acceptable in 
relation to drainage and flood risk. The proposal complies with Policy ENV4. 

 
Waste-water infrastructure 
 

42. NI Water offers no objection and the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of 
waste-water infrastructure. The proposal accords with Policy SP1a. 

 
Natural heritage 
 

43. For the reasons set out in the original Committee report, the proposal is considered 
to remain acceptable in relation to natural heritage. The proposal complies with 
Policy NH1. 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

Section 76 planning agreement 
 

44. For the reasons set out previously, it is considered necessary to secure a vibration 
monitoring scheme in order to protect the structural integrity of the Scheduled 
Thompson Dock. As the monitoring would take place outside the application site, this 
would need to be secured by means of a Section 76 planning agreement.  
 

Other considerations 
 

45. Regard is had to the longevity of the application which was submitted in 2017 and 
which was originally approved by the Council in April 2020. 
 

46. Other aspects of the proposal acceptable, having regard to the policies in the Plan 
Strategy and SPPS. 

 
Recommendation 

 
47. Having regard to the Development Plan and material considerations, the 

recommendation remains to approve the application subject to conditions and a 
Section 76 planning agreement.  

 
48. Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to 

finalise the wording of the conditions and Section 76 planning agreement, and deal 
with any other issues that arise provided that they are not substantive. 

 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years 
from the date of this permission.  

  
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.  
 

2. Notwithstanding the Planning (Use Classes) Order (Northern Ireland) 2015 and 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order (Northern Ireland) 2015 (or any 
order revoking and/or re-enacting those orders with or without modification), the 
development shall not be used other than for Class B1(c) research and development 
and shall not be used for any other purpose falling within Use Class B1 without 
express planning permission.  
 

Reason:  Alternative use requires further consideration by the Council, having regard to the 
Zoning BHA01 of the Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014).   
  

3. No part of the development hereby permitted shall become operational until the 
vehicular access, including visibility splays and any forward sight distance are 
provided in accordance with Drawing No. 15 ‘Queens Road Access Sightlines’, 
bearing the Belfast City Council Planning Office date stamp 14 May 2019 and 
Drawing No. 16 ‘Sightlines and Car Parking Dimensions’, bearing the Belfast City 
Council Planning Office date stamp 14 May 2019, prior to the occupation of any 
other development hereby permitted. The area within the visibility splays and any 
forward sight line shall, with the exception of existing trees, be cleared to provide a 
level surface no higher than 250 mm above the level of the adjoining carriageway 
and such splays shall be retained and kept clear thereafter.  

 

Page 53



 

 

Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety 
and the convenience of road users. 
 

4. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or operated until the 
parking and turning areas have been provided in accordance with the approved 
plans. Such areas shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking and 
turning of vehicles and such areas shall remain free of obstruction for such use at all 
times. 

Reason:  To ensure adequate car parking within the site.  

 
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for parking and servicing. 
 

5. A minimum of 24 No. secure cycle parking stands shall be provided and permanently 
retained close to the accesses to the proposed development for use by staff and 
visitors to the development.  

 
Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport for development users. 
 

6. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or operated unless in 
accordance with the approved Travel Plan. 
 

Reason:  To promote sustainable travel patterns and off-set the demand for vehicular 
movements and/or parking.  
 

7. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence on site 
(other than site clearance, site preparation, demolition and the formation of 
foundations and trenches) unless details of foul and surface water drainage, 
including a programme for implementation of these works, have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council. The development shall not be carried out 
unless in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained as such 
thereafter.  

Reason: To ensure appropriate foul and surface water drainage of the site. Approval is 
required upfront because the design of the drainage is an integral part of the development 
and its acceptability. 
 

8. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence on site 
(other than site clearance, site preparation, demolition and the formation of 
foundations and trenches) unless details of the porous public realm and hard 
surfaced areas have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The 
development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable drainage of the site. 

 
9. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed Construction Environmental 

Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Council.  This should reflect all the mitigation and avoidance measures to be 
employed as detailed in the outline CEMP, Proposed Drainage Layout (May 2018), 
Piling Risk Assessment (March 2018) and all additional submitted information.  The 
CEMP shall include a detailed environmental monitoring plan to include suitable 
groundwater and surface water monitoring to take place during and after the 
construction works. This should include at least three rounds of monitoring for a 
suitable analytical suite. Reported contaminant concentrations should be screened 
against Generic Acceptance Criteria (GAC) protective of the water environment and 

Page 54



 

 

results should be submitted in writing to the Council for agreement. The 
development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use, and 
to ensure there are no adverse impacts on European site features. 
 
 

10. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed Remediation Strategy shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The Remediation Strategy 
shall consider all unacceptable risk to receptors and should identify the most 
appropriate remedial options and how these should be implemented and verified. 
The development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 

Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use. 
 

11. Any piling work undertaken at the site should use a continuous flight auger piling 
method. Should the applicant which to change piling methods a revised piling risk 
assessment will need to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council 
before such works are carried out. No piling works shall be carried out unless in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use. 
 

12. If during the development works, new contamination and risks are encountered 
which has not previously been identified, works should cease and the Council shall 
be notified immediately in writing. This new contamination shall be fully investigated 
in accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11). In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a 
remediation strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.  

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 

13. After completing all remediation works required by the above conditions, and prior to 
occupation of the development, a Verification Report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by Council. This report should be completed by competent 
persons in accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11). The Verification Report should present all the remediation 
and monitoring works undertaken and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in 
managing all the risks and achieving the remedial objectives. 

 
 This report must demonstrate that all remedial measures outlined in the MCL 
 Consulting Ltd report titled Phase 2 Generic Quantitative Risk Assessment (GQRA) 
 Pierpont Office Development Queens Road, Belfast Harbour, dated March 2018, 
 Project Number:P1509-1 have been implemented.   
 
 The verification report shall demonstrate the successful completion of remediation 
 works and that the site is now fit for the intended end-use (Commercial).  It must 
 demonstrate that the identified potential pollutant linkages are effectively broken.   
 
 The Verification Report should be in accordance with current best practice and 
 guidance as outlined by the Environment Agency. In particular, this Verification 
 Report must demonstrate: 
 

Page 55



 

 

 All Commercial Buildings have gas protection measures in line with CIRIA C665 
Characteristic Situation 2. 

 For those areas not covered in hardstanding, the report must demonstrate that 
these areas have been encapsulated in a clean cover fill of at least 600mm.  This 
fill material must be demonstrably suitable for end use (commercial).  

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use, and the 
protection of human health. 
 

14. In the event that contamination not previously considered is encountered during the 
approved development of this site, the development shall cease and a written report 
detailing the nature of this contamination and its management must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council.  This investigation and risk assessment must 
be undertaken in accordance with current best practice. 

 
Reason: Protection of human health. 
 

15. A buffer of at least 10m must be maintained between the location of all construction 
works including refuelling, storage of oil/fuel, concrete mixing and washing areas, 
storage of machinery/material/spoil etc and Belfast Lough. 

 
Reason: to ensure there are no adverse impacts on European site features. 
 

16. No external facing or roofing materials shall be applied unless in accordance with a 
written specification of the materials, which shall have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Council.  
 

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 
  

17. The building shall be constructed to BREEAM Excellent standard (or equivalent) and 
shall not be occupied until evidence and verification of such has been first submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Council. 
 

Reason: To mitigate and adapt to climate change. 
 

18. No development shall commence on site (other than site clearance, site preparation, 
demolition and the formation of foundations and trenches) unless details of a Public 
Art Scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The 
scheme shall include details of individual public art installations, proposals for future 
management and maintenance, and a programme for implementation. The 
development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: In the interests of place making and the amenities of the area. Approval is required 
upfront because public art may be integral to the design and layout of the scheme. 
 
Informatives: 
 
NOT02  Drawing Numbers 
This decision relates to the following approved drawing numbers: [to be confirmed] 
 
NOT03  Compliance with planning permission 
Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved 
plans and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal 
is unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If 

Page 56



 

 

you would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to 
the contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk.  
  
NOT04  Discharge of condition(s) 
This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know 
when this information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 
weeks for the Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and 
sometimes longer depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this 
when planning the timeline of your project.  
 
NOT05  Section 76 planning agreement 
This planning permission is subject to a planning agreement under Section 76 of the 
Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. This decision should be read in conjunction with the 
planning agreement. 
 
NOT06  Non-planning requirements 
The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, 
consents or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other 
authorisations may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application 
and can be accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from 
consultees may also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or 
developer.  
 

 
  

Page 57

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


 

 

Development Management Officer Report 
  

Committee Application  

Committee Decision Date: Tuesday 21 April 2020 
   

Application ID: LA04/2017/1991/F    

Proposal:  
Construction of a new 5 storey office 
development for science and I.T. based 
business and associated car parking and 
public realm works. 

Location:  
Land adjacent to Concourse Buildings 
Queens Road Belfast BT3 9DT.  

Referral Route: Major Application  

Recommendation: Approval   

Applicant Name and Address:  
Catalyst Inc 
The Innovation Centre  
Queens Road 
Belfast BT3 9DT 
  

Agent Name and Address:  
McAdam Design 
1c Montgomery House  
478 Castlereagh Road 
Belfast BT5 6BQ 
 

Executive Summary:  
  
The application seeks full permission for the construction of a new 5 storey office 
development for science and I.T. based business and associated car parking and public 
realm works. 
 
 The key issues are:  
- Principle of use on the site  
- Access, movement, parking and transportation, including road safety 
- Design 
- Impact on natural environment 
- Impact on built heritage 
- Landscaping 
- Flood Risk 
- other environmental matters  
- Legal Agreement 
 
The site is located on land adjacent to Concourse Buildings, Queens Road, Belfast.  The 3.18 
ha site is located on both sides of Queens Road (to the front and rear of the Legacy Building) 
within the existing grounds of Catalyst Inc, formerly known as the Northern Ireland Science 
Park.  The area is currently used for car parking on both sides of the road.  Both areas are 
defined by a mix of hedging and fencing.  The site is in proximity to a number of National, 
European and International designated areas, Thompson Dry Dock (archaeological site) as 
well as the Pump House (listed building).  The site is sited within Belfast Harbour and is 
identified as whiteland in the BUAP 2001.  The site is located within the development limits of 
Belfast in dBMAP and is identified as being within Zoning BHA 01 Titanic Quarter, a site zoned 
for mixed use development in the draft plan. 
  
The proposal has been assessed against and is considered to comply with the Strategic 
Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS), Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 
(BUAP), Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (dBMAP), PPS 2, PPS 3, PPS 4, PPS 6 
and PPS 15. 
  

Page 58



 

 

All statutory and non-statutory consultees responded with no objections subject to conditions. 
  
Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission is granted with delegated authority 
given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions and 
to enter into a Section 76 planning agreement to provide a mechanism to linking the 
occupation of the proposed office building to the completion of the Eastern Access Road and 
to secure a vibration monitoring regime extending beyond the application site and a condition 
survey of the Thompson Dock subject to no new substantive planning issues being raised by 
third parties. 
  

 

  
Page Break 

Page 59



 

 

 

Case Officer Report  

Site Location Plan  

 

 
  

Representations:  

Letters of Support  None received  

Letters of Objection  1 received, then withdrawn 

Number of Support Petitions and 
signatures  

No petitions received  

Number of Petitions of Objection and 
signatures  

No petitions received  

Characteristics of the Site and Area  
  
1.0 Description of Proposed Development  
The application seeks full planning permission for the construction of a new 5 storey office 
development for science and I.T. based business and associated car parking and public 
realm works. 
 
2.0 Description of Site  
The site is located on land adjacent to Concourse Buildings, Queens Road, Belfast.  The 
3.18 ha site is located on both sides of Queens Road (to the front and rear of the Legacy 

Page 60



 

 

Building) within the existing grounds of Catalyst Inc, formerly known as the Northern Ireland 
Science Park.  The area is currently used for car parking on both sides of the road.  Both 
areas are defined by a mix of hedging and fencing.  The site is in proximity to a number of 
national, European and international designated areas, Thompson Dry Dock (archaeological 
site) as well as the Pump House (listed building).  The site is sited within Belfast Harbour 
and is identified as whiteland in the BUAP.  The site is located within the development limits 
of Belfast in dBMAP and is identified as being within Zoning BHA 01 Titanic Quarter, a site 
zoned for mixed use development. 
 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations  
  
3.0 Site History  
The most recent planning history on the site relates to a small portion of the overall site on 
the opposite side of the road from the Legacy Building under Z/2013/1511/F.  This was for 
an “Existing building to be extended to the south-east and south to create additional 2330 sq 
metres of lettable work space and 98 car parking spaces remotely located 300 metres north 
east of the NISP building”, and permission was granted on 26th November 2015.  The 
proposal falls under the category of Major Development and Pre Application Community 
Consultation was carried out under the planning reference LA04/LA04/2017/0751/PAN. 
 
4.0 Policy Framework  
4.1 Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP)  
4.2 (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2004 
4.3 (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2015 
4.4 Developer Contribution Framework 2020 
4.5 Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS)   
4.6 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 2: Natural Heritage  
4.7 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3: Access, Movement and Parking  
4.8 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 4: Planning and Economic Development  
4.9 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 6: Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage  
4.10 Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 15: Planning and Flood Risk  
  
5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses  
5.1 DfI Roads Service – No objection subject to conditions 
5.2 DfC Historic Environment Division (Historic Monuments) – No objection subject to 
conditions 
5.3 DfC Historic Environment Division (Historic Buildings) – No objection 
5.4 NI Water – No objection  
5.5 DAERA Regulation Unit – No objection subject to conditions  
5.6 DAERA Natural Environment Division – No objection subject to conditions 
5.7 DAERA Marine and Fisheries Division – No objection 
5.8 DAERA Coastal Management – No objection 
5.9 DAERA Water Management – No objection subject to conditions 
5.10 DFI Rivers Agency – No objection  
  
6.0 Non Statutory Consultees Responses  
6.1 Belfast City Council (BCC) Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions  
6.2 Belfast City Council (BCC) Local Development Plan Team – No objection subject to 
conditions 
6.3 Belfast City Council (BCC) Tree Officer – No objection subject to conditions 
6.4 Belfast City Airport – No objection 
6.5 Shared Environmental Services – No objection subject to conditions 
  

Page 61



 

 

7.0 Representations  
7.1 The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  An 
objection was received from Strategic Planning dated 3rd July 2018, on behalf of IBM who 
occupy the Legacy Building.  The issues raised were construction noise, discrepancy within 
the parking layout, parking provision already at full capacity, and discrepancy relating to the 
public walkway.  Following direct dialogue between the Applicant and Objector this 
representation was withdrawn on 14th September 2018.    
  
8.0 Other Material Considerations   
8.1 Parking Standards (supplementary planning guidance) 
  
9.0 Assessment  
9.1 Following the Court of Appeal decision relating to BMAP, the extant development plan is 

now the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001. However, given the stage at which the Draft BMAP 

had reached pre-adoption through a period of independent examination, the policies within 

the Draft BMAP still carry weight and are a material consideration in the determination of 

planning applications. The weight to be afforded is a matter of judgement for the decision 

maker. Given the advanced stage at which Draft BMAP had reached it is considered to hold 

significant weight (save for policies around Sprucefield which remained contentious). The 

site is located inside the development limits of Belfast as shown in the draft Belfast 

Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 and within Zoning BHA 01, Titanic Quarter. 

9.2 The proposal will develop the existing site by erecting a five storey office building for 
science and I.T. based business, with associated car parking and public realm works.  The 
proposed building will be located to the rear of the site adjacent to Thompson Dry Dock with 
car parking to the front (to the rear of the Legacy building), with further proposed car parking 
on the opposite side of the road.  The proposed building is an ‘L shape’ with two main 
elements and a link between.  Each section features a small projection for stairs, lift and 
WCs. The plans show the two main sections of the building on each floor as open plan 
office space with the link areas showing lifts, stairs, as well as showering facilities and two 
conference rooms on each floor, with the exception of the ground floor.  This area is 
characterised by the entrance foyer, café and reception area. 
 
9.3 The key issues are:  
- Principle of use on the site  
- Access, movement, parking and transportation, including road safety 
- Design 
- Impact on natural environment 
- Impact on built heritage 
- Landscaping 
- Flood Risk 
- other environmental matters  
- Section 76 Planning Agreement 
  
9.4 Principle of use on the site   
The site is located within the settlement limits of draft BMAP 2015. The presumption is 
therefore in favour of development subject to the planning considerations discussed below.  
As stated the proposal is sited within dBMAP zoning BHA 01, and there are a number of key 
site requirements (KSRs) for the zoning which outline the acceptable uses in Titanic 
Quarter. These include business uses (as currently specified in Class B1 (a), (b) or (c) of the 
Planning (Use Classes) Order (Northern Ireland) 2004), now superseded by the 2015 Order. 
The KSRs go on to state that ‘the total amount of floorspace for Use Class B1 (a) Offices 
shall not exceed 15,000m2 and that consideration may be given to office proposals above 
15,000m2 where it can be demonstrated that the proposal cannot be accommodated within 

Page 62



 

 

Belfast City Centre and which would otherwise result in a loss of significant inward 
investment’.  The agent has confirmed the proposed use as B1(c) Research and 
Development. Under the KSRs for zoning BHA01 there is no floorspace restriction of B1(c).  
Following consultation with the BCC Local Development Plan Team they had no objection to 
the proposal and suggested a condition be included, should approval be granted, restricting 
the office use to B1(c).  The site is within a commercial area and compatible with 
surrounding uses. The proposal, subject to planning considerations, is considered to make a 
positive contribution to the area.  

9.5 Access, Movement, Parking and Transportation   
The proposed car parking has been located to the front of the proposed building, as well as 
on the opposite side of the road (directly opposite the Legacy Building).  A Transport 
Assessment Form, Transport Assessment, Travel Plan, and Service Management Plan 
were submitted with the application. DfI Roads were consulted and they raised a number of 
concerns regarding traffic and road safety. 
 
9.6 After extended engagement and discussions between Planning, DfI Roads Service and 
the applicant’s agent and roads consultant, an updated Travel Plan, traffic calculations as 
well as other supporting information was submitted and forwarded to DfI Roads for 
comment.  They responded on 9th April 2020 stating no objection subject to a number of 
conditions, including a restriction on the occupation of the proposed office building. It is 
considered necessary to allow no more than 40% of the floor area of the proposed 
development to be occupied or otherwise operational until the ‘Titanic Quarter Eastern 
Access Road’, recommended for approval by the Planning Committee in March 2020 under 
planning reference LA04/2019/2810/F, has been constructed to the satisfaction of DfI Roads 
and become operational. The condition is considered necessary because if the building was 
wholly occupied in advance of the new road it would have an adverse impact on the existing 
road infrastructure.  
 
9.7 Design 
The proposed building is 5 storeys high, and consists of 2 main elements linked by a 
circulation core to form a general “L shaped” block.  Plant is proposed to the roof and will be 
screened by parapet walls.  The proposal is sited approximately 105m from the Legacy 
building to the front and 30m to the nearest of the three Concourse buildings adjacent to the 
East, also 5 storeys.  The proposed height, massing and design are acceptable for the site 
and its surroundings. The Agent states that the design and materials been carefully 
considered in relation to the industrial history of the site. 
 
9.8 The building is of a modern design with large areas of glazing.  The external materials 
are a mix of grey curtain wall cladding; rainscreen cladding and grey brick (to the ground 
floor).  The proposed mix of materials are similar to that of a number of buildings in the 
immediate area, which overall is characterised by a variety of building types and elevation 
treatment.  Should approval be granted a condition shall be attached stating development 
shall not commence under materials have been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Council. 
 
9.9 Impact on natural environment 
The site is in proximity to a number of national, European and international designated 
areas, Belfast Lough Open Water ASSI, Belfast Lough Ramsar/SPA, The Maidens SAC, 
East Coast Marine Proposed SPA and North Channel SAC, as well as the Outer Belfast 
ASSI. 

9.10 A Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) was submitted demonstrating the potential 
impacts on the above European Sites. This assessment determines if there could be any 
significant effects on the features and conservation objectives, and hence integrity, of any 

Page 63



 

 

European sites to meet the requirements of Regulation 43 (1) of the Conservation (Natural 
Habitats, etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended).  This information was 
forwarded to Shared Environmental Services for comment, along with an Outline 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), Piling Risk Assessment as well as 
the proposed drainage layout.  They responded with no objections to the proposal subject to 
a condition relating to the submission of a final CEMP.  They also placed emphasis on the 
importance of Conditions which had been suggested by DAERA’s Regulation Unit. 

9.11 DAERA Natural Environment Division assessed the same information as Shared 
Environmental Services, as well as the submitted GQRA.  They are content the proposal is 
unlikely to significantly impact protected and/or priority species and habitats subject to 
conditions.  They have also requested the submission of a final CEMP for agreement prior 
to works commencing.  They also stated that a buffer of at least 10m must be maintained 
between the location of all construction works etc and Belfast Lough.  This shall be 
conditioned should approval be granted. 
 
9.12 DAERA Marine and Fisheries Division were content with the conclusions of the HRA 
and consider that provided the proposal is confined to the red line boundary and there is no 
significant noise disturbance associated with construction works there should be no impact 
on the natural environment.  In conclusion the proposal is in keeping with PPS 2, Natural 
Heritage. 
 
9.13 Impact on built heritage 
The proposal is within the vicinity of archaeological sites (including Thompson Dock) and a 
listed building (Pump House) and therefore the policies in PPS 6 are a material 
consideration in this case.  HED Historic Buildings assessed the application in relation to the 
setting of the listed Pump House. On the basis of the information provided, HED is content 
that the proposal is satisfactory and complies with the policies in the SPPS and Policy BH11 
of PPS 6. 
 
9.14 HED Historic Monuments (HM) was consulted given the site’s proximity to a scheduled 
monument (Thomson Dock). HED HM raised concerns relating to any potential physical 
impacts of construction works upon the structural integrity and fabric of adjacent maritime 
sites. A structural engineer’s report, piling methodology details, as well as details of a 
vibration monitoring scheme were forwarded to HED HM for consideration.  In their 
response dated 8th April 2019 they made a number of recommendations.  They stated in 
view of the proposed piling works it is essential that a robust monitoring regime is agreed 
and implemented.  The regime will however require the monitoring of vibration levels outside 
the red line of the boundary of the application site and a condition survey of Thompson 
Dock.  They suggested that any approval for the scheme should be conditional on the 
agreement and implementation of a piling and monitoring methodology that provides for the 
requirements described within their response.  As the requirements for the monitoring of 
vibration levels relate and the condition survey of the dock relate to land beyond the red line 
of the application site, it is necessary that these requirements are secured as part of a 
Section 76 Planning Agreement.  These measures will ensure the proposal is satisfactory to 
SPPS and PPS 6 archaeological policy requirements. 
 
9.15 Landscaping  
The site exhibits a small number of trees which the BCC Tree Officer has confirmed as 
more than likely the result of natural regeneration or self-seeded.  These should be retained, 
where it is reasonably possible to do so.  The proposed landscaping plan shows 50 semi 
mature trees of mixed species.  These will soften the visual aspect of the proposed site.  
The BCC Tree Officer responded to consultation with no objection subject to a number of 
standard conditions. 

Page 64



 

 

9.16 Flood Risk  
A flood risk and drainage assessment was submitted for consideration, and consultation 
undertaken with Rivers Agency in relation to these matters. They responded on 23rd 
November 2017 with no objection to the proposal, and it is therefore considered that the 
proposal complies with the policy requirements set out in PPS15 as acceptable drainage and 
flood risk protection measures are proposed.  On reviewing the updated Flood Risk 
Assessment on 19th February 2019 their previous comments remained the same. 

9.17 Other Environmental Matters  
A Preliminary Risk Assessment and Generic Quantitative Risk Assessment were submitted 
and comments were invited from both BCC Environmental Health and DEARA.  BCC and 
DEARA both responded suggesting conditions to be included should approval be granted. 
These are included below as part of this report.  
    
9.18 Section 76 Planning Agreement  
A current application, under LA04/2019/2810/F, for “Titanic Quarter eastern access road 
including new signalised junction on Sydenham Road and associated works.” was 
recommended for approval at the BCC Planning Committee meeting on 10th March 2020 
with powers delegated to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of conditions and resolve any outstanding matters.  DfI Roads Service have 
recommended by condition that no more than 40% of the floor area of the proposed 
development shall be occupied or otherwise become operational until the ‘Titanic Quarter 
Eastern Access Road’ has been constructed to the satisfaction of DfI Roads and become 
operational. This will be generally in accordance with the approval LA04/2019/2810/F 
‘Titanic Quarter eastern access road including new signalised junction on Sydenham Road 
and associated works ‘. The condition is considered necessary because if more than 40% of 
the building was occupied in advance of the new road it would adversely impact on the 
existing roads infrastructure. 
 
9.19 As the new road is outside the red line for the office development, and subject to a 
separate planning permission, it is considered that should planning permission be granted 
for the new office development, the developer will be required to enter into a Section 76 
planning agreement with the Council to provide a mechanism to link the occupation of the 
proposed office development, if granted, under LA04/2017/1991/F to the completion of the 
Eastern Access Road (LA04/2019/2810/F). 
 
9.20 In addition the planning agreement should include the HED HM requirements for 
monitoring of vibration levels outside the red line boundary of the application site and a 
condition survey of the scheduled dock.  The developer has expressed a willingness and 
commitment to enter into such a legal agreement.  
  
9.21 Economic Benefit  
The Planning Design and Access Statement submitted in support of the proposal states the 
development will provide accommodation for 1400 people approximately with of course a 
number of short term construction jobs and will bring an injection of vitality to this area of 
Chichester Street. The increased footfall to the area will also boost trade for local 
restaurants and retailers.  
  
10.0 Conclusion  
10.1 Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the 
proposal is considered acceptable and it is recommended that planning permission is 
granted with delegated authority given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to 
finalise the wording of conditions and to enter into a Section 76 planning agreement to 
provide a mechanism to linking the occupation of the proposed office building to the 
completion of the Eastern Access Road and to secure a vibration monitoring regime 

Page 65



 

 

extending beyond the application site and a condition survey of the Thompson Dock subject 
to no new substantive planning issues being raised by third parties. 
  

Neighbour Notification Checked: Yes  
  

Summary of Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions and a Section 76 Planning 
Agreement 
  

Conditions:   
  
 1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission.  
  
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011.  
  
2. No part of the development hereby permitted shall become operational until the vehicular 
access, including visibility splays and any forward sight distance are provided in accordance 
with Drawing No. 15 ‘Queens Road Access Sightlines’, bearing the Belfast City Council 
Planning Office date stamp 14 May 2019 and Drawing No. 16 ‘Sightlines and Car Parking 
Dimensions’, bearing the Belfast City Council Planning Office date stamp 14 May 2019, 
prior to the occupation of any other development hereby permitted. The area within the 
visibility splays and any forward sight line shall, with the exception of existing trees, be 
cleared to provide a level surface no higher than 250 mm above the level of the adjoining 
carriageway and such splays shall be retained and kept clear thereafter.  
 
Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety 
and the convenience of road users. 
 
3. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational until hard surfaced area 
have been constructed in accordance with the approved layout Drawing No. 16 ‘Sightlines 
and Car Parking Dimensions’, bearing the Belfast City Council Planning Office date stamp 
14 May 2019 to provide adequate facilities for parking, servicing and circulating within the 
site. No part of these hard surfaced areas shall be used for any purpose at any time than for 
the parking and movement of vehicles.  
 
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for parking and servicing. 
 
4.  A minimum of 24 No. secure cycle parking stands shall be provided and permanently 
retained close to the accesses to the proposed development for use by staff and visitors to 
the development.  
 
Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport for development users. 
 
5.  The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved Travel 
Plan published by the Belfast City Council Planning Office on 22 January 2020. This shall 
include provision of the Translink iLink Initiative and the Bike2Work Initiative or equivalent 
measures agreed by DfI Roads. This Travel Plan will be issued as a standalone document 
and the measures contained within will be monitored and assessed from the inception of the 
Plan on a minimum of an annual basis to ensure the Plan’s effectiveness.  
 
Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport to the private car in 
accordance with the Transportation Principles. 
 
6.  Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed Construction Environmental 

Page 66



 

 

Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing by the Council.  This 
should reflect all the mitigation and avoidance measures to be employed as detailed in the 
outline CEMP, Proposed Drainage Layout (May 2018), Piling Risk Assessment (March 
2018) and all additional submitted information.  The CEMP shall include a detailed 
environmental monitoring plan to include suitable groundwater and surface water monitoring 
to take place during and after the construction works. This should include at least three 
rounds of monitoring for a suitable analytical suite. Reported contaminant concentrations 
should be screened against Generic Acceptance Criteria (GAC) protective of the water 
environment and results should be submitted in writing to the Council for agreement. In the 
event of unacceptable risk to receptors being identified, works shall cease and the 
requirements of Condition 11 will apply. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use, and 
to ensure there are no adverse impacts on European site features. 
 
7.  Prior to the development proceeding, a detailed remediation strategy shall be presented 
to the planning authority for agreement. The remediation strategy should consider all 
unacceptable risk to receptors and should identify the most appropriate remedial options 
and how these should be implemented and verified. The remediation strategy should be 
completed in accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11). 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use. 
 
8.  Any piling work undertaken at the site should use a continuous flight auger piling 
method. Should the applicant which to change piling methods a revised piling risk 
assessment will need to be submitted to the planning authority for agreement. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure that the site is suitable for use. 
 
9.  If during the development works, new contamination and risks are encountered which 
has not previously been identified, works should cease and the Council shall 
be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in accordance 
with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11). In the 
event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed with 
the Planning Authority in writing and subsequently implemented and verified to its 
satisfaction. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
11. After completing all remediation works required under Conditions 7-10, and prior to 
occupation of the development, a Verification Report shall be submitted and agreed in 
writing with the Council. This report should be completed by competent persons in 
accordance with the Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
(CLR11). The verification report should present all the remediation and monitoring works 
undertaken and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and 
achieving the remedial objectives. 
 
This report must demonstrate that all remedial measures outlined in the MCL Consulting 
Ltd report titled Phase 2 Generic Quantitative Risk Assessment (GQRA) Pierpont Office 
Development Queens Road, Belfast Harbour, dated March 2018, Project Number:P1509-1 
have been implemented.   

Page 67



 

 

The verification report shall demonstrate the successful completion of remediation works 

and that the site is now fit for the intended end-use (Commercial).  It must demonstrate that 

the identified potential pollutant linkages are effectively broken. The Verification Report 

should be in accordance with current best practice and guidance as outlined by the 

Environment Agency. 

In particular, this Verification Report must demonstrate: 
 

- All Commercial Buildings have gas protection measures in line with CIRIA C665 
Characteristic Situation 2. 

- For those areas not covered in hardstanding, the report must demonstrate that these 
areas have been encapsulated in a clean cover fill of at least 600mm.  This fill 
material must be demonstrably suitable for end use (commercial).  

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use, and the 
protection of human health. 
 
12. In the event that contamination not previously considered is encountered during the 
approved development of this site, the development shall cease and a written report 
detailing the nature of this contamination and its management must be submitted to the 
Council for approval.  This investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with current best practice. 
 
Reason: Protection of human health 
 
13.  A buffer of at least 10m must be maintained between the location of all 
construction works including refuelling, storage of oil/fuel, concrete mixing and washing 
areas, storage of machinery/material/spoil etc and Belfast Lough. 
 
Reason: to ensure there are no adverse impacts on European site features. 
 
14. The development hereby approved shall be used only for B1(c) Research and 
Development, as described within The Planning (Use Classes) Order (Northern Ireland) 
2015. 
  
Reason: To control the use at this location and to secure a satisfactory mix of land uses. 
 
15.  The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details and samples and a 

written specification of the materials to be used in the external elevations, have been 

submitted to and have been approved in writing by the Council. The development shall not 

be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details.   

  
Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 
 

  
  
  

Page 68



 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   20th September 2017 

Date First Advertised  29th September 2017 
 

Date Last Advertised  
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
 
1, Pavilions Office Park, Holywood, Down, Northern Ireland, BT18 9JQ    
B L Refrigeration & Air Conditioning Ltd,Unit 3,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial 
Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Base Group,Unit 3,The Legacy Building,22 Queens Road,Queen'S Island,Belfast,Down,BT3 
9DT,    
Cimpina Ltd,Unit 5,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
D V 8 Shoe Shop,Unit 6,Oakbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 
9DT,    
Ibm United Kingdom Ltd,Unit 1,The Legacy Building,22 Queens Road,Queen'S 
Island,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
 
Navinet,Unit 4,The Legacy Building,22 Queens Road,Queen'S Island,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
New Sirocco Works,Musgrave Channel Road,Queen'S Island,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Offices 1-10,Unit 7,20 Queens Road,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Pyeroy(Northern Ireland )Ltd,Queens Road,Queen'S Island,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Queens Road,Queen'S Island,Down,,    
Sterling Fluid Systems Ltd,Unit 2,Oakbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial 
Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
 
Stratton Engineering,Unit 4,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial 
Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
 
Unit 1,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Unit 1 - 4,Oakbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Unit 17,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Unit 3a,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
Unit 9,Oakbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
W H Scott & Son Ltd,Unit 2,Elmbank,Queens Road,Channel Commercial 
Park,Belfast,Down,BT3 9DT,    
 
Workman Road,Queen'S Island,Down,,    
 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification  
22nd January 2020 
 

Date of EIA Determination 19th October 2017 

ES Requested 
 

No 
 

Page 69



 

 

Planning History 
 
Ref ID: Z/2013/1511/F 
Proposal: Existing building to be extended to the south-east and south to create additional 2330 
sq metres of  lettable work space and 98 car parking spaces remotely located 300 metres north 
east of the NISP building. 
Address: Northern Ireland Science Park, Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast, BT3 9DT, 
Decision: PG 
Decision Date: 08.12.2015 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2000/2205/O 
Proposal: Science Park (research driven centre for knowledge based industry) 
Address: Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 12.04.2001 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2001/0922/O 
Proposal: Redevelopment of the site as a science park 
Address: Queens Road, Queens Island, Belfast 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 22.03.2002 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/1997/0103 
Proposal: Refurbishment and sub-division of existing vacant 
plumbing works to create 8 no.industrial units with 
office extension to unit no.1 
Address: PHASE 3 CHANNEL COMMERCIAL PARK QUEENS ISLAND BELFAST BT3 
Decision:  
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2000/0196/F 
Proposal: Proposed workshop extension located within existing covered parking area. 
Address: Unit 1, Phase 3, Channel Commercial Park, Queens Road, Belfast. 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 06.05.2000 
 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2018/1510/PAN 
Proposal: Part demolition of existing building and erection of storage and distribution facility and 
associated car parking, site works and access. 
Address: Lands at Kings Works, Channel Commercial Park, Queens Road, Titanic Quarter, 
Belfast., 
Decision: PANACC 
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2000/2505 
Proposal: Proposed mixed use development. 
Address: Titanic Quarter, Belfast Harbour, Belfast BT3. 
Decision:  
Decision Date:  

Page 70



 

 

 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2017/0357/PAN 
Proposal: The construction of a 5 storey office development for science and IT based 
businesses, and associated car parking, landscaping, public amenity space etc. 
Address: Queens Road, Queens Island, Belfast, BT3 9DT, 
Decision: PANCON 
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2017/1991/F 
Proposal: Construction of a new 5 storey office development for science and I.T. based business 
and associated car parking and public realm works. 
Address: Land adjacent to, Concourse Buildings, Queens Road, Belfast, BT3 9DT., 
Decision:  
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2017/0751/PAN 
Proposal: The construction of a 5-storey office development for Science and I.T. based 
business, and associated car parking, landscaping, public amenity space etc. 
Address: Queens Road, Queens Island, Belfast, BT3 9DT., 
Decision: PANACC 
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2005/1842/F 
Proposal: Construction of 3 no. buildings to provide accommodation for high growth, medium to 
large high technology companies and a landscaped courtyard with associated car parking. 
Address: Northern Ireland Science Park, Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast, BT3 9DT 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 16.06.2006 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2007/1412/F 
Proposal: Construction of 3 No. 5 storey buildings with associated landscaping and car parking. 
Address: Northern Ireland Science Park, Queen's Road, Queen's Island, Belfast, BT03 9DT 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 12.06.2008 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2003/0546/RM 
Proposal: Refurbishment of existing building, infrastructure, associated car parking, landscaping 
and other ancillary work for building (No.4) of Science Park to provide accommodation for high 
growth medium to large technology companies. 
Address: Queens Road, Queens Island, BT3 9DU. 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 18.12.2003 
 
 
Ref ID: Z/1974/1100 
Proposal: CHANGE OF USE OF STORE TO AMENITY CENTRE 
Address: BLACKSMITHS SHOP, QUEENS ROAD 
Decision:  
Decision Date:  

Page 71



 

 

 
 
Ref ID: Z/2009/0185/LDP 
Proposal: Construction of a skip enclosure. 
Address: Channel Commercial Park, Queens Road, Belfast. BT3 9DT. 
Decision:  
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: Z/2007/2213/F 
Proposal: Erection of new 27m x 9.6m modular building for staff amenities (Amended 
description). 
Address: Channel Commercial Park, Queens Road, BT3 9DT 
Decision:  
Decision Date: 05.02.2008 
 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2019/0683/F 
Proposal: Demolition of existing industrial warehouse buildings and erection of warehouse 
distribution facility, associated ancillary office, van storage, yards, car parking and accesses. 
Address: Lands at Kings Works, Channel Commercial Park, Queens Road, Titanic Quarter, 
Belfast., 
Decision: AL 
Decision Date:  
 
 
Ref ID: LA04/2019/0162/DETEI 
Proposal: E I A requests for Warehouse Distribution facility at lands at Queens Road, Belfast 
Address: Lands at Queens Road, to the south west of Wolff Road and west of Musgrave 
Channel Road, Belfast Harbour Estate, Belfast, 
Decision: NRES 
Decision Date:  

Notification to Department (if relevant) 
 
Date of Notification to Department:  N/A 
Response of Department: 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 72



 

Development Management Addendum Report 2  

Summary 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/4021/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling to 5 
Bed House in Multiple Occupation. 
 

Location: 
166 Upper Newtownards Road,   
Belfast,   
BT4 3ES 

Referral Route: Request to be presented to Planning Committee by Elected Member (Cllr 
Anthony Flynn) 

Recommendation:  Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Sikkim Properties  
34 Dufferin Ave 
Bangor 
BT20 3AA 

Agent Name and Address: 
Gravis Planning  
Unit 1, Pavilions Office Park 
Kinnegar Drive 
Holywood 

Background 
 
This application was approved by the Committee at its 13th February 2024 meeting. The 
Committee’s decision was recorded as having ‘…granted planning permission, subject to conditions 
and a Section 76 planning agreement [emphasis], and delegated authority to the Director of 
Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of the conditions and Section 76 planning 
agreement and to deal with any other issues that may arise, provided that they are not substantive.’ 
 
Reference was made in the Committee’s decision to the requirement for a Section 76 planning 
agreement. However, the Committee will know from the planning assessment in the original report 
to the 16th January Committee that a Section 76 planning agreement was never identified as being 
necessary to make the proposal acceptable – indeed it would not be for a proposal of this nature. 
 
The Committee’s decision to require a Section 76 planning agreement was due to a typographical 
error in the recommendation set out in Addendum Report 1, appended and highlighted yellow. It is 
therefore necessary to report the application back to the Committee which is asked to confirm that 
a Section 76 planning agreement is not required, so that the decision can be issued.   
 
This report should be read in conjunction with the original report to the January 2024 Committee 
and Addendum Report to the February 2024 Committee, appended. 
 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording 
of the conditions, and deal with any other issues that arise provided that they are not substantive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7c



Page 2 of 11 

Development Management Addendum Report 1 

 

Addendum 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/4021/F Committee Meeting Date: 13th February 2024 

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling to 5 
Bed House in Multiple Occupation. 
 

Location: 
166 Upper Newtownards Road,   
Belfast,   
BT4 3ES 

Referral Route: Request to be presented to Planning Committee by Elected Member (Cllr 
Anthony Flynn) 
 

Recommendation:  Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Sikkim Properties  
34 Dufferin Ave 
Bangor 
BT20 3AA 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Gravis Planning  
Unit 1, Pavilions Office Park 
Kinnegar Drive 
Holywood 

Addendum Report 1  

This full application was presented to Planning Committee on Tuesday 16th January 2024 and was 

deferred to allow members of the Committee to visit the site. The site visit will take place on 

Wednesday 7th February 2024.  

 

Recommendation 

The case officer recommendation is unchanged. Having regard to the development plan and other 

material considerations, the proposal is considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning 

permission is granted subject to conditions.  

 

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 

wording of the conditions subject to S76, and deal with any other issues that arise provided that 

they are not substantive. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 74



Page 3 of 11 

 
Development Management Officer Report 

Committee Application 
 

Summary 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/4021/F Committee Meeting Date: 16th January 2024 

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling to 5 
Bed House in Multiple Occupation. 
 

Location: 
166 Upper Newtownards Road,   
Belfast,   
BT4 3ES 

Referral Route: Request to be presented to Planning Committee by Elected Member (Cllr 
Anthony Flynn) 
 

Recommendation:  Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Sikkim Properties  
34 Dufferin Ave 
Bangor 
BT20 3AA 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Gravis Planning  
Unit 1, Pavilions Office Park 
Kinnegar Drive 
Holywood 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full planning permission for Change of use from dwelling to 5 Bed House 
in Multiple Occupation. 
 
The key issues are: 

 The principle of an HMO at this location;  

 Impact on surrounding residential amenity/character including policy analysis 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  

 Over-occupation/anti-social behaviour 

 Climate change 
 
 
22 objections have been received with the issues raised addressed within the main report.  

 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 

wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise provided that they are not 

substantive. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Page 4 of 11 

 Officer Report 

1.0 Drawings 

1.1 Existing Floor Plans 

 
 
Proposed Floor Plans 

 
Please note there are no external alterations and therefore elevations have not been 
shown here.  

Page 76



Page 5 of 11 

2.0  Characteristics of the Site and Area 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 

The application site is located at 166 Upper Newtownards Road, a corner plot that adjoins 
Oakland Avenue.  
 
The building is three storey semi-detached dwelling finished in white render. There is a 
small amount of amenity space to the front with pedestrian access, characterised by 
vegetation which screens the site from the road. There is a small amenity space to the 
rear/side between the rear return and the side boundary which also hosts an in-curtilage 
garage.  
 
The site falls within houses in multiple occupation (HMOS) subject plan for Belfast city 
council area 2015 - zoning HMO 4/10 HMO development node. 
 

3.0 Description of Proposal 

3.1 The application is seeking full planning permission for change of use from dwelling to 5 
Bed House in Multiple Occupation (amended description). 
 

4.0 Planning Policy and Other Material Considerations 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Other Policies 
Developer Contribution Framework (BCC) 
Belfast Agenda 
Creating Places (DfI) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
N/A 

5.0 Consultations and Representations 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statutory Consultations 
DfI Roads – No objections 
 
Non-Statutory Consultations 
BCC Plans & Policy team – No objections 
 
Representations 
The application has been advertised and neighbours notified. The Council has received 22 
objections which are summarised as follows:  

1. Parking, traffic, road safety and enforcement 
2. Waste and refuse collection 
3. Adverse impact on the sewage network 
4. Anti-social behaviour/noise 
5. Negatively impact on the character of the area  

Page 77



Page 6 of 11 

 
 
 

6. Non-compliance with Policy RD2 
7. Lack of cycle parking provision 
8. Additional guests staying over/anti-social behaviour 
9. Precedent for further HMOs in the area 
10. Alleged previous internal works to the property  
11. Impact on the provision of family homes in the area  

 
Issues 1-8 are covered in the main body of the report. Additional points are considered as 
follows: 
 
 9. Precedent for further HMOs in the area/domino effect -  
Each application is decided on its own merit. Officers consider that this scheme is compliant 
with policy considerations.  
 
10. Alleged previous internal works to the property - 
This would be outside the remit of planning and not relevant to the assessment of the 
application as internal works do not require planning permission.  
 
11. Impact on the provision of family homes in the area - 
This HMO is for 5 bedrooms, the licensing process will determine how many persons the 
home can accommodate. HMO’s can meet high demand for housing and the application 
site is located within one of three HMO Development Nodes on the Upper Newtownards 
Road which are designated due to their proximity to services and access to public transport. 
 

6.0 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Plan Context 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Development Plan is the Belfast Local Development Plan, which replaces the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory plan for the city. The Belfast LDP is in two parts:  
Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies 
Plan, which will provide the zonings and proposals map for Belfast and has yet to be 
published. For this reason, the assessment of this application still considers that the 
property is in an HMO Node, as designated under the HMO Subject Plan (2015) and will 
remain so until the LPP is adopted.  
 
Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant 
to consideration of the application. These are listed in the report. 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must 
have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 and 
v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to 
these proposals maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant 
weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its 
advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 

Page 78



Page 7 of 11 

6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
6.5.1 
 
 
 
6.5.2 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6.1 
 
 
 
6.6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7.1 
 
 
 
6.7.2 
 

Key Issues 
The key issues are: 

 The principle of an HMO at this location;  

 Impact on surrounding residential amenity/character including policy analysis 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  

 Over-occupation/anti-social behaviour 

 Climate change 
 
Principle of development 
The Upper Newtownards Road is not within a HMA however the site is located within the 
Upper Newtownards Road HMO Development Node (HMO 4/10) as designated in the 
HMO Subject Plan for Belfast City Council Area 2015. 
 
Policy HOU11 states “Within designated intensive housing nodes, planning permission will 
be granted for HMOs and flats/apartments. This will be subject to meeting all other policy 
requirements.” 
 
Para 7.1.76 of Policy HOU 11 states that proposals for HMOs and flats/apartments within 
intensive housing areas will still be carefully assessed against the relevant residential 
design requirements set out in policies RD1, RD2 and RD3. 
 
Impact on surrounding amenity/character of the area  
When considering the policy context, the proposed development in terms of scale, layout, 
design and materials must be in keeping with the site and its surrounding area. The 
character and appearance of the area in this case would be preserved. Appropriate open 
space is provided and/or the site has good access to existing open space infrastructure. 
The proposal complies with the HMO space standards for a 5 bed HMO as set out within 
Belfast Local Development Plan: 2035. The proposal would provide a quality and 
sustainable residential environment. The HMO will further require to be licensed with BCC 
which mitigates amenity concerns by enforcing an anti-social behaviour plan and ensuring 
the HMO operator runs the property effectively.  
 
The property is a large three-storey dwelling which has been extended over the years and 
is an appropriate size to accommodate an HMO, comfortably providing accommodation for 
5 people whilst still meeting the space standards.  
 
The proposal is compatible with adjacent land uses. It would not harm the amenity of 
adjacent and nearby properties, including unacceptable overlooking, overshadowing, 
overbearing, loss of outlook or daylight. The policy context is set out in Policies HOU 11, 
RD1, RD3 and TRAN8 below. 
 
Policy HOU 11  
Policy HOU 11 para 7.1.76 states that proposals for HMOs and flats/apartments within 
intensive housing areas will still be carefully assessed against the relevant residential 
design requirements set out in policies RD1, RD2 and RD3, which have been addressed 
above. Policy RD2 is not relevant to this application as no extensions are proposed.  
 
Local character, environmental quality and residential amenity, privacy of existing residents 
and scale and massing will continue to be particularly important considerations within 
intensive housing areas. 
 
The proposed change of use of an existing dwelling into a HMO is located within an 
intensive housing node where HMOs are acceptable in principle under policy HOU11 of 

Page 79



Page 8 of 11 

 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 
 
6.8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8.3 
 
 
 
 
6.8.4 
 
 
 
6.8.5 
 
 
6.8.6 
 
 
 
 
6.8.7 
 
 
 
6.8.8 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
6.9.1 
6.9.2 
 

the BPS. The use is therefore considered appropriate to the local character and 
surrounding area.  
 
Policy RD1 
Policy RD1 states that planning permission will be granted for new residential development 
where it is in accordance with general urban design policies and where it is demonstrated 
that the proposal:  
 

a) Will not create conflict with adjacent land uses, remaining in conformity with 
      the character of any established residential areas - Officers consider that the use    
      does not conflict with adjacent land uses. The scheme meets the policy requirements    
      set out in HOU 11 and RD1 & RD3. The HMO licensing scheme also seeks to ensure  
      that landlords are compliant with regulations, such as the number of occupants and   
      sufficient bin storage.  
 

b) Does not unduly affect the privacy or amenity of neighbouring residents, 
      including overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, dominance, noise or other 
      disturbance - Officers consider that the scheme will not give rise to any of the issues      
      listed in criterion B. Overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing and dominance will not     
       be changing from what is existing. Noise or other disturbance will be addressed by    
       the anti-social behaviour plan.  
 

c) Makes provision for, or is, accessible and convenient to public transport and 
       walking and cycling infrastructure - The proposal is located on a glider bus stop and   
       has good access to services and amenities. There is sufficient space for cycle    
       parking.  
 

d) Provides appropriate open space - The proposal maintains the current level of open 
space, and in addition, the area has good access to open space such as the Comber 
Greenway.  

 
e) Keeps hard surfacing to a minimum - No hard standing is proposed as part of this 
application.  

 
f) Creates a quality and sustainable residential environment in accordance with 

      the space standards set out in appendix C - The proposal exceeds the requirements     
      set out in the space standards and provides a significant amount of living space for   
      the occupants of the 5 bedrooms.  
 

g) Does not contain any units which are wholly in the rear of the property 
       without direct, safe and secure access from the public street - All units have safe and       
       secure access from the front door of the dwelling.  
 

h) Ensures that living rooms, kitchens and bedrooms have access to natural light - All 
habitable rooms in the dwelling have access to natural light.  
 

 
Policy RD3 
Policy RD3 states that planning permission will be granted for conversion or change of use 
of existing buildings for residential use where all the criteria in policy RD1 and all the 
additional criteria below are met:  
 

      a) Any units are self-contained - Officers consider that this criterion is met.  
b) Adequate refuse storage space is provided within the curtilage of the site, large 
enough to allow for the separation of recyclable waste, and is designed to not be 

Page 80



Page 9 of 11 

 
 
 
 
6.9.3 
 
6.9.4 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0.1 
 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3.1 
 
 

visible from the amenity space / public realm - Officers consider that this criterion is 
met. The property will provide 3 refuse bins for general waste, recycling and food 
waste.  
c) The original property is greater than 150 square metres gross internal floorspace 
in the case of sub-division of an existing dwelling - The property is 237.5 sq metres 
in total.  
d) Conversions above commercial premises do not prejudice the commercial 
functions of the business - This criterion is not relevant to this application.  

 
Traffic, Parking and Access 
Officers acknowledge the objections to parking. DFI Roads have no objections to the 
scheme. Whilst the various policy requirements of HOU11 seek to address need and 
protect residential amenity, the provision of car parking is not a requirement of this policy.  
Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements states, ‘Development proposals 
will be required to provide adequate provision for car parking and appropriate servicing 
arrangements’. However, existing Regional Planning Policy and supplementary planning 
guidance, including the published ‘Parking Standards’, do not incorporate car parking as a 
requirement for HMO development.  The applicant has however, following amendments, 
retained the in-curtilage parking space to the rear in the garage and there is ample space 
for cycle storage. Furthermore the site is located in an extremely sustainable location with 
the glider service running alongside the site. In this context adequate provision is 
considered provided to meet TRAN8. 
 
Objectors raised concern regarding parking and parking enforcement, both the PSNI and 
DFI would be responsible for dealing with any congestion or enforcement issues.  
 
Waste and Refuse Collection  
Objectors have alluded to previous issues with bin lorries getting down Oakland Avenue, 
builders’ vehicles which will block the street during construction and build-up of waste in 
the alleyway to the rear of the site which is the main refuse collection point on Oakland 
Avenue.  
 
Policy RD3 criterion B, states that adequate refuse storage space is provided within the 
curtilage of the site, large enough to allow for the separation of recyclable waste and is 
designed to not be visible from the amenity space / public realm. Officers consider that this 
policy is complied with. The alleyway to the rear will continue to host the bins as before. 
The disposal of rubbish is the responsibility of tenants and the landlord. The premises will 
continue to be served by three Council refuse bins for general waste, recycling and food. 
These three bins should be collected in the same manner as before.  
 
Impact on the sewage network 
There is no evidence that change of use from a dwelling to a HMO will cause any issues 
as the dwelling will continue to avail of the main sewage network like other houses in the 
street.  
 
Over-occupation/anti-social behaviour 
Officers consider that the scheme complies with space standards and provides a suitable 
number of bedrooms. The HMO licensing scheme is in place to regulate HMOs. An anti-
social behaviour plan will therefore be in place, and it is the landlord’s responsibility to 
ensure compliance with licensing requirements. Tenants also have responsibilities to make 
sure the landlord can carry out their duties.  
 
The NIHMO Unit within BCC has developed a guide highlighting ways to tackle antisocial 
behaviour linked to their properties. The guide provides preventative measures that 
landlords can take to manage antisocial behaviour, highlights how to demonstrate 

Page 81



Page 10 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
7.3.2 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
 
 
 

compliance by record keeping and intervention, and details how to develop an antisocial 
behaviour plan. The HMO legislation in Northern Ireland has the potential to have a positive 
impact on the lives of those living in HMOs, the owners of HMOs, and the residents 
surrounding HMO properties. 
 
Climate Change  
The proposal will incorporate measures such as improved insulation which will increase 
the energy efficiency of the building. The proposal is also located in a prime location with 
access to public transport.   
 
Summary  
The proposal is acceptable having regard to policies within the Belfast local development 
plan: plan strategy 2035; and paragraphs 6.135, 6.136 and 6.137 of the Strategic Planning 
Policy statement for Northern Ireland 2015 and taking account of all material planning 
considerations.  
 

8.0 Recommendation 

8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 

the wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise provided that they 

are not substantive. 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission. 

 Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

 

DRAFT INFORMATIVES: 
 

1. Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved 
plans and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal 
is unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If 
you would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to 
the contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk. 
 

2. This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know 
when this information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 
weeks for the Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and 
sometimes longer depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this 
when planning the timeline of your project.  
 

3. The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, 
consents or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other 
authorisations may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application 
and can be accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from 
consultees may also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or 
developer. 

 

Page 82

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


Page 11 of 11 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   25/09/2023 

Date First Advertised  06/10/2023 

Date Last Advertised 15/12/2023 
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)  
 
1 OAKLAND AVENUE 
164 UPPER NEWTOWNARDS ROAD 
168 UPPER NEWTOWNARDS ROAD 
170 UPPER NEWTOWNARDS ROAD 
172 UPPER NEWTOWNARDS ROAD 
2 OAKLAND AVENUE 
2A OAKLAND AVENUE 
2B OAKLAND AVENUE 
3 OAKLAND AVENUE 
5 OAKLAND AVENUE 
7 OAKLAND AVENUE 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Addendum 

Application ID:LA04/2022/1384/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: 
Residential development of 10 no. apartments 
within a single building, including demolition of 
existing structures, car parking and relocation 
of existing access, and all other associated 
siteworks.  

Location: 
Lands at 12 Inverary Avenue 
 Sydenham 
  Belfast 
 BT4 1RN 

Referral Route: Through 3.8.2 of the Scheme of delegation where a representation has been 
received which conflicts with the Planning Officer’s recommendation  

Recommendation: Approval   

Applicant Name and Address: 
MINT Properties 
41 Donegall Street 
Belfast 
BT1 2FG 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Campbell Architects Ltd 
50 High Street 
Holywood 
BT18 9AE 

Addendum Report 

This full application was presented to Planning Committee on Tuesday 13th February 2024 and was 

deferred to allow members of the Committee to visit the site. The site visit took place on Tuesday 

12th March.  

Furthermore, following Planning Committee on the 13th February, the outstanding consultation 

response has been received from DFI Rivers Agency who offered no objection subject to the 

addition of the following condition;  

Condition - Prior to the construction of the drainage network, the applicant shall submit a Drainage 

Assessment, compliant with 4.8 and Appendix E of SPG, to be agreed with the Council which 

demonstrates the safe management of any out of sewer flooding emanating from the surface water 

drainage network, agreed under Article 161, in a 1 in 100 year event, including an allowance for 

climate change (10%) and urban creep (10%).  

Reason – In order to safeguard against surface water flood risk. 

This Addendum report should be read in conjunction with the original report to the February 

Committee, which is appended. 

Recommendation 

The case officer recommendation is unchanged. Having regard to the development plan and other 

material considerations, the proposal is considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning 

permission is granted subject to conditions and a Section 76 planning agreement being entered 

into to secure affordable housing.  

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording 

of the conditions and Section 76 planning agreement, and deal with any other issues that arise 

provided that they are not substantive. 

 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7d



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Application ID:LA04/2022/1384/F Committee Meeting Date: 16th February 2024 

Proposal: 
Residential development of 10 no. apartments 
within a single building, including demolition of 
existing structures, car parking and relocation 
of existing access, and all other associated 
siteworks.  

Location: 
Lands at 12 Inverary Avenue 
 Sydenham 
  Belfast 
 BT4 1RN 

Referral Route: Through 3.8.2 of the Scheme of delegation where a representation has been 
received which conflicts with the Planning Officer’s recommendation  

Recommendation: Approval   

Applicant Name and Address: 
MINT Properties 
41 Donegall Street 
 Belfast 
 BT1 2FG 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Campbell Architects Ltd 
50 High Street 
 Holywood 
 BT18 9AE 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full planning permission for a residential development of 10 no. apartments 
within a single building, including demolition of existing structures, car parking and relocation of 
existing access, and all other associated siteworks.  
 
The key issues are: 
 

 Principle of development  

 Design, scale, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area including 
residential amenity  

 Impact on Amenity  

 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix  

 Accessible and Adaptable Accommodation  

 Climate Change 

 Drainage 

 Traffic, Movement and Parking  

 Waste-water Infrastructure  
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including contamination. 

 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered on balance acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject 
to conditions and a Section 76 planning agreement being entered into to secure affordable housing.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of the conditions and Section 76 planning agreement, and deal with any other issues that 
arise, including consideration of the outstanding Rivers Agency consultation, provided that they are 
not substantive. 
 
 
 

Page 86



Officer Report 

1.0 Drawings 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2  

Fig 1. Site Location Plan   

 
 
Fig.2 Proposed Site Layout  

 
 

Page 87



2.0  Characteristics of the Site and Area 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The site is located at 12 Inverary Avenue.  The application site is currently occupied by a 
2 storey detached dwelling and ancillary domestic garage, set within a relatively large plot, 
with existing trees and other vegetation along its boundaries.  An existing vehicular access 
from Inverary Avenue serves the site.  The surrounding area contains a mix of house types 
and densities, which includes detached, semi-detached, terraced and apartment buildings.  
The application site is on the south side of Inverary Avenue and existing buildings on this 
side of the street are 2/2.5 storey in height, and predominately finished in render, red or 
buff brick with grey/blue slat or tiled roofs.  
 

3.0 Description of Proposal 

3.1 
 
 
 

Residential development of 10 no. apartments within a single building, including demolition 
of existing structures, car parking and relocation of existing access, and all other 
associated sitework 

4.0 Planning Policy and Other Material Considerations 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
4.6  

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Other Policies 
Developer Contribution Framework (BCC) 
Belfast Agenda 
Creating Places (DfI) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
 No  significant recent history on the application site.  

5.0 Consultations and Representations 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 

Statutory Consultations 

 DfI Roads – Content subject to conditions   

 DfI Rivers – Content 

 NI Water – Approval 

 DAERA- Concerns raised from Water Regulation Unit and no concerns from the 
Natural Environment Division  

 Shared Environmental Services- Content subject to conditions  
   
 
Non-Statutory Consultations 

 BCC Environmental Health – Content subject to conditions 

 BCC Senior Urban Design Officer– Advice. 

 BCC Trees and Landscape Team- Content subject to conditions  
 
Whilst consultees may have referred to the no longer extant Planning Policy Statements in 
their consultation responses, the equivalent policies in the Plan Strategy are either the 

Page 88



 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

same or sufficiently similar to not require the consultees to re-evaluate the proposal in the 
context of the Plan Strategy. 
 
 
Representations 
 
The application has been advertised and neighbours notified. The Council has received 
the following representations in support and objection. 
 
Objections: 11  
 
The objections raise issues regarding the below:  

 Increased traffic  

 Parking 

 Noise 

 Loss of light and overshadowing  

 Overdevelopment 

 Loss of privacy  

6.0 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 

Development Plan Context 
 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP) when fully completed will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 
comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 
policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 
provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 
zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the 
statutory local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 
Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant 
to consideration of the application. These are listed in the report. 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must 
have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 and 
v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to 
these proposals maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant 
weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its 
advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 
Relevant Planning Policies 
 
The following policies in the Plan Strategy are relevant to consideration of the application. 
 

Page 89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 

Strategic Policies 
Policy SP1A – managing growth and supporting infrastructure delivery 
Policy SP2 – sustainable development 
Policy SP3 – improving health and wellbeing 
Policy SP5 – positive placemaking 
Policy SP6 – environmental resilience 
Policy SP7 – connectivity 
Policy SP8 – green and blue infrastructure network 
 
Spatial Development Strategy 
Policy SD1 – Settlement hierarchy 
Policy SD2 – Settlement Areas 
 
Shaping a Liveable Place  
Policy HOU1 – Accommodating new homes 
Policy HOU2 – Windfall housing 
Policy HOU4 – Density of Residential Development 
Policy HOU5 – Affordable Housing 
Policy HOU6 – Housing Mix 
Policy HOU7 – Adaptable and Accessible Accommodation 
Policy DES1 – Principles of Urban Design 
Policy RD1 – New Residential Developments 
 
Transport 
Policy TRAN1 – Active travel – walking and cycling 
Policy TRAN 2 – Creating an accessible environment 
Policy TRAN4 – Travel plan  
Policy TRAN6 – Access to public roads  
Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements  
Policy TRAN10- Design of Car Parking  
 
Building a Smart Connected and Resilient Place  
Policy ENV1 – Environmental Quality 
Policy ENV2 – Mitigating Environmental Change 
Policy ENV3 – Adapting to Environmental Change 
Policy ENV4 – Flood Risk 
Policy ENV5 – Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 
Promoting a Green and Active Place 
Policy OS1 – Protection of Open Space  
Policy OS3 – Ancillary Open Space  
Policy TRE1 – Trees 
Policy LC1 – Landscape 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance  
 
Affordable Housing and Housing Mix 
Residential Design 
Placemaking and Urban Design 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems  
Transportation 
Trees and Development 
 
Key Issues 
The key issues are: 

Page 90



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
6.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.11 
 
 
 
6.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Principle of development  

 Design, scale, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area 
including residential amenity  

 Impact on Amenity  

 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix  

 Accessible and Adaptable Accommodation  

 Climate Change 

 Drainage 

 Traffic, Movement and Parking  

 Waste-water Infrastructure  
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including contamination 

 
 
The adoption of the Plan Strategy requires the following updated assessment.  
 
Additional Information 
Officers requested that the applicant provides a “Plan Strategy Statement” that sets out 
how the proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Plan Strategy. Where the 
proposal does not meet the policy requirements, the applicant was asked to either modify 
the proposal or justify why they are not proposing to change the proposal. The applicant 
has subsequently provided a Plan Strategy Statement, which seeks to demonstrate 
compliance with the relevant policies.  
 
The Planning Service’s Plans and Policy team has been consulted on the applicant’s Plan 
Strategy. No further consultations have been considered necessary following adoption of 
the Plan Strategy. 
 
Principle of development 
The site is located within the development limit in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 and 
both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004 and v2014).  The 
site is also designated as white land within the draft Belfast Metropolitan Plan 2015 (v2004 
and v2014).  The presumption is therefore in favour of development subject to planning 
considerations detailed below. 
 
The proposal is complaint with Policy HOU1, accommodating new homes as it will meet 
the delivery of housing supply in the Belfast City Council area. Policy HOU2, Windfall 
Housing is also met as the proposal is situated on previously developed land and is 
currently white land within the BMAP 2004 and 2015 versions.  The proposed scheme is 
considered to be a suitable site for an apartment scheme, it is accessible and convenient 
to public transport and walking and cycling infrastructure.  
 
Design, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area including 
residential amenity: 
 
Policy RD1 seeks to promote quality residential development that creates places that are 
attractive, locally distinctive, and appropriate to their surroundings.  The proposal is 
compliant with Policy RD1 of the Plan Strategy 2035 and meets the below criteria:  
 

a. Will not create conflict with adjacent land uses, remaining in conformity with the 
character of any established residential area: 
Inverary Avenue contains an eclectic range of development types and architectural 
styles.  The scale of development on the southern side of the street is relatively 
consistent at 2 or 2.5 storey.  Roof profiles vary but are mainly double pitched.  The 
proposal is approximately 10.42m in height to the ridge and ties in with the 

Page 91



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

surrounding apartment developments.  The proposal responds positively to the 
context and character of the area by respecting the established building line, scale 
and form of development found in the area.  The materials to be used are select 
facing brick with a light grey colour to ground floor and off-white to first and second 
floor.  This is considered to tie in with the surrounding are as there is a mix of red 
brick and rendered dwellings/apartment blocks.  
 .  

 
b. Does not unduly affect the privacy of amenity of neighbouring residents, including 

overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, dominance, noise or other disturbance: 
 
Concerns have been raised with regards to overlooking and loss of privacy.  
However, the layout/aspect of the building within the site is such that there will be 
no significant overlooking into neighbouring properties.  No adverse impacts will 
incur on the amenity of the neighbouring residents, there are no upper floor 
windows on the south-eastern elevations looking towards No.10.  Views from the 
north-eastern facing windows towards the neighbouring apartments on that side 
are screened by the retained vegetation.  A separation distance of over 30m is 
provided to the dwelling to the rear, with mature vegetation acting as a natural 
buffer/screen between the two sites. It is considered that the design, layout and 
separation distances proposed are acceptable and will not impinge on residential 
amenity via overlooking, dominance, loss of light or overshadowing.  

 
c. Makes provision for, or is accessible and convenient to public transport and walking 

and cycling infrastructure  
 
The development site is located within walking distance from bus stops along 
Inverary Avenue and Holywood Road which are accessible through footpaths to the 
front of the site.  There are also cycle lanes along the Holywood Road.  
  

d. Provides adequate open space: 
The proposal includes 222sqm of communal open space within the curtilage of the 
site, equating to 22.2sqm per unit which is in line with the guidance in Creating 
Places.  In addition to this, private defensible space is located at ground floor level, 
directly adjacent to the building, to serve apartments 1-3, whilst additional private 
amenity areas are proposed to the rear boundary of the site, to offer areas to grow 
plants or vegetables to service the dwellings on the upper floors.  In addition to this 
there are various public open space, recreation and leisure facilities within close 
proximity of the application site, including the Alderman Tommy Patton Memorial 
Park, an extensive area of open space with a children’s play park, dog walking 
areas, and sporting facilities.  This is approximately a 5-minute walk from the site 
(google maps).  

 
e. Keeps hard surfacing to a minimum  

Car parking is considered to not dominate the residential development as parking 
is provided on street   
 

f. Creates a quality and sustainable residential environment in accordance with the 
space standards set out in appendix C.  
 
The apartment schedule is as follows:  
APT 1- (3P2B) 63sqm  
APT 2- (3P2B) 63sqm 
APT 3- (2B1P) 64.3sqm 
APT 4- (3P2B) 63sqm  

Page 92



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.15 
 
 
 
6.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.18 
 
 
 
 
 

AP5 5- (3P2B) 63sqm 
APT 6- (3P2B) 62.4sqm 
APT 7- (3P2B) 66sqm 
APT 8- (2P1B) 55.2 sqm 
APT 9- (2P1B) 54.6sqm 
APT 10- (3P2B) 70.6sqm 
 
The proposed scheme is in keeping with the space standards as set out in appendix 
C.   
 

g. Does not contain units which are wholly in the rear of the property, without direct, 
safe and secure access form the public street; and  
All apartments are accessed via the main parking area, which offers a safe private 
environment adjacent to the primary entrance.  The area will be well supervised 
and dwellings that are positioned and orientated towards the rear of the plot benefits 
from a close relationship to adjacent amenity, whilst being surrounded by well-
defined areas of landscaping, and in close proximity to active car parking areas.  
Each dwelling benefits from direct, safe and secure access via the private driveway 
within the scheme, from the public street.  Suitable private lighting will be provided 
to ensure a well-lit, inviting access route to the building from the adopted road.  
 

h. Ensures that living rooms, kitchens and bedrooms have access to natural light  
In terms of prospective residents, each unit has adequate outlook. All apartments 
benefit from adequate outlook and access to natural light.  

  
 
Further to policy RD1, the proposal complies with the criteria set out in A-K of Policy DES 
1- Principles of Urban Design in that the scheme is of a high quality, sustainable design 
and makes a positive contribution to placemaking.   
 
Climate change 
Policy ENV2 of the Plan Strategy states that planning permission will be granted for 
development that incorporates measures to mitigate environmental change and reduce 
greenhouse gases by promoting sustainable patterns of development. All new 
development proposals will maximise opportunities to incorporate sustainable design 
features where feasible (such as grey water recycling, green roofs, maximising use of 
recycled materials, orientating buildings to optimise solar gain, energy efficiency). 
Development proposals should, where appropriate, demonstrate the highest feasible and 
viable sustainability standards in the design, construction, and operation.  
 
ENV2 also states that development proposals should, where feasible, seek to avoid 
demolition and should consider how their main structures could be reused. The proposal 
involves the demolition of an existing property.  The applicant has stated that the site could 
not feasibly accommodate 10 no. apartments on the existing site.  The height and layout 
of the existing building would not lend itself to a conversion and an extension would not be 
capable of accommodating 10 no. apartments.  Demolition of the existing building is 
therefore necessary to deliver the proposed development and to ensure the most efficient 
land use on site.  The applicant has clearly demonstrated that waste materials from the 
demolition will be reused and recycled.  This will range from the retention and reuse of 
material on site, to the removal of demolished material for use on other suitable schemes 
within the local area.  
 
On balance, the council are satisfied that the existing building is not fit for the purpose of a 
new residential apartment scheme.   In conclusion, the existing building is not viable or 

Page 93



6.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.20 
 
 
 
6.21 
 
 
 
 
6.22 
 
 
 
 
 
6.23 
 
 
 
 
6.24 
 
 
 
6.25 
 
 
 
 
6.26 
 
 
6.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

suitable for redevelopment.  The proposed demolition is necessary to facilitate the 
proposal. 
 
The applicant has submitted a Climate Change Statement setting out that the following 
features are incorporated into the design to comply with both ENV2, ENV3 and ENV5: 

 The drainage assessment includes SuDs proposals- underground storage, 
permeable paving, porous surface finishes and trees and landscaping.  The 
applicant has stated that the site is very limited in relation to the land available to 
provide surface-based SUDs features, and as such, these will be introduced where 
feasible.  

 

 The proposed building will be designed at detailed design stage, to be constructed 
using a fabric first approach aim to minimise the need for energy consumption 
through methods such as- maximising air-tightness, increased levels of insulation, 
optimising solar gain through the provision of openings and shading, optimising 
natural ventilation and using thermal mass of the building fabric.  

 
A total of 20 trees and shrubs are to be retained on site.  Therefore, on balance the proposal 
is considered to mitigate and adapt to climate change and comply with Policy TRE1.  
 
The proposal is considered on balance to satisfy the requirements as set out in ENV2, 
ENV3 and ENV5 of the Plan Strategy.  A pre commencement condition is proposed to 
ensure delivery of the above measures and that soft landscaping within the site introduces 
SuDS measures to partially meet ENV3 and comply with ENV 5.  
 
Density of Residential Development 
Policy HOU4 sets density bands to be used as a guide to inform proposed developments 
within the relevant settlement/character areas and states development proposals outside 
of these broad bands will be considered on their merits, subject to meeting all other policy 
requirements. 
 
The application is for a total of 10 units and given the site area, the proposed density 
equates to around 66dph which falls within the average density band for Inner City Belfast 
Character Area. The proposed density is therefore considered appropriate in the context 
of the lower density setting in the existing area.  
 
Affordable housing and Housing Mix 
HOU5- Affordable Housing of the of the Plan Strategy 2035 states that planning permission 
will be granted for residential development on sites greater than 0.1 hectares and or more 
dwelling units where a minimum of 20% of units are provided as affordable housing.   
 
The applicant has provided one 2 bed 3 person, and one 1 bed 2 person apartments for 
social rented housing which meets the definition of affordable housing. The delivery and 
monitoring of the DMR units will require a Section 76 planning agreement and delegated 
authority is requested to allow officers to finalise this.  
 
The application is considered to comply with HOU5 of the Plan Strategy subject to the 
S.76.  
 
Further to this, Policy HOU6 applies. It requires that provision should be made for small 
homes across all tenures to meet future household requirements and that the exact mix of 
house types and sizes will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis, taking account of: 
 

a. Up to date analysis of prevailing housing need in the area; 

Page 94



6.28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.30 
 
6.31 
 
 
6.32 
 
 
 
6.33 
 
 
 
 
6.34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. The location and size of the site; 
c. Specific characteristics of the development; and 
d. The creation of balanced and sustainable communities 

The development contains a mix of one- and two-bedroom apartments.  A total of ten units 
are proposed with seven 2-bed, 3 person units, two, 1 bed, 2 person units and one, 1 bed, 
2-person unit as accessible. With regards to the affordable units as described above, the 
NIHE has informed the applicant that this area is in need of one and two bed apartments 
to meet the needs of single adults and small family occupants.  The proposal offers a 
suitable mix of house types and sizes to promote choice and assist in the surrounding 
community needs.    
 
Adaptable and Accessible Housing  
Policy HOU7 requires that all new homes should be designed in a flexible way to ensure 
that housing is adaptable throughout all stages of life. Policy HOU7 sets six criteria (a. to 
f.) to be met in order to help deliver adaptable and accessible homes. The policy also 
requires that at least 10% of units in residential developments of 10 units or more to be 
wheelchair accessible and provides an additional nine criteria (g. to o.) which these units 
must meet.  The applicant has provided evidence to demonstrate that the proposal is in 
accordance with criteria a. to f.  In addition to this, the applicant has provided one adaptable 
and accessible unit on the ground floor to comply with criteria g. to, o.     
 
Access, movement, and parking  
 
The proposal has been assessed against the following policies TRAN 1, TRAN 6, TRAN 
8, TRAN 10. 
 
TRAN 1 is met in that cycle parking has been provided to the rear of the apartment 
development.  In addition, it is proposed that provision will be made to provide able routes 
for future introduction of EV charging points to each parking space.  
 
Policy TRAN 6- DfI Roads were consulted and is satisfied that parking on-street is unlikely 
to have a significant impact on the local road network in terms of traffic and road safety. 
The means of access to the development would be safe. There is sufficient parking 
available having regard to the location and sustainability of the site.   
 
Policy TRAN 8- Car Parking and Servicing Arrangements.  It is considered that adequate 
parking has been provided for the proposal.  1 no. parking space has been provided per 
apartment, with the inclusion of one accessible parking space located in close proximity to 
the primary entrance to the apartment building.  This is considered adequate, given the 
location and choice of other transport modes available and the Travel Plan, which will 
promote alternative forms of transport to the use of private cars.  It has also been 
demonstrated in the submitted TAF and Parking Statement that there is also adequate 
spare capacity on-street available to accommodate any possible overspill of parking from 
the development. 
 
Policy TRAN 10 has been met in that the design of car parking meets the following criteria:  

a. It respects the character of the local townscape/landscape as the majority of 
parking is to the rear of the building.  The extent of parking retained at the front of 
the property is consider consistent with other development in the area and is screed 
by the retained vegetation along the site frontage.  

b. It will not adversely affect visual and residential amenity as it is extensively 
screened from view of the street scene.  

c. Provision has been made for security, and the direct and safe access and 
movement of pedestrians and cyclists within the site as all parking is overlooked 
and located adjacent to, or within a short distance of, the entrance to the building.  

Page 95



 
6.36 
 
 
6.37 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.38 
 
 
 
 
6.39 
 
 
 
 
 
6.40 
 
 
 
 
 
6.41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.42 
 
 
 
 
6.43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.44 
 
 
 
 

d. Provision of one parking space has been made for accessible parking bays which 
facilitate safe, convenient access for people with a disability or impaired mobility.  
 

. 
The proposal is considered complaint to Policies, TRAN 1, 2, 4, 6, 8 and 10.  
 
 
Drainage  
Policy ENV4 states that planning applications in flood risk areas must be accompanied by 
an assessment of the flood risk in the form of a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA). The council 
will have regard to guidance publications produced by other authorities and prospective 
developers/applicants are advised to liaise early in the formulation of their proposals with 
DfI Rivers to clarify flooding or flood plain issues that may affect particular sites. In all 
circumstances, the council will adopt a precautionary approach in assessing development 
proposals in areas that may be subject to flood risk presently or in the future as a result of 
environmental change predictions.  
 
DfI Rivers is currently considering additional information from the applicant.  Delegated 
authority is therefore requested to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
any conditions and resolve any matters arising from the outstanding consultation response 
from DfI Rivers in the event this is not received prior to Committee.  
 
Waste-water infrastructure 
NI Water have advised that if a solution is agreed between the developer and NIW, they 
will be in a position to change their response to a positive one.  The applicant has submitted 
further information to demonstrate that a solution has been found, however we are awaiting 
confirmation from NI Water.  
 
NIW is currently considering additional information from the applicant.  Delegated authority 
is therefore requested to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
conditions and resolve any matters arising from the outstanding consultation response from 
NIW in the event this is not received prior to Committee. 
 
 
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including Contamination  
Policy ENV1 states that planning permission will be granted for development that will 
maintain and, where possible, enhance environmental quality, and protects communities 
from materially harmful development. The proposed development has been assessed by 
Environmental Health in terms of noise, air pollution, general amenity, ambient air quality, 
contaminated land, and other considerations.  
 
Contaminated land 
Environmental Health (EH) is of the opinion that past land-use on or in close proximity to 
this proposed development will not cause a potential impact on the health of the future 
occupants of the proposed development.   
 
Air quality 
EH has reviewed the proposal with regards to air quality and has requested that in order 
to determine if an Air Quality Impact Assessment will be required for the proposed 
development, the service would request that technical information on the proposed 
centralised combustion plant be provided to the Planning Service and therefore request 
that consideration is given the this through a condition.  
 
Noise 
EH offered no objection with regards to noise impacts from the development.  

Page 96



6.45 
 
 
 
6.46 
 

 
The proposal is therefore considered to accord with Policy ENV1. 
 
Representations: 
Eleven objections raise issues regarding increased traffic, parking, noise, loss of light and 
overshadowing, overdevelopment and loss of privacy.  
 
These issues have been fully assessed above; however, the application is considered 
acceptable for the reasons set out in the above assessment. 
 

7.0 Recommendation 

7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered on balance acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted 
subject to conditions and a S.76 planning agreement to secure 20% affordable housing.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
the wording of the conditions and Section 76 planning agreement, and deal with any other 
issues that arise, including consideration of the outstanding Rivers Agency consultation, 
provided that they are not substantive. 
 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission. 

 Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2. No dwelling shall be occupied until weather protected cycle parking has been fully provided in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Reason:  To ensure acceptable cycle parking facilities on the site and to encourage alternative 
modes of transport to the private car. 
 

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until hard surfaced areas have been 
constructed within the site in accordance with the approved plan.  This area shall not be used 
at any time for any purpose other than for parking and movement of vehicles in connection with 
the approved development.  

Reason: To ensure that adequate provision has been made for parking and traffic circulation 
within the site. 
 

4. The vehicular access, including visibility splays, shall be provided in accordance with the 
approved plan, prior to the commencement of any other works or other development hereby 
permitted 
 

Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety and 

the convenience of road users. 

 

5. The development shall not be occupied until secure and covered cycle parking facilities have 
been provided on the site. These facilities shall be permanently retained on the site.  
 

Page 97



Reason: To ensure acceptable cycle parking on the site and to encourage alternative modes 

of transport to the private car. 

 

6. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until all existing redundant accesses 
have been closed off to the satisfaction of DfI Roads. 
 

 Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road safety and 

the convenience of road users. 

 

7. The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved Travel Plan. 

Reason: To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport to the private car in 
accordance with the Transportation Principles. 
 

8. In the event that any centralised combustion sources (boilers, CHP or biomass) are proposed 
and there is a risk of impact at relevant receptor locations as per the criteria detailed within the 
Environmental Protection UK and Institute of Air Quality Management, Land-Use Planning & 
Development Control: Planning for Ai Quality (January 2017), this Service would request that 
an updated Air Quality Impact Assessment be submitted in writing to the Planning Authority for 
review and approval.  Where the Air Quality Impact Assessment indicates exceedances of air 
quality objectives, appropriate mitigation measures shall be presented and these mitigation 
measures shall be installed and retained thereafter.  
 

Reason: Protection of Human Health  

 

9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a landscape management 
plan shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the council. The landscape management 
plan should detail all soft landscaping including species, size and type, and include details of 
appropriate SUDs measures to assist in minimising flood risk. All agreed landscaping and 
SUDs measures shall thereafter be retained and managed as agreed. 

 
Reason: In the interests of mitigating against environmental change.    
 

10. All hard and/or soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the above 
approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. Any existing or proposed trees 
or plants indicated on the approved plans which, within a period of five years from the date of 
planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be replaced 
during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a location, species and size, details 
of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. All hard 
surface treatment of open parts of the site shall be permeable or drained to a permeable area. 
All hard landscape works shall be permanently retained in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 
 

11. All trees and planting within the site shall be retained unless shown on the approved drawings 
as being removed. Any retained trees or planting indicated on the approved drawings which 
become seriously damaged, diseased, or dying, shall be replaced during the next planting 
season (October to March inclusive) with other trees or plants of a location, species and size 
to be first approved in writing by the Council. 

Page 98



 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 

12. All landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details on drawing 
no 14, uploaded to the planning portal on 05/02/2024 . The works shall be carried out prior to 
the completion of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. Any 
trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five years from the 
date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be 
replaced during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a location, species and 
size, details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Council. 
 

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area 

 

13. Prior to any work commencing all protective barriers (fencing) and ground protection is to be 
erected or installed as specified in British Standard 5837: 2012 (section 6.2) on any trees / 
hedging to be retained within the site and must be in place before any materials or machinery 
are brought onto site for demolition, development, or soil stripping. Protective fencing must 
remain in place until all work is completed and all associated materials and equipment are 
removed from site. 
 

Reason: To ensure the protection of, and to ensure the continuity of amenity afforded by any 

existing trees to be retained within the site and on adjacent lands. 

 

14. No storage of materials, parking of vehicles or plant, temporary buildings, sheds, offices or 
fires within the RPA of trees within the site and adjacent lands during the construction period. 
 

Reason: To avoid compaction within the RPA. 

                    
DRAFT INFORMATIVES: 
 

1. This decision relates to the following approved drawing numbers: 01 02 03A 04A 05 06 07 08 
09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 

2. Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved plans 
and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal is 
unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If you 
would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to the 
contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk. 
 

3. This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted to 
and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know when this 
information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 weeks for the 
Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and sometimes longer 

Page 99

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this when planning the 
timeline of your project.  
 

4. The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, consents 
or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other authorisations 
may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application and can be 
accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from consultees may 
also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or developer. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ANNEX 

 
Date Valid   05/08/2022 

Date First Advertised  10/03/2023 

Date Last Advertised 02/03/2023 
 

Flat 8, 14a Inverary Avenue  
39 Inverary Avenue 
33 Inverary Avenue 
24 Inverwood Gardens 
24 Inverary Avenue  
Flat 1, 14b Inverary Avenue 
3 Inverary Avenue 
16 Inverwood Gardens 
Flat 6, 14a Inverary Avenue 
Flat 9, 14b Inverary Avenue 
18 Inverwood Gardens 
14 Inverwoood Gardens 
Flat 3, 14a Inverary Avenue 
12 Inverary Avenue 
10 Inverary Avenue  
Flat 4, 14a Inverary Aevnue 
24a Inverary Avenue  
2 Inverary Avenue 
26 Inverwood Gardens  
21 Inverary Avenue 
Flat 8 14b Inverary Aevnue  
Flat 9 14a Inverary Aevnue 
14 Inverary Avenue 
25 Inverary Avenue  
Flat 1, 14a Inverary Aevnue  
20 Inverwood Gardens  
Flat 6, 14b Inverary Avenue  
Flat 3, 14b Inverary Avenue 
Flat 5, 14a Inverary Avenue 
6b Inverary Avenue  
8 Inverary Avenue  

Page 100



Flat 4, 14b Inverary Avenue  
31 Inverary Avenue 
Flat 7, 14b Inverary Avenue 
Flat 7, 14a Inverary Avenue 
20 Inverwood Gardens 
41 Inverary Avenue 
Flat 5, 14b Inverary Avenue 
27 Inverary Avenue  
20 Inverary Avenue 
1 Inverary Avenue 
43 Inverary Avenue 
23 Inverary Avenue 
Flat 2, 14a Inverary Avenue 
Flat 2, 14b Inverary Avenue 
22 Inverwood Gardens 
37 Inverary Avenue 
35 Inverary Avenue 
19 Inverary Avenue 
29 Inverary Avenue  
 

 
 
 

 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Addendum 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/3481/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling to 6 
bed HMO (sui generis) 
 

Location: 
272 Limestone Road, Belfast, BT15 3AR 

Referral Route: Paragraph 3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation – request to be reported to 
Planning Committee by Elected Member (Cllr Conor Maskey) 
 

Recommendation:  Approval subject to condition 

Applicant Name and Address: 
JJ McWilliams Property LTD  
113 Cavehill Road  
Belfast  
BT15 5BJ 

Agent Name and Address: 
Ally Olphert 
Create Architecture 
Blick Studios 
51 Malone Road 
Belfast 
 

Addendum Report 

This full application was presented to Planning Committee on Tuesday 13th February 2024 and was 

deferred to allow members of the Committee to visit the site. The site visit took place on Tuesday 

12th March 2024.  

Two additional representations were received following the publication of the initial committee report 

(attached) comprising one letter of support and one letter of objection. The letter of support states 

that the proposal provides high quality affordable housing options. The letter of objection raises 

issues raised regarding sewage, parking and anti-social behaviour. These matters were raised in 

previous objections and have been considered in the Committee report appended.  

Recommendation 

The case officer recommendation is unchanged. Having regard to the development plan and other 

material considerations, the proposal is considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning 

permission is granted subject to conditions.  

 

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording 

of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise provided that they are not substantive. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 7e



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 2 of 11 

 
 
 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/3481/F Committee Meeting Date: 13th February 2024 

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling to 6 
bed HMO (sui generis) 
 

Location: 
272 Limestone Road, Belfast, BT15 3AR 

Referral Route: Paragraph 3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation – request to be reported to 
Planning Committee by Elected Member (Cllr Conor Maskey) 
 

Recommendation:  Approval subject to condition 

Applicant Name and Address: 
JJ McWilliams Property LTD  
113 Cavehill Road  
Belfast  
BT15 5BJ 

Agent Name and Address: 
Ally Olphert 
Create Architecture 
Blick Studios 
51 Malone Road 
Belfast 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
This application seeks full planning permission for Change of use from dwelling to a 6 Bed House 
in Multiple Occupation. The site is No. 272 Limestone Road. 
 
The key issues are: 

 The principle of an HMO at this location 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 

 Impact on residential amenity 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  
 
26 objections have been received with the issues raised addressed within the main report.  
26 letters of support have been received and will be addressed within the main report.  

 
The application has been called in for the following reasons: 
 

1) The application may negatively effect parking and traffic in the street (and surrounding 
area) and; 

2) The application may have a negative impact on the character of the street (and 
surrounding area). 

 
The scheme is compliant with Policy HOU10 in that the 10% threshold for HMO’s on this stretch of 
the Limestone Road has not yet been reached. Officers consider that the scheme will not be harmful 
in terms of traffic, parking, impact on amenity of the surrounding area or the Alexandra Park Area 
of Townscape Character.  
 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 

Page 104



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 3 of 11 

conditions. Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
the wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they are not 
substantive. 
 

 

 Officer Report 

1.0 Drawings 

1.1 Site Location 

 
 
Existing Floor Plans and Elevations  

 
 
 

Page 105



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 4 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposed Floor Plans 
 

 
Please note there are no external alterations proposed.  
 

2.0  Characteristics of the Site and Area 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 

The application site is located at 272 Limestone Road. The property is a 2.5 storey 
residential terrace with a two-storey rear return. There is a small, enclosed amenity space 
to the rear of the building, accessed by a gate from a rear service alley located on Oceanic 
Avenue. The immediate area is predominantly residential.  
 
The site falls within the development limit as set out in the BUAP 2001 and draft BMAP 
2015. In the draft BMAP 2015, the site is located within a proposed Area of Townscape 
Character, Alexandra Park. The site does not fall within any of the existing HMO Policy 
Areas or Development Nodes as designated in the Belfast HMO Subject Plan 2015.  
 

3.0 Description of Proposal 

3.1 The application is seeking full planning permission to change of use to dwelling to 6 bed 
HMO (sui generis).  
 

4.0 Planning Policy and Other Material Considerations 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 

Page 106



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 5 of 11 

 
 

Z/2004/1765/F - 234-274 (evens only) Limestone Road, 1-39 (odds only) Lothair Avenue, 
12-34 (evens only) Oceans Avenue, Belfast BT15 - Proposed group repair scheme to 
include provision of new dormers in place of rooflights and alterations to front bays. – 
Decision: Permission Granted. 
 

5.0 Consultations and Representations 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.2 
 
5.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statutory Consultations 
DfI Roads – No objections 
 
Non-Statutory Consultations 
BCC Plans & Policy Team – No objections. HMO considered acceptable at this location.  
 
Representations 
 
The application has been advertised and neighbours notified. The Council has received 52 
letters of representations. 26 letters of objections and 26 letters of support have been 
received. The issues raised in the objections are summarised as follows:  
 

1. Parking, traffic, road safety. 
2. Waste and refuse collection 
3. Adverse impact on the sewage network 
4. Anti-social behaviour/noise 
5. Negative impact on the character of the area  
6. Adverse visual impact/anti-social behaviour/noise pollution 
7. Precedent for further HMOs in the area 
8. Impact on the provision of family homes in the area  
9. 2 properties being potentially used as alternative uses.  
10. Newington community being eroded.  
11. Safety and Fire Hazard 

 
Issues 1-3, 5-8 and 10 are addressed in the main body of the report.  
 
Additional points are considered as follows: 
 
4. Anti-social behaviour/noise 
Officers consider that the scheme complies with space standards and provides a suitable 
number of bedrooms. The HMO licensing scheme is in place to regulate HMOs. An anti-
social behaviour plan will be in place as part of the HMO licensing process, and it is the 
landlord’s responsibility to ensure compliance with licensing requirements. Tenants also 
have responsibilities to make sure the landlord can carry out their duties.  
 
The NIHMO Unit within BCC has developed a guide highlighting ways to tackle antisocial 
behaviour linked to their properties. The guide provides preventative measures that 
landlords can take to manage antisocial behaviour, highlights how to demonstrate 
compliance by record keeping and intervention, and details how to develop an antisocial 
behaviour plan. The HMO legislation in Northern Ireland has the potential to have a positive 
impact on the lives of those living in HMOs, the owners of HMOs, and the residents 
surrounding HMO properties. 
 
9. 2 properties being potentially used as alternative uses-  
The representations refer to an application for a short term let, planning reference 
(LA04/2022/1831/F) This has been assessed against a different policy context, and is 
therefore not a like-like comparison for this proposed use. Use of this property as a short 
term let (suis generis use) would require planning permission in its own right. Planning 
application LA04/2022/1831/F for Change of Use from Residential to short term stay 

Page 107



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 6 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.4 
 
 
 
 
 

accommodation at 258 Limestone Road was refused on 04 December 2023, which is the 
subject of an appeal. 
 
11. Fire and Safety Hazards: 
This is outside the remit of planning and not relevant to the assessment of the application 
as fire and safety hazards are dealt with under the Building Control regulations.  
 
26 Letters of support were received. The issues raised in the letters of support are 
summarised as follows: 
 

1. Brings benefits to the community.  
2. Address housing demand/shortages. 
3. Economic Benefits. 
4. Creating local houses.  
5. Lack of residential accommodation/ helps the housing crisis/flexible housing option. 
6. HMOs are highly regulated.  
7. Planning legislation/policy carefully considers over saturation. 

 

6.0 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

6.1 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Plan Context 
 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP), when fully completed, will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP 
will comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and 
operational policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, 
which will provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been 
published. The zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain 
part of the statutory local development plan (“Departmental Development Plan”) until the 
Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 
Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies 
relevant to consideration of the application, which are set out in the following section of 
this report. The Plan Strategy replaces the operational policies previously provided by the 
Departmental Planning Policy Statements (PPSs). Those policies no longer have effect, 
irrespective of whether planning applications have been received before or after the 
adoption date (par. 1.11 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement). 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council 
must have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 
(v2004 and v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be 
afforded to these proposals is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that 
significant weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) 
given its advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. The site is located within the settlement 
development limit in the BUAP and is not zoned for any use. In draft BMAP 2015 (v2004) 

Page 108



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 7 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
6.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.3 
 
6.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6..4 
 
6.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4.3 
 
 

the site is located within the settlement development limits of Belfast and within a 
proposed Area of Townscape Character – Alexandra Park (Ref: BT 030). In draft BMAP 
2015 (v2014) the site is also located within the settlement development limits of Belfast 
and within a proposed Area of Townscape Character – Alexandra Park (Ref: BT 013). 
The site is not located in a Housing Policy Area or a HMO Development Node in the 
Belfast HMO Subject Plan 2015. 
 
Relevant Planning Policies 
 
The following policies in the Plan Strategy are relevant to consideration of the application. 
 

 Policy SD2 – Settlement Areas 

 Policy HOU10 - Housing Management Areas 

 Policy RD1 – New residential developments 

 Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements 

 Policy ENV1 – Environmental quality 

 Policy OS3 – Ancillary open space 

 Policy BH3 – Area of townscape character  
 
Key Issues 
 
The key issues to be considered in this application are: 
 

 The principle of an HMO at this location 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 

 Impact on residential amenity 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  
 
The principle of an HMO at this location 
 
The site is outside Housing Policy Areas and development nodes as designated in the 
Belfast HMO Subject Plan 2015. Policy HOU10 of the Plan Strategy is applicable and 
states that: 
 
‘Outside of designated HMAs planning permission will only be granted for HMOs where the 
number of HMOs would not as a result exceed 10% of all dwelling units on that road or 
street. Where such a street is in excess of 600 metres in length, the 10% threshold will be 
calculated on the basis of existing residential units within 300 metres of either side of the 
proposal on that street’. 
 
The justification and amplification text to Policy HOU10 confirms at paragraph 7.1.66 that 
the level of HMOs outside a HMA will be measured by adding together: 
 
1. The number of HMOs recorded under the HMO Licensing scheme; and 
2. The number of planning approvals for HMOs not yet licensed, 
 
with the total then divided by the total number of dwelling units within the street. If a street 
is longer than 600, the total number of dwellings in the street will relate to the total 
properties within 300m either side of the property on the street. 
 
As Limestone Road is greater than 600m in length, the assessment is based on the stretch 
of road which falls between Antrim Road/Cliftonville Road (HMO 4/03) HMO Development 
Node and Mileriver Street, (excluding properties within Atlantic (HMO 2/02) Policy Area 

Page 109



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 8 of 11 

 
 
 
6.4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4.5 
 
 
 
 
6.4.6 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
6.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
6.6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

where different policies apply) and the properties with addresses at Camberwell Terrace 
and The Glen.  
 
The LPS Pointer Address database indicates that there are 88 domestic properties on this 
stretch of Limestone Road. Following the methodology outlined above, the HMO Licence 
Register and Planning records show there are no HMOs on this stretch of the street. The 
proposal for a change of use from dwelling to HMO would not result in an exceedance of 
the 10% threshold and is therefore considered compliant with Policy HOU 10 and is 
acceptable in principle at this location. 
 
Concerns were raised that the proposals would set a precedent for further HMOs in the 
area. Each application is considered on its own merits. Officers consider that this scheme 
is compliant with relevant policy for the reasons stated in the report and any further 
applications for HMOs will be assessed in accordance with the relevant planning policy. 
 
Paragraph 7.1.69. of HOU10 states that in all cases, intensive forms of housing whether 
within or outside HMAs will still be carefully assessed against the relevant criteria set out 
in Policies RD1, RD2 and RD3. The assessment of the proposal against these policies is 
set out below. 
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 
 
The site is located within a draft ATC Alexandra Park which is characterised by inner city 
2 and 3 bedroom Victorian red brick terraced dwellings. No external changes are proposed 
to the dwelling and the proposal will not create conflict with the character of Alexandra Park 
draft ATC and the overall character of the area will be maintained. The proposal is 
considered to comply with Policy BH3 - Areas of townscape character. 
 
Impact on residential amenity 
 
The property is a large 3 storey dwelling and is an appropriate size to accommodate an 
HMO, comfortably providing accommodation for 6 people whilst still meeting the space 
standards.  The proposal complies with the HMO space standards for a 6 bed HMO as set 
out within Belfast Local Development Plan: 2035. The proposal would provide a quality and 
sustainable residential environment. 
 
Policy RD1 applies as set out above and states that ‘planning permission will be granted 
for new residential development where it is in accordance with general urban design 
policies and where it is demonstrated that the proposal:  
 

a) Will not create conflict with adjacent land uses, remaining in conformity with 
      the character of any established residential areas - Officers consider that the use    
      does not conflict with adjacent land uses. The scheme meets the policy requirements    
      set out in HOU10 and RD1 & RD3. The HMO licensing scheme also seeks to ensure  

 that landlords are compliant with regulations, such as the number of occupants and    
provision of sufficient bin storage.  

 
b) Does not unduly affect the privacy or amenity of neighbouring residents, 

      including overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, dominance, noise or other 
      disturbance - Officers consider that the scheme will not give rise to any of the issues.      
      listed in criterion b. Overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing and dominance will not            

be changing from what is existing. Noise or other disturbance will be addressed by the 
anti-social behaviour plan which is a licensing requirement. 

 
c) Makes provision for, or is, accessible and convenient to public transport and 

Page 110



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 9 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.6.4 
 
 
 
6.6.5 
 
 
 
 
6.6.6 
 
 
 
 
 

walking and cycling infrastructure - There is sufficient space for cycle parking. Metro 
services are available along the Limestone Road.  

 
d) Provides appropriate open space - The existing rear amenity space is to be retained 
which is considered sufficient to serve the proposal. The site is located in close 
proximity and has good access to existing open space infrastructure at Alexandra Park 
and the Waterworks. 

 
e) Keeps hard surfacing to a minimum - No hard standing is proposed as part of this 
application.  

 
f) Creates a quality and sustainable residential environment in accordance with 

      the space standards set out in appendix C - The proposal exceeds the requirements     
      set out in the space standards and provides a generous amount of living space for   
      the occupants of the 6 bedrooms. The proposal therefore complies with the HMO space 

standards for a 6 bed HMO as set out within Belfast Local Development Plan: 2035. 
 

g) Does not contain any units which are wholly in the rear of the property 
       without direct, safe and secure access from the public street - All units have safe and       
       secure access from the front door of the dwelling.  
 

h) Ensures that living rooms, kitchens and bedrooms have access to natural light - All 
habitable rooms in the dwelling have access to natural light.  
 

Concerns were raised regarding the impact on the provision of family homes in the area. 
Concerns were also raised regarding the erosion of the Newingtown Community. The LDP 
plan Strategy seeks to facilitate sustainable housing growth in response to changing 
housing needs. Carefully managing the variety of house types, sizes and tenures will help 
to meet the diverse needs of all the community. This supports wider LDP aims of shaping 
quality and sustainable residential development, providing a mix of housing that create 
more balanced communities, increasing density without town cramming. HMOs are 
regulated by the relevant Policy set out in the LDP plan Strategy and the proposal has been 
found to comply with the relevant policies. This HMO comprises 6 bedrooms and will also 
be subject to the licensing process which will determine how many persons the home can 
accommodate. HMO’s can meet high demand for housing and the application site is 
located in an accessible location close to services and public transport. It is considered 
that the proposal would not undermine the availability of family housing in the area nor of 
itself result in the erosion of the Newington Community. 
 
As indicated above, the HMO will further require to be licensed with BCC which requires 
the implementation of an anti-social behaviour plan, ensuring the HMO operator runs the 
property effectively.  
 
The proposal is considered compatible with adjacent land uses. It would not harm the 
amenity of adjacent and nearby properties or result in unacceptable overlooking, 
overshadowing, overbearing, loss of outlook or daylight. The proposal is considered to 
comply with Policy RD 1. 
 
Policy RD3 is applicable and states that planning permission will be granted for conversion 
or change of use of existing buildings for residential use where all the criteria in policy RD1 
and all the additional criteria below are met:  
 

      a) Any units are self-contained - This criterion is not applicable.  
b) Adequate refuse storage space is provided within the curtilage of the site, large 
enough to allow for the separation of recyclable waste, and is designed to not be 

Page 111



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 10 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6.7 
 
 
6.7 
 
6.7.1 
 
 
 
6.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
6.8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
6.9.1 

visible from the amenity space / public realm - Officers consider that this criterion is 
met (refer to section 6.7 below).  
c) The original property is greater than 150 square metres gross internal floorspace 
in the case of sub-division of an existing dwelling – This criterion is not applicable 
to this proposal.  
d) Conversions above commercial premises do not prejudice the commercial 
functions of the business - This criterion is not applicable to this proposal.  

 
Taking account of the criteria set out above the proposal is considered to comply with Policy 
RD3. 
 
Traffic, Parking and Access 
 
Officers acknowledge the objections to parking. DFI Roads have no objections to the 
scheme. Whilst the various policy requirements of HOU10 seek to address need and 
protect residential amenity, the provision of car parking is not a requirement of this policy.   
 
Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements states that, ‘Development 
proposals will be required to provide adequate provision for car parking and appropriate 
servicing arrangements’. Existing Regional Planning Policy and supplementary planning 
guidance, including the published ‘Parking Standards’, do not incorporate car parking as a 
requirement for HMO development.  
 
However, to satisfy the concerns raised in relation to parking the Council requested a 
parking survey. The parking survey demonstrates that adequate parking is available within 
a radius of 150 metres walking distance from the application site to serve the proposal and 
concludes that the scheme will not be detrimental to on-street parking in the prevailing 
area. DfI Roads were consulted on the parking survey and advised that the survey has 
been carried out appropriately and that they are content with its findings. The parking 
survey demonstrates that adequate parking is available to serve the proposal which is 
considered to meet Policy TRAN8. Furthermore, the site is in a sustainable location with 
regular bus services operating in close proximity and accessible to services and amenities 
in the local and wider area.  
 
Waste and Refuse Collection  
 
Policy RD3 criterion b, requires that adequate refuse storage space is provided within the 
curtilage of the site, large enough to allow for the separation of recyclable waste and is 
designed to not be visible from the amenity space / public realm. Officers consider that this 
policy is complied with. The alleyway to the rear will continue to host the bins as before. 
The disposal of rubbish is the responsibility of tenants and the landlord. The premises will 
continue to be served by three Council refuse bins for general waste, recycling and food. 
Bin storage is also a licensing requirement and the Council’s website states that “during 
the period of the licence the licensee shall ensure that sufficient bins or other suitable 
receptacles are provided that are adequate for the requirements of each household 
occupying the HMO for the storage of refuse and litter pending their disposal in accordance 
with the Local Government Waste Storage Guide for Northern Ireland”. 
 
Impact on the sewage network 
 
There is no evidence that change of use from a dwelling to an HMO will cause any issues 
as the dwelling will continue to avail of the main sewage network like other houses in the 
street. As there is no evidence of significant impact on waste-water infrastructure, it has 
been unnecessary to consult NI Water as a statutory consultee. 
 

Page 112



Application ID: LA04/2023/3481/F 

 

Page 11 of 11 

8.0 Recommendation 

8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 

the wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they 

are not substantive. 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission. 

 Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

DRAFT INFORMATIVES: 
 

1. Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved 
plans and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal 
is unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If 
you would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to 
the contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk. 
 

2. This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know 
when this information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 
weeks for the Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and 
sometimes longer depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this 
when planning the timeline of your project.  
 

3. The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, 
consents or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other 
authorisations may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application 
and can be accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from 
consultees may also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or 
developer. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 113

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Management Report  

Addendum 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/3319/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: Proposed Change of Use from 
dwelling to 6 bed House in Multiple Occupation 
(amended description).  
 

Location: 
27 Ponsonby Avenue 
Belfast 
BT15 2LS 

Referral Route: Paragraph 3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation – request for the application to be 
reported to the Planning Committee by an Elected Member (Cllr Conor Maskey) 

Recommendation:  Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Louise Johnson  
2a Bridge Street 
Lisburn 
BT28 1XY 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Louise Johnson  
2a Bridge Street 
Lisburn 
BT28 1XY 

Addendum Report 

This application for full planning permission was presented to Planning Committee on Tuesday 

13th February and was deferred to allow members of the Committee for a site visit which occurred 

on Tuesday 12th March.   

This Addendum report should be read in conjunction with the original report to the February 

Committee, which is appended. 

Recommendation 

The case officer recommendation is unchanged. 

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 

considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 

conditions.  

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 

wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they are not 

substantive. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 7f



Page 2 of 11 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Addendum 

Application Ref: LA04/2023/3319/F Committee Meeting Date: 13th February 2024 

Proposal: Proposed Change of Use from 
dwelling to 6 bed House in Multiple 
Occupation (amended description).  
 

Location: 
27 Ponsonby Avenue 
Belfast 
BT15 2LS 

Referral Route: Paragraph 3.8.1 of the Scheme of Delegation – request for the application to be 
reported to the Planning Committee by an Elected Member (Cllr Conor Maskey) 
 

Recommendation:  Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Louise Johnson  
2a Bridge Street 
Lisburn 
BT28 1XY 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Louise Johnson  
2a Bridge Street 
Lisburn 
BT28 1XY 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full planning permission for Change of use from dwelling to 6 Bed House 
in Multiple Occupation (HMO). The site is No. 27 Ponsonby Avenue. 
 
The key issues are: 

 The principle of an HMO at this location 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 

 Impact on residential amenity 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  

 Other matters 
 
87 objections and 1 letter of support have been received with the issues raised addressed within 
the main report.  
 
The application has been called in for the following reasons: 
 

1) The application may negatively effect parking and traffic in the street (and surrounding 
area) and; 

2) The application may have a negative impact on the character of the street (and 
surrounding area). 

 
The scheme is compliant with Policy HOU10 in that the 10% threshold for HMO’s on Ponsonby 
Avenue has not yet been reached. Officers consider that the scheme will not be harmful in terms 
of traffic, parking, impact on amenity of the surrounding area or the Alexandra Park Area of 
Townscape Character.  
 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions. Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
the wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they are not 
substantive. 

Page 116



Page 3 of 11 

 Officer Report 

1.0 Drawings 

1.1 Existing Floor Plans 

 
Proposed Floor Plans 

 
 
 
Please note that no external alterations are proposed and therefore elevations have not 
been provided.  
 
 
 

Page 117



Page 4 of 11 

2.0  Characteristics of the Site and Area 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 

The application site is located at 27 Ponsonby Avenue in the Newington area of North 
Belfast.  
 
The building is a 2.5 storey terraced dwelling finished in red brick. There is a small, 
enclosed amenity space to the front with pedestrian access. There is also a small amenity 
space to the rear which backs onto an alleyway.  
 
The site does not fall within any of the existing HMO Policy Areas or Development Nodes, 
therefore the 10% threshold applies.  
 
The site is in Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 - Designation BT 030 Area of 
Townscape Character: Alexandra Park, Belfast.  
 

3.0 Description of Proposal 

3.1 The application is seeking full planning permission for change of use from dwelling to 6 
Bed House in Multiple Occupation (amended description). 
 

4.0 Planning Policy and Other Material Considerations 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
There is no relevant planning history. 

5.0 Consultations and Representations 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statutory Consultations 
DfI Roads – No objections 
 
Non-Statutory Consultations 
BCC Plans & Policy team – No objections. HMO considered acceptable at this location 
 
Representations 
The application has been advertised and neighbours notified. The Council has received 87 
objections, issues raised are summarised as follows:  
 

1. Parking, traffic, road safety and enforcement 
2. Waste and refuse collection 
3. Anti-social behaviour/noise 
4. Negatively impact on the character of the area  
5. Anti-social behaviour 

 
Issues 1-5 are covered in the main body of the report. Additional points are considered as 
follows: 

Page 118



Page 5 of 11 

6. Precedent for further HMOs in the area -  
Each application is decided on its own merit. Officers consider that this scheme is compliant 
with policy considerations.  
 
7. Impact on the provision of family homes in the area - 
This HMO is for 6 bedrooms, the licensing process will determine how many persons the 
home can accommodate. HMO’s can meet high demand for housing and the application 
site is located close to services and public transport. The policy considerations are dealt 
with in the main body of the report. 
 
8. The dwelling does not have the appropriate fire safety measures  
This would be an issue for building control and licensing to deal with if the application is 
approved.  
 
9. The consultation response from BCC Housing Team does not include No. 31 Ponsonby 
Avenue.  
This issue has been resolved with the housing team. The initial response alluded to No. 37 
Ponsonby Avenue, which was a typographical error and should have said No. 31.  
 
10. Over-occupation/anti-social behaviour 
Officers consider that the scheme complies with space standards and provides a suitable 
number of bedrooms. The HMO licensing scheme is in place to regulate HMOs. An anti-
social behaviour plan will therefore be in place, and it is the landlord’s responsibility to 
ensure compliance with licensing requirements. Tenants also have responsibilities to make 
sure the landlord can carry out their duties.  
 
The NIHMO Unit within BCC has developed a guide highlighting ways to tackle antisocial 
behaviour linked to their properties. The guide provides preventative measures that 
landlords can take to manage antisocial behaviour, highlights how to demonstrate 
compliance by record keeping and intervention, and details how to develop an antisocial 
behaviour plan. The HMO legislation in Northern Ireland has the potential to have a positive 
impact on the lives of those living in HMOs, the owners of HMOs, and the residents 
surrounding HMO properties. 
 
 

6.0 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Plan Context 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP), when fully completed, will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP 
will comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and 
operational policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, 
which will provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been 
published. The zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain 
part of the statutory local development plan (“Departmental Development Plan”) until the 
Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 

Page 119



Page 6 of 11 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies 
relevant to consideration of the application, which are set out in the following section of 
this report. The Plan Strategy replaces the operational policies previously provided by the 
Departmental Planning Policy Statements (PPSs). Those policies no longer have effect, 
irrespective of whether planning applications have been received before or after the 
adoption date (par. 1.11 of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement). 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council 
must have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the 
Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 
(v2004 and v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be 
afforded to these proposals is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that 
significant weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) 
given its advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 
The site is designated within the limits of Belfast under both Draft and adopted Belfast 
Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 - Designation BT 001 Development Limit: Belfast City. The 
site is whiteland under Belfast Urban Area Plan 2015.  
 
Operational Policies  

 HOU10 – Housing Management Areas  

 BH3 – Areas of Townscape Character 

 RD1 – New Residential Developments  

 TRAN8 – Car Parking and Servicing Arrangements  
 
Key Issues 
 

 The principle of an HMO at this location 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 

 Impact on residential amenity 

 Traffic, Parking and Access 

 Waste and refuse collection  

 Climate change 

 Other matters 
 
 
The principle of an HMO at this location 
 
27 Ponsonby Avenue is not within a Housing Management Area (HMA) or HMO 
Development node, therefore Policy HOU 10 applies. 
 
Policy HOU10 states: 
‘Outside of designated HMAs planning permission will only be granted for HMOs where the 
number of HMOs would not as a result exceed 10% of all dwelling units on that road or 
street. Where such a street is in excess of 600 metres in length, the 10% threshold will be 
calculated on the basis of existing residential units within 300 metres of either side of the 
proposal on that street.’ 
 
According to the LPS Pointer Address database there are 48 domestic properties on 
Ponsonby Avenue. Following the methodology outlined above, the HMO Licence Register 
and Planning records show there are 2 HMOs on the street (Nos. 31 and 57). Taking 
account of the number of dwelling units within Ponsonby Avenue, two further HMOs would 

Page 120



Page 7 of 11 

 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

be permitted before the 10% threshold would be exceeded. Therefore, the principle of an 
HMO at this location is acceptable.  
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the Alexandra Park ATC 
 
When considering the prevailing area, the proposed development in terms of scale, layout, 
design and materials must be in keeping with the site and its surrounding area. The 
character and appearance of the ATC in this case would be preserved as the application 
is for change of use only and no external alterations to the property are proposed.  
  
The proposal is compatible with adjacent land uses. It would not harm the amenity of 
adjacent and nearby properties, including unacceptable overlooking, overshadowing, 
overbearing, loss of outlook or daylight. The policy context is set out in Policies HOU 10, 
BH3, RD1 & TRAN8 below which further address amenity.  
 
Impact on residential amenity 
 
The proposal generally complies with the HMO space standards for a 6-bed HMO as set 
out within Belfast Local Development Plan: 2035, Appendix C, table C3. Whilst one 
bedroom is marginally under 6.5m2, although this bedroom has an ensuite which mitigates 
this and is deemed acceptable. The kitchen and dining room combined are 23.5m2 whilst 
the LDP space standards recommend 19.5m2. The proposal would provide a quality and 
sustainable residential environment.  
 
It is considered that there will be no adverse impact on the amenity of adjacent properties 
and the wider street. The HMO will further require to be licensed with BCC which mitigates 
amenity concerns by enforcing an anti-social behaviour plan and ensuring the HMO 
operator runs the property effectively. The property will be served by appropriate refuse 
storage which will be collected as normal.  
 
The property is a 2.5 storey dwelling and is an appropriate size to accommodate an HMO, 
comfortably providing accommodation for 6 people whilst still meeting the space standards. 
 
Policy RD1 
Policy RD1 states that planning permission will be granted for new residential development 
where it is in accordance with general urban design policies and where it is demonstrated 
that the proposal:  
 

a) Will not create conflict with adjacent land uses, remaining in conformity with the 
character of any established residential areas – it is considered that the proposed 
use does not conflict with adjacent land uses. The HMO licensing scheme also 
seeks to ensure that landlords are compliant with regulations, such as the number 
of occupants and sufficient bin storage. 
 

b) Does not unduly affect the privacy or amenity of neighbouring residents, including 
overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing, dominance, noise or other disturbance 
– it is considered that the scheme will not give rise to any of the issues listed in 
criterion b. Overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing and dominance will not be 
changing from the current situation. Noise or other disturbance will be addressed 
by the anti-social behaviour plan which is a licensing requirement. 

 
c) Makes provision for, or is, accessible and convenient to public transport and 

            walking and cycling infrastructure – the proposal is located 1 minute from the                              
a          Antrim Road which has several bus stops and has good access to services and                                  
a          amenities. There is sufficient space for cycle parking to the front and rear.               

Page 121



Page 8 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
d) Provides appropriate open space – the proposal maintains the current level of 

open space, and in addition, the area has good access to open space such as the 
Waterworks and Alexandra Park. 

 
e) Keeps hard surfacing to a minimum – no hard standing is proposed as part of this 

application. 
 

f) Creates a quality and sustainable residential environment in accordance with 
            the space standards set out in Appendix C – as described, the proposal a  a  a a               
a          generally meets the requirements set out in the space standards and provides   a              
a          an appropriate amount of living space for the occupants of the 6 bedrooms. 
 

g) Does not contain any units which are wholly in the rear of the property 
            without direct, safe and secure access from the public street – all units have         
a          safe and secure access from the front door of the dwelling. 
 

h) Ensures that living rooms, kitchens and bedrooms have access to natural light all     
habitable rooms in the dwelling have access to natural light. 

 
Policy RD3 
Policy RD3 states that planning permission will be granted for conversion or change of use 
of existing buildings for residential use where all the criteria in policy RD1 and all the 
additional criteria below are met:  
 

      a) Any units are self-contained - Officers consider that this criterion is met.  
b) Adequate refuse storage space is provided within the curtilage of the site, large 
enough to allow for the separation of recyclable waste, and is designed to not be 
visible from the amenity space / public realm - Officers consider that this criterion is 
met. The property will provide 3 refuse bins for general waste, recycling and food 
waste.  
c) The original property is greater than 150 square metres gross internal floorspace 
in the case of sub-division of an existing dwelling – No subdivision is occurring.  
d) Conversions above commercial premises do not prejudice the commercial 
functions of the business - This criterion is not relevant to this application.  

 
 
Traffic, Parking and Access 
 
Officers acknowledge the objections to parking. Whilst the various policy requirements 
seek to address need and protect residential amenity, the provision of car parking is not a 
requirement of this policy.  Policy TRAN8 ‘Car parking and servicing arrangements’ states: 
‘Development proposals will be required to provide adequate provision for car parking and 
appropriate servicing arrangements’. However, existing Regional Planning Policy and 
supplementary planning guidance, including the published ‘Parking Standards’, do not 
incorporate car parking as a requirement for HMO development. Furthermore, the site is in 
a sustainable location with metro services running alongside the site. In this context 
adequate provision is provided to meet TRAN8. 
 
Notwithstanding, the applicant conducted a parking survey to assess parking demand in 
the area, which DfI Roads were consulted on and have no objection to. Officers consider 
that the survey is acceptable in that it displays a sufficient level of parking in the vicinity of 
the site. The parking survey concludes that the scheme will not be detrimental to on-street 
parking in the prevailing area. DfI Roads were consulted with the parking survey and 
responded to state that they are content with its findings. 

Page 122



Page 9 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Objectors raise concerns regarding parking enforcement. The PSNI and DFI would be 
responsible for enforcing the Highways Act and parking regulations. 
 
Waste and Refuse Collection  
 
Objectors have alluded to previous issues with bin lorries getting down Ponsonby Avenue. 
 
Policy RD3 criterion B applies, it states that adequate refuse storage space must be 
provided within the curtilage of the site, large enough to allow for the separation of 
recyclable waste and is designed to not be visible from the amenity space / public realm. 
Officers consider that this policy is complied with. The yard to the rear will continue to host 
the bins as before. The disposal of rubbish is the responsibility of tenants and the landlord. 
The premises will continue to be served by three Council refuse bins for general waste, 
recycling and food. Bin storage is also a licensing requirement and the Council’s website 
states that “during the period of the licence the licensee shall ensure that sufficient bins or 
other suitable receptacles are provided that are adequate for the requirements of each 
household occupying the HMO for the storage of refuse and litter pending their disposal in 
accordance with the Local Government Waste Storage Guide for Northern Ireland”. 
 

8.0 Recommendation 

8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 

the wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise provided that they 

are not substantive. 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission. 

 Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

 

DRAFT INFORMATIVES: 
 

1. Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved 
plans and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal 
is unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If 
you would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to 
the contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk. 
 

2. This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know 
when this information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 
weeks for the Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and 
sometimes longer depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this 
when planning the timeline of your project.  
 

3. The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, 
consents or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other 
authorisations may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application 

Page 123

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


Page 10 of 11 

and can be accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from 
consultees may also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or 
developer. 

 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   09/06/2023 

Date First Advertised  16/06/2023 

Date Last Advertised 16/06/2023 
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses)  
16 Ponsonby Avenue 
18 Ponsonby Avenue 
20 Ponsonby Avenue 
21 Ponsonby Avenue 
22 Ponsonby Avenue 
24 Ponsonby Avenue 
25 Ponsonby Avenue 
26 Ponsonby Avenue 
29 Ponsonby Avenue 
31 Ponsonby Avenue 
33 Ponsonby Avenue 
Flat 42 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 43 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 44 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 45 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 46 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 47 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 48 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 49 229 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 50 231 Duncairn Gardens  
Flat 51 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 52 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 53 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 54 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 55 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 56 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 57 231 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 58 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 59 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 60 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 61 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 62 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 63 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 64 233 Duncairn Gardens 
Flat 65 233 Duncairn Gardens 

 
 
 

Page 124



Page 11 of 11 

 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1 
 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Application ID: LA04/2023/3778/F Target Date:  

Proposal: 
Demolition of existing Russell Court buildings 
and redevelopment of existing surface car 
park to accommodate two new buildings (five 
storey and four storey) for the QUB Institute of 
Research Excellence for Advanced Clinical 
Healthcare (iREACH Health), including 
landscaping, parking, and servicing. 
 

Location: 
38-53 Lisburn Road, Belfast 

Referral Route: Application for Major development 
 

Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Queen’s University Belfast, Belfast BT7 1NN 

Agent Name and Address: 
Juno Planning, 409 Lisburn Road, Belfast  
BT9 7EW 
 

Executive Summary: 
This application relates to Nos. 38 to 53 Lisburn Road and two parcels of land either side of the 
road. The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of four and five storey 
advanced clinical healthcare buildings to either side of Lisburn Road.  
 
The proposal involves demolition of the existing Russell Court buildings and redevelopment of 
existing surface car park to accommodate two new buildings (five storey and four storey) for the 
QUB Institute of Research Excellence for Advanced Clinical Healthcare (iREACH Health), 
including landscaping, parking, and servicing. 
 
The key issues for consideration of the application are:  
 

 Principle of development 

 Demolition 

 Impact of the new buildings on the character of the Area of Townscape Character 

 Impact on amenity 

 Built heritage 

 Climate change 

 Health impacts 

 Access and parking 

 Natural heritage 

 Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 

 Trees and landscaping 

 Employability and Skills  
 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 8b



Page | 2 
 

Statutory Consultees, as well as BCC Environmental Health and Landscape and Development 
team have raised no objections subject to conditions.  DfI Roads has raised no issues of concern 
but requested amended technical information.   BCC Tree Officer, Urban Design Officer and 
conservation advice have raised issues regarding loss of existing trees and some aspects of the 
design of the buildings. 
 
No third-party representations have been received.  
 
Both sites fall within the development limits of Belfast in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 

(BUAP) and both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004 and v2014) 

(dBMAP).  The sites fall within un-zoned “white land” in BUAP, whereas Site B is within the Lower 

Lisburn Road Area of Townscape Character in both versions of dBMAP.  The Lisburn Road is 

defined as an Arterial Route.  

The proposed development will establish an Institute of Research Excellence for Advanced 
Clinical Healthcare (iREACH Health). The facilities are to be led by QUB in partnership with the 
NHS, in line with the Belfast Region City Deal.  The principle of development of the site for these 
purposes is acceptable. 
 
The design of the proposal is considered in keeping with the area. Sufficient parking would be 
provided and there will be no unacceptable impacts on nearby residential properties. The setting 
of the adjacent Grade B1 Listed terrace would be safeguarded. On balance, taking account of the 
considerable benefits of the proposal, the loss of some existing trees is acceptable. 
 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions. 
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of conditions, and deal with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the decision 
including the further consultation response from DfI Roads, provided that they are not 
substantive. 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 128



Page | 3 
 

1.0 Drawings 
 
Site Location Plan 

 

 
 
Proposed Block Plan 
 
 

 

Page 129



Page | 4 
 

Aerial image 
 

 
 
CGI image (Site A) 
 

 

Page 130



Page | 5 
 

CGI Image (Site B) 
 

 
 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
2.4 
 
 
3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 
The application site measures approximately 0.82 ha and is located at Nos. 38-52 Lisburn 
Road, Belfast.  It is divided into two separate parts located on either side of the road, 
referred to as “Site A” and “Site B”.  Site A has a frontage to the north-west side of Lisburn 
Road and comprises an existing car park and forms part of the Belfast City Hospital 
complex with its much larger buildings behind. Site B (the larger of the two plots) has a 
frontage to the south east side of Lisburn Road and is located opposite. It consists of 
Russell Court buildings, previously used by Radius Housing Association for housing.  
 
The elevated hard-standing car park to Site A contains tree and shrub planting along the 
Lisburn Road boundary, with a cluster of trees to the south-east corner beside an existing 
bus shelter.  Site B consists of extensive hard-standing car park with limited soft landscape 
elements, however, there are 3 large trees to the south. 
 
Site B is within the Lower Lisburn Road Area of Townscape Character (ATC). 
 
The terrace properties, Nos. 77 to 95 Lisburn Road, to the south of Site A are Grade B1 
Listed Buildings. 
 
Description of Proposed Development 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing Russell Court buildings 
and re development of existing surface car park to accommodate two new buildings (five 
storey and four storey) for the QUB Institute of Research Excellence for Advanced Clinical 
Healthcare (iREACH Health), including landscaping, parking, and servicing. 
 

Page 131



Page | 6 
 

3.2 iREACH Health is an integrated clinical research centre led by Queen's University Belfast 
to develop, test, and deliver innovative new treatments and better clinical care.  This new 
centre, located beside Belfast City Hospital, would provide state of the art infrastructure, 
including co-location of key service delivery groups to support delivery of clinical trials and 
lifesaving health innovations. 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations 
 
Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Other material considerations 
Developer Contribution Framework (2020) 
Belfast Agenda (Community Plan) 
 
Relevant planning history  
 
There is no recent relevant planning history on either site other than a Proposal of 
Application Notice (PAN) application (LA04/2023/2626/PAN).  Since the proposals fall 
under the category of Major development, Pre-Application Community Consultation 
(PACC) was necessary and a PAN application required to set out the applicant’s proposals 
for the consultation.  The resulting PACC report states that 12 people attended the public 
event, with five feedback forms completed from local residents indicating support for the 
project and welcoming the demolition of Russell Court buildings. 
 
A PAN has also been submitted for the site next to Site B to the east 
(LA04/2023/4591/PAN) for “Redevelopment of the site for the erection of a mixed-use 
development comprising Use Class B1: Business and Use Class, D1: Community and 
Cultural Uses, including landscaping, parking, and servicing.”  The event took place in 
January 2024. No application has been submitted subsequent to the PAN. 
 
Consultations and Representations 

 
Statutory Consultees 
DFI Roads – technical issues to be addressed 
NI Water – No objection 
DfI Rivers  – No objection 
DfC Historic Environment Division (Historic Buildings) – No objection subject to conditions 
DfC Historic Environment Division (Historic Monuments) – No objection subject to 
conditions 
DAERA Water Management Unit – No objection subject to conditions 
DAERA Regulation Unit – No objection subject to conditions 
DAERA Natural Environment Division – No objection 
 
 

Page 132



Page | 7 
 

5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 

 
6.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Non Statutory Consultees 
BCC Environmental Health – no objection subject to conditions 
BCC Urban Design – previous design concerns have been resolved, however, concerned 
about removal of trees (see main assessment) 
BCC Conservation advice – some design concerns raised (see main assessment) 
BCC Tree Officer – concerns about loss of trees 
BCC Landscape, planning and development – no objection 
 
Representations 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  No third-
party representations have been received. 

 
Planning Assessment  
 
Development Plan Context 
 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP) when fully completed will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 
comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 
policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 
provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 
zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the 
statutory local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 
Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant 
to consideration of the application. These are listed below. 
 
Policy SP1 – Growth strategy 
Policy SP1a – Managing growth and supporting infrastructure 
Policy SP2 – Sustainable development 
Policy SP3 – Improving health and wellbeing 
Policy SP5 – Positive placemaking 
Policy SP6 – Environmental resilience 
Policy SP7 – Connectivity 
Policy SP8 – Green and blue infrastructure network 
 
Policy SD1 – Settlement hierarchy 
Policy SD2 – Settlement Areas  
 
Policy DES1 – Principles of Urban Design 
Policy DES2 - Masterplanning approach for major development 
Policy HC1 – Promoting Healthy Communities 
Policy BH1 – Listed Buildings 
Policy BH3 – Areas of Townscape Character 
Policy BH5 – Archaeology 
 

Page 133



Page | 8 
 

6.9 
 
 
6.10 
 
 
 
 
 
6.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.12 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Policy EC1 – Delivering inclusive economic growth 
Policy EC7 – Higher education institutions 
 
Policy ENV1 – Environmental Quality 
Policy ENV2 – Mitigating environmental change 
Policy ENV3 – Adapting to environmental change 
Policy ENV4 – Flood Risk 
Policy ENV5 – Sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS)  
 
Policy TRAN1 – Active Travel – Walking and Cycling 
Policy TRAN2 – Creating an accessible environment 
Policy TRAN3 – Transport Assessment 
Policy TRAN4 – Travel Plan 
Policy TRAN6 – Access to public roads 
Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements 
Policy TRAN9 – Parking standards within areas of parking restraint 
 
Policy TRE1 – Trees 
Policy NH1 – Protection of natural heritage resources 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must 
have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 
and v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to 
these proposals maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant 
weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its 
advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. The relevant zonings are set out below. 
 
BUAP 2021 – both sites are within the BUAP and are un-zoned “white land”. 
 
dBMAP (v2004) – both sites are within the development limit. Site B falls within Lower 
Lisburn Road Are of Townscape Character (BT 059) (but not Site A.)  Lisburn Road is also 
defined as an Arterial Route.   
 
dBMAP2015 (v2014) – both sites are also  the development limit. Site B falls within Lower 
Lisburn Road Are of Townscape Character (BT 042) (but not Site A).  Lisburn Road 
remains defined as an Arterial Route.   
 
Key issues 
 
The key issues to be considered in the assessment of this application are: 
 

 Principle of development 

 Demolition 

 Impact of the new buildings on the character of the ATC  

 Impact on amenity 

 Built heritage 

 Climate change 

 Health impacts 

 Access and parking 

 Natural heritage 

 Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 

Page 134



Page | 9 
 

 
 

 

9.0 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.5 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Trees and landscaping 

 Employability and Skills  
 
Principle of development 
 
The proposed development would establish an Institute of Research Excellence for 
Advanced Clinical Healthcare (iREACH Health). The facilities are to be led by QUB in 
partnership with the NHS, in line with the Belfast Region City Deal. The iREACH Health 
developments will bring together the academic, industry, NHS and government 
stakeholders to create an alignment of academic insight, industrial capability and patient 
and clinician input to deliver better treatments and create products and technologies.  The 
proposal has been designed to make provision for suitable healthcare facilities, in line with 
the aims of the Belfast Region City Deal. 
 
Both sites are within the development limit and are a sustainable location for new 
development, located either side of Lisburn Road, which is an arterial route with good 
access to public transport, shops and services. The sites are previously developed land. 
Site A is proposed to accommodate the Translational Clinical Research Facility, whereas 
Site B is proposed for the Clinical Research Innovation Centre and will accommodate the 
principal shared facilities, to encourage collaborative working. 
 
Policy EC1 supports business sectors with strong growth potential in Belfast including life 
and health sciences and the proposals are consistent with this policy. 
 
In line with the aims of the RDS 2035 to strengthen the role of the Belfast Metropolitan 
Urban Area (BMUA) as the regional economic driver, the proposal would create a number 
of economic benefits through increased investment. Below is summary of the key 
economic benefits the project will create: 
 

 964 permanent jobs (direct, indirect and induced) 

 £60.3m additional annual GDP 

 £761.4m economic NPV (lifetime of the project) 

 10.1% productivity uplift over 10 years 

 Approximately 460 FTE work years, over the course of the construction 
phase. 

 
The proposal is considered to meet the aims of the RDS 2035, by creating a development 
which would bring substantial economic benefits and investment to underutilised sites 
within the BMUA, while making use of the existing infrastructure within the surrounding 
area. 
 
Policy EC7 relates to higher education instructions. The applicant is Queens University and 
the proposals are a partnership with the university. The proposals are supported by Policy 
EC7, which states that the Council will promote the growth and expansion of further and 
higher education institutions as drivers of improved skills by promoting these institutions as 
employment hubs for the innovation sector and the wider knowledge economy. 
 
Having regard to these factors, the proposals are acceptable in principle and welcomed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



Page | 10 
 

9.8 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 
9.15 
 
 
 
 
 
9.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.17 
 
 
 

Demolition 
 
Policy ENV2 states that for environmental reasons, development proposals should, where 
feasible, seek to avoid demolition and should consider how existing buildings or their main 
structures could be reused.  
 
The application is supported by a Demolition Justification Statement.  This states that the 
retention of Russell Court was considered, however, this presented a range of challenges, 
including the building not being suitable for laboratory use; existing utilities are out of date 
requiring total replacement throughout; and the structural frame would require significant 
remedial works to extend the life and amend it suitably for the proposed use.  The 
proposals are for bespoke high-tech buildings and retention of the existing building is not 
considered feasible. Construction waste wiould be minimised through the Sustainable 
Procurement Plan. It is considered that the proposal is compliant with this aspect of Policy 
ENV2.  
 
Site B is within an ATC, which means that planning permission is required to demolish 
Russell Court. However, the building is dated, of its time and something of an anomaly in 
the street-scene in terms of its scale, form and architectural treatment. The building does 
not contribute to the character of the ATC, which would be maintained following its 
removal. Conservation advice raises no objection to the demolition of the building. The 
proposal is considered compliant with Policy BH3. 
 
Impact of the new buildings on the character of the ATC  
 
The proposal was subject to a detailed PAD process as well as amendments during the 
processing of the planning application, which have refined the design of the scheme.  This 
report refers to its most recent submission.   
 
Both proposed buildings are of similar modern design with brick lower podiums and 
cladded upper elements. They have been designed as a cohesive pair. 
 
Block A comprises two floors at a triangular podium level, three upper floors and one 
enclosed plant level, whereas Block B is lower in height comprising two floors again at a 
triangular podium level, two upper floors and one enclosed plant level.  Both two storey 
podium levels measure the same height at 8.2m, and upper heights are 23.2m and 19.4m 
respectively. 
 
Block A has significant physical site constraints to the north and west of the site within the 
City Hospital complex. These include an existing oxygen tank exclusion zone; proximity to 
an existing water storage tank; the need to provide a way leave in front of the proposed 
new NIE substation included within the building; requirement for a new storm water 
attenuation tank; and servicing.  It has therefore presented more difficulty in achieving a 
setback from the road than Block B. The initial design concept saw both buildings too close 
to Lisburn Road, therefore, creating an undesirable and claustrophobic “tunnelling” effect, 
which also interrupted views of the Listed terrace to the south of Site A.  The latest iteration 
of the plans show an appropriate set back of Block A with public realm to the front, which is 
welcomed. Block B, which is less constrained, includes a larger area of public realm along 
Lisburn Road and Camden Street between 6.5m and 8.5m which provides a strong setting 
to the building as well as enhanced connectivity, and is welcomed. 
 
The scale and form of the buildings are considered appropriate. The building on Site A is 
set to a backdrop of the much larger City Hospital buildings, plant and paraphernalia and 
would have a positive impact in terms of screening those elements. Site B is located next 
to smaller scale traditional Victorian housing, but the step down on the eastern end and 

Page 136



Page | 11 
 

 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.20 
 
 
 
 
 
9.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.22 
 
 
 
9.23 
 
9.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

general separation distances help to integrate the building in the street scene. Regard is 
also had to the much larger Russell Court currently situated on Site B. 
 
Block A includes a bridge link on the south side linking to the adjacent City Hospital 
building.  This is an important functional element of the design and required for enabling 
vulnerable patients to partake in iREACH studies without leaving hospital buildings.  The 
design of the bridge link has been re-worked and is now better integrated into the form and 
design of the overall building. The Urban Design Officer emphasised the importance of the 
lower podium having a strong physical and visual prominence along Lisburn Road, with the 
taller set back element being visually subordinate.  HED HB comments emphasised this is 
an important part of the development which shall be seen in juxtaposition with the Grade 
B1 Listed terrace when approaching from the south along Lisburn Road. 
 
A lack of vertical shifts in form and articulation of facades was highlighted relating to both 
blocks following the initial submission, particularly on the north elevation of Block B.  This 
has been addressed by the addition of windows on ground and first floor as on Block A, as 
well as greater depth to cladding resulting in deeper expression on the facades.  
Rusticated joint treatments have been introduced on both blocks, which will help give visual 
relief. The Urban Design Officer has raised no further concerns, with the exception of the 
loss of trees (discussed later in report). 
 
The proposed external materials are a mix of red brick, with feature brickwork, curtain 
walling, and a feature PPC aluminium panel system.  These complement the red tones of 
the traditional Victorian brick in the area and are considered acceptable. However, samples 
of the materials will be conditioned to be submitted and agreed in writing by the Council 
prior to commencement of development.  
 
Conservation advice raises concerns about the set-back of the upper elements of the 
buildings, which are not considered to be a traditional form, as well as the sparse design of 
the upper buildings. In response, the applicant states that the form of the proposed 
buildings present an opportunity for a holistic response to the dual site arrangement, 
establishing a clear and legible formal relationship whereby the separate buildings visually 
“interlock” with each other despite being separated by a significant vehicular thoroughfare.  
They felt it neither appropriate nor possible to recreate traditional typologies for a clinical 
healthcare building in this context adjacent to the City Hospital.  They emphasised that 
form followed function when designing for this specific use. The conservation advice is at 
variance with the Urban Design Officer which is supportive of the design concept. For the 
reasons stated previously, the design of the buildings is considered appropriate. 
 
It is considered that the proposed buildings are of a high quality design that would be 
appropriate to their setting and enhance the character of the ATC. The proposals are 
considered compliant with Policies DES1, DES2 and BH3. 
 
Impact on amenity 
 
Site B is closest to residential neighbours. The proposed development wouldnot impact 
unduly on the nearby residential amenity of Camden Street or Claremont Street. The 
proposed scale, massing and design of these functional buildings are considered 
acceptable for the site and surrounding area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Page | 12 
 

9.25 
 
9.26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.27 
 
9.28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Built Heritage  
 
The terrace properties at Nos. 77 to 95 to the south are Grade B1 Listed Buildings. 
Following a number of design amendments, DfC HED (Historic Buildings) is content that 
the alignment, scale, form and design of the buildings, notably Site A, and that the setting 
of the Listed Buildings would not be harmed. It offers no objection subject to the 
conditioning external materials prior to commencement of development. It is considered 
that the proposal complies with Policy BH1. 
DfC HED (Historic Monuments) is content with the impact on archaeology, conditional on 
the agreement and implementation of programme of archaeological works. The proposal is 
considered compliant with Policy BH5. 
 
Climate change 
 
The Buildings Research Establishment (BRE) Environmental Assessment Method 
(BREEAM) is a widely used sustainability assessment method and rating system which 
sets the standard for best practice in sustainable design. The BREEAM assessment 
process evaluates projects against targets that are based on performance benchmarks and 
is independently certified.  The proposed development has targeted a BREEAM Excellent 
rating. The BREEAM sustainability certification and benchmarking tool is required by and 
applied cross projects which are part of the Belfast Region City Deal.  As the two buildings 
will be delivered as part of the same project, with the same design team, the BREEAM for 
each building will be aligned as far as is possible. 
 
Policy ENV2, (Mitigating Environmental Change) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development that incorporate measures to mitigate environmental change and 
reduce greenhouse gas by promoting sustainable patterns of development.  Measures are 
proposed to reduce water usage, energy consumption and waste, e.g low flush toilets, 
water leak detectors, LED lighting throughout, photovoltaic panels, and waste will be 
reduced in line with the Waste Management Plan for operational waste, and through the 
Sustainable Procurement Plan for construction waste.  Having regard to these measures, 
which will contribute to the targeted BREEAM Excellent rating, the proposal is considered 
to accord with Policies ENV2 and ENV3. A condition is recommended to ensure that the 
BREAMM Excellent standard is reached.  
 
Policy ENV3, (Adapting to environmental change) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development that incorporates measures to adapt to environmental change, in 
order to support sustainable and enduring development. An assessment of the exposed 
elements, resilience to climate change (temperature variation, precipitation, vegetation, air 
contaminants etc) will be undertaken to ensure the lifespan of the facility is maximised.  
Areas of the building subject to large and unpredictable or variable occupancy patterns will 
have CO2 or air quality sensors specified and in mechanically ventilated spaces, the 
sensors will be linked to the mechanical ventilation system and provide demand-controlled 
ventilation to the space.  In the office areas and non-clinical spaces openable windows will 
be provided for the users to manually operate when they wish to, and to avoid sealing the 
building.  These measures will be required to be implemented by condition. The proposal is 
considered to accord with Policy ENV3. 
 
Regarding SuDS, a condition is recommended that requires full details of SuDS measures 
to be submitted and agreed in writing with the Council prior to any works commencing. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



Page | 13 
 

9.32 
 
9.34 
 
 
9.35 
 
 
 
9.36 
 
 
 
 
9.37 
 
9.38  
 
9.39  
 
 
 
 
9.40 
 
 
 
 
 
9.41 
 
 
9.42 
 
9.43 
 
 
 
 
9.44 
 
9.45 
 
 
 
9.46 
 
 
9.47 
 
9.48 
 
 
 
 

Health impacts 
 
Policy HC1 states that the Council will seek to ensure that all new developments maximise 
opportunities to promote healthy and active lifestyles. 
 
The site is a sustainable location on the Lisburn Road with good access to public transport. 
The application is supported by a Travel Plan, which will promote active travel and 
alternatives to car use.  
 
The proposed buildings are considered to be of a high quality design with good quality 
public realm, hard and soft landscaping. This will provide a pleasant and attractive 
environment for employees and occupants of the building, as well as enhancing the 
wellbeing of residents and workers in the area. 
 
The proposal is considered compliant with Policy HC1. 
 
Access and Parking 
 
A Transport Assessment, Service Management Plan and Framework Travel Plan have 
been submitted.  DfI Roads has indicated no concerns in principle about the proposal 
although a number of technical issues remained to be resolved. The recommendation is 
subject to appropriate resolution of those matters.  
 
As mentioned, the site is a sustainable location on the Lisburn Road, an arterial route, with 
good access to public transport, shops and amenities. The site is also within an area of 
parking restraint. Whilst minimal dedicated parking is proposed, this is considered 
acceptable in view of the location and provision of a travel plan, which will be required to be 
implemented by condition. 
 
Subject to final comments from DfI Roads, the proposal is considered compliant with 
Policies TRAN1, TRAN2, TRAN3, TRAN4, TRAN6, TRAN8, and TRAN9. 
 
Natural Heritage  
 
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Outline Construction Environmental Management 
Plan were submitted with the application. DAERA NED has considered the impacts of the 
proposal on designated sites and other natural heritage interests and advises no concerns.  
The proposed development is considered to comply with Policy NH1. 
 
Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 
 
DAERA Water Management Unit cited concerns over the potential impact on sewage 
loading to the Belfast waste water treatment works. However, NI Water has confirmed that 
there is available capacity and as such there is no issue in this regard. 
 
DfI Rivers raises no objection under in respect of drainage or flood risk. The proposal 
complies with Policies SP1a, ENV3, ENV4 and ENV5. 
 
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 
 
A Generic Quantitative Risk Assessment was submitted relating to the risk of contaminated 
land on the sites. Both BCC EHO and DEARA’s Regulation Unit offer no objection, 
advising conditions which are recommended. 
 

Page 139



Page | 14 
 

9.49 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.50 
 
 
 
 
9.51 
 
 
9.52 
 
9.53 
 
 
9.54 
 
 
 
 
 
9.55 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.56 
 
9.57 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.58 
 
 

A Transport Assessment (TA) and Air Quality Impact Assessment (AQIA) were submitted, 
which consider the existing air quality situation in the vicinity and an examination of the 
potential impacts the proposed new development may have, including transport emissions. 
BCC Environmental Health (EH) has no objection subject to the inclusion of a condition 
stating that should any centralised combustion sources be proposed an updated AQIA 
should be submitted and agreed in writing with the Council.  The AQIA also considered the 
impact of dust during the construction phase, and the risk is ‘medium-high’.  BCC EH has 
requested these dust management measures are conditioned for throughout the 
construction phase. 
 
EH also considered the impact of noise from the development and following the submission 
of a Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) requested clarification of certain details as well as 
additional information. A Technical note containing this was submitted and alleviated any 
concerns relating to noise impact.  Conditions have been included relating to noise. 
 
Having regard to the advice from DAERA and Environmental Health, the proposals are 
considered to accord with Policy ENV1. 
 
Trees and landscaping 
 
An arboricultural impact statement, landscaping plan and landscape management and 
maintenance plan have been submitted.   
 
Existing trees on Site B are to be retained providing maturity to the landscape and 
complimented by islands of shrub panting in raised planting beds with integrated seating. 
However, within Site A, there are established trees along Lisburn Road that are to be 
removed. The Tree Officer and Urban Design Officer both raise concerns about the felling 
of these trees.  
 
The applicant has responded, acknowledging tree retention as a worthy ambition but notes 
that the majority of the trees around Site A are located on a sloped landscape bank 
retaining the existing surface car park which is at an elevated level relative to the 
carriageway. Retaining these trees would effectively preclude any development which aims 
to create a meaningful relationship with the existing public footway and the associated 
benefits of an active streetscape along the Lisburn Road.  Taking this into consideration, 
together with the considerable benefits of the proposal, on balance, the tree loss is 
considered acceptable. New tree planting will take place within the public realm. 
 
Employability and skills 
 
iREACH Health is part of the Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD), which aims to deliver a 
programme with an overall value well over £1 billion, strengthening the region’s growth 
sectors as set out under Policy EC1 Delivering Inclusive Economic Growth.  In line with NI 
Public Procurement Policy, iREACH Health will be delivered aligned to PPN 01/21 ‘Scoring 
Social Value’. Core iREACH Health objectives have been established, including the 
creation of high value jobs and inward investment, as well as social benefits.  10% of the 
tender evaluation will be based on the Contractor’s approach to delivering social value 
benefits under the contract. This will be a contractual obligation with the social value 
benefits to be achieved being categorised under four key themes, i.e., increasing secure 
employment and skills; building ethical and resilient supply-chains; delivering zero carbon; 
and promoting wellbeing. 
 
It will be a contractual requirement for the contractor to report on progress of their social 
value delivery monthly which will enable QUB to confirm that the actual benefits of the 
investment during construction are being achieved.  

Page 140



Page | 15 
 

9.59 
 
 

As such Employability and Skills interventions are not required through the planning 
process, having regard to the Council’s Developer Contribution Framework.  

10.0 Recommendation: 
 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
the wording of conditions, and deal with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the 
decision including the further consultation response from DfI Roads, provided that they are 
not substantive. 
 

11.0 Draft Conditions:  
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 

the date of this permission. 
1.  

Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until evidence that the 

buildings have been constructed to BREEAM Excellent standard, or equivalent, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. 

 
Reason: To mitigate and adapt to climate change. 
 
3. No external brickwork, facing or cladding materials shall be constructed or applied 

unless in accordance with a written specification and a physical sample panel, details 
of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.  

 
 The sample panel shall be provided on site and made available for inspection by 
 the Council for the duration of the construction works.  
 
 The sample panel shall show the make, type, size, colour, bond, pointing, coursing, 
 jointing, profile and texture of the external brick, facing and cladding materials. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of Area of Townscape Character. 
 
4. The development hereby approved shall not commence unless a Construction Noise 

Management Plan (CNMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Council. The CNMP shall include a programme of works and must clearly demonstrate 
the mitigation measures to be put in place to minimise adverse impacts from vibration, 
noise and dust on nearby premises during the demolition and construction phases. No 
development or construction shall take place unless in accordance with the approved 
CNMP. 

 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity 
 
5. The Rating Level (dBLAr,T) from the operation of all combined plant and equipment at 

the hereby permitted development shall not exceed the existing daytime and night-time 
background noise level at the nearest noise sensitive premises, when measured or 
determined in accordance with BS4142:2014+A1:2019 ‘Methods for rating and 
assessing industrial and commercial sound’. 

Page 141



Page | 16 
 

 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity 
 
6. Commercial deliveries and collections from the development shall not be undertaken 

outside the hours of 0700 to 2300. 
 
Reason: Protection of residential amenity 
 
7. In the event that any centralised combustion sources (boilers, CHP, biomass or 

generators) are proposed and there is a risk of impact at relevant receptor locations as 
per the criteria detailed within the Environmental Protection UK and Institute of Air 
Quality Management, Land-use Planning & Development Control: Planning For Air 
Quality (January 2017), an updated Air Quality Impact Assessment shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Council prior to the installation of the plant. The 
assessment shall include details of the combustion plant to be installed, to include 
emission rates and flue termination heights of the proposed combustion systems and 
must demonstrate that there will be no exceedances of the Air Quality Strategy 
objectives at relevant human receptor locations, associated with operation of the 
proposed combustion plant and with the overall development. No centralised 
combustion sources shall be erected or installed unless in accordance with the 
approved details. 

8.  
Reason: In the interests of air quality 
 

8. Dust management measures, as detailed within Chapter 7 of the submitted ARUP, 
Air Quality Assessment, Queen’s University Belfast, June 2023 shall be 
implemented at all times during the construction phase of the development. 

 
Reason: Protection of human health and local air quality. 
 

9. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence on site 
(other than site clearance, site preparation, demolition and the formation of 
foundations and trenches) unless details of foul and surface water drainage, 
including a programme for implementation of these works, have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council. The surface water drainage shall 
incorporate SuDS measures. The development shall not be carried out unless in 
accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained as such thereafter.  
 

Reason: To ensure appropriate foul and surface water drainage of the site. Approval is 
required upfront because the design of the drainage is an integral part of the development 
and its acceptability. 
 

10. In the event that piling is required, no piling work shall commence on site unless a 
piling risk assessment, undertaken in full accordance with the methodology 
contained within the Environment Agency document on “Piling and Penetrative 
Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by Contamination: Guidance on 
Pollution Prevention”, has been submitted in writing and agreed with the Planning 
Authority. The methodology is available at: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140329082415/http://cdn.environment-
agency.gov.uk/scho0501bitt-e-e.pdf 
There shall be no piling unless in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 

Page 142

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140329082415/http:/cdn.environment-agency.gov.uk/scho0501bitt-e-e.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140329082415/http:/cdn.environment-agency.gov.uk/scho0501bitt-e-e.pdf


Page | 17 
 

11. If during the development works, new contamination or risks are encountered which 
have not previously been identified, works shall cease and the Council shall be 
notified immediately in writing. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in 
accordance with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance 
available at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/landcontamination-how-to-manage-the-
risks. In the event of unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council, and subsequently 
implemented. The development shall not be occupied until a Verification Report 
that demonstrates that the approved remediation measures have been 
implemented has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. 

 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use.  
 

12. No development or works shall commence on site (other than that required to fulfil 
this condition) unless a programme of archaeological work has been implemented 
in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by 
the applicant and approved in writing by the Council.  
 

Reason:  To ensure that archaeological remains and features are preserved in situ. 
Approval is required upfront because archaeological remains and features could be 
damaged or permanently lost.  
 

13. A programme of post-excavation analysis, preparation of an archaeological report, 
dissemination of results and preparation of the excavation archive shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the programme of archaeological work approved 
under condition 12. 
 
These measures shall be implemented, and a final archaeological report shall be 
submitted to the Council within six months of the completion of archaeological 
programme of works. 

 
Reason:  To ensure that the archaeological remains and features are properly analysed 
and recorded. 
 
DRAFT INFORMATIVES 
 
NOT02  Compliance with planning permission 
Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved 
plans and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal 
is unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If 
you would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised 
to the contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk.  
 
 
NOT03  Discharge of condition(s) 
This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted 
to and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know 
when this information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 
weeks for the Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and 
sometimes longer depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this 
when planning the timeline of your project.  
 
NOT05  Non-planning requirements 
The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, 
consents or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other 

Page 143

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


Page | 18 
 

authorisations may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application 
and can be accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from 
consultees may also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or 
developer.  
 

 
 

Page 144



Page | 1 
 

Development Management Report 
 

Summary 
Application ID: LA04/2023/3856/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: 
Short duration Geothermal Ground Source 
Heating Demonstration Project comprising 
shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 no. 
exploratory boreholes, associated temporary 
access, compound areas and mobile public 
information kiosk. 

Location: 
Lands at Stormont Estate, Upper Newtownards 
Road, Belfast 

Referral Route: Major Application 
 

Recommendation: Approval subject to conditions 
 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Dept for the Economy, Adelaide House, 
Adelaide Street, Belfast 
 

Agent Name and Address: 
Gravis Planning, 1 Pavilions Office Park, 

Kinnegar Drive, Holywood 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full permission for a short duration Geothermal Ground Source Heating 
Demonstration Project comprising shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 no. exploratory 
boreholes, associated temporary access, compound areas and mobile public information kiosk. 
 
The key issues are: 

 Principle of development 

 Built heritage 

 Climate change 

 Natural heritage and landscape 

 Access 

 Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 
 

Consultees are satisfied subject to conditions and no representations have been received.  

Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 

wording of conditions, and deal with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the decision, 

provided that they are not substantive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 8d



Page | 2 
 

1.0 Drawings 
 
Site Location Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



Page | 3 
 

Site Layout (showing borehole locations – EB1, EB2, EB3, STRAT/EB4, EB5) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 147



Page | 4 
 

Aerial image 
 

 
 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 
The application site measures approximately 11.1ha and is located at lands within Stormont 
Estate, Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast. The main parliament building and its associated 
gardens are located outside the site but within the north and west section of the wider estate. 
The eastern part of the estate includes sporting facilities and a number of government offices 
and parking.  The proposal is located in the south-eastern part of the estate. 
 
The site is within the development limits of Belfast in BUAP, on white unzoned land, closely 
adjacent to an area of “Landscape, Recreation or Amenity use”. Draft BMAP (v2004) 
identifies the site as within the city’s settlement limit and within Stormont Office Node (ref. 
BT019).  The site does not extend into the adjacent area of existing open space.   In BMAP 
the site is zoned as Stormont Office Node (ref. BT012), it is within a Local Landscape Policy 
Area and a Historic Park, Garden and Demesne. A very small part of the site to the north 
west extends into a Site of Local Nature Conservation Importance (BT084/27).  
 
 

Page 148



Page | 5 
 

3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 

Description of Proposed Development 
 
Full planning permission is sought for a short duration Geothermal Ground Source Heating 
Demonstration Project comprising shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 no. 
exploratory boreholes, associated temporary access, compound areas and mobile public 
information kiosk.  The proposal includes drilling of 4 No boreholes (EB1 – EB3, EB5) each 
to a depth of up to 250 m and 1 No cored borehole to a depth of up to 500 m deep 
(STRAT/EB4). 
 
The aim of the project is to conduct geothermal exploratory and feasibility studies in 
accordance with the actions set out within the Northern Ireland Energy Strategy (Path to Net 
Zero Energy). This project will identify suitable drill sites then drill and test the water and 
rocks in five shallow exploratory boreholes within the Stormont Estate. This location at 
Stormont has been chosen because it sits on top of a productive aquifer with shallow 
geothermal potential for both closed-loop and open-loop geothermal systems. 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations 
 
Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Other Policies 
Belfast Agenda 
 
Relevant planning history  
There is recent relevant planning history within the vicinity of the site under the following 
application references: 
 

- LA04/2023/3232/DETEIA – Short duration Geothermal Ground Source Heating 
Demonstration Project comprising shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 no. 
exploratory boreholes, associated temporary access, compound areas and mobile 
public information kiosk, Lands at Stormont Estate Upper Newtownards Road,  
Belfast,  BT4 3SB. Decision - EIA Not required 07.09.2023. 

 
- LA04/2023/2459/F & LA04/2023/2467/LBC - Redevelopment of the NICSSA pavilion 

complex within the Stormont Estate creating a centre of excellence for sport. The 
development will comprise of demolition of the existing pavilion building and 
replacement with new 2 storey building providing state of the art indoor sports halls, 
changing accommodation, function/meeting space offering improvements to the 
existing offering. Site works will include the demolition and site clearance of the 
Dundonald House site to facilitate the extension and development of new 
international standard outdoor multi-sports playing, training and ancillary facilities. 
Day to Day operation of the site will be improved by way of improvements to internal 
road network via new access/egress arrangements from the existing Stoney Road 
junction, additional car and cycle parking and new waste/recycling areas – Under 
Consideration. 

Page 149



Page | 6 
 

 
4.6 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The boundary of the above application extends east to include part of the proposed borehole 
application site. As the proposed boreholes will only be temporary in nature, there will be no 
conflict with the proposed redevelopment of the NICSSA Pavilion complex. 
 
Since this proposal falls under the category of Major Development, Pre Application 
Community Consultation was carried out under the planning reference 
LA04/2023/2904/PAN.  The PACC report details the online consultation, public event, as well 
as remote consultation.  Feedback in general was supportive for the project while there were 
some queries.  Queries included questions regarding why the project was ‘short duration’, 
what depth they intended to drill to etc. 
 
Consultations and Representations 
 
Statutory Consultees 
DFI Roads Service – No objection 
NI Water – No objection 
DfI Rivers Agency – No objection 
DAERA Water Management Unit – No objection 
DAERA Regulation Unit – No objection subject to conditions 
Historic Environment Division: Historic Buildings – No objection subject to conditions 
DAERA Drinking Water Inspectorate – No objection 
DAERA Natural Environment Division – No objection subject to conditions  
 
Non Statutory Consultees 
BCC Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions 
BCC Tree Officer – No objection subject to conditions 
Shared Environmental Services - No objection subject to conditions 
 
Representations 
The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  No written 
representations have been received. 
 
Planning Assessment  
 
Development Plan Context 
 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP) when fully completed will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 
comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 
policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 
provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 
zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the statutory 
local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 

Page 150



Page | 7 
 

6.5 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant 
to consideration of the application. These are listed in the report. 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must 
have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 and v2014) 
(draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to these 
proposals maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant weight 
should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its advanced stage 
in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to Sprucefield which remain 
contentious. The relevant zonings/designations are set out below. 
 
dBMAP (v2004) 
In dBMAP (v2004) the site is within the Belfast Metropolitan/Settlement Development Limit. 
identifies the site as within the city’s settlement limit and within Stormont Office Node (ref. 
BT 019).  The site does not extend into the adjacent area of existing open space. 
 
dBMAP2015 (v2014) 
In dBMAP (v2014) the site is within the Belfast Metropolitan/Settlement Development Limit. 
The site is zoned as Stormont Office Node (ref. BT012), it is within Stormont Local 
Landscape Policy Area (BT 135); Landscape Character Area (LCA) 97 Belfast/Lisburn; and 
Craigantlet Escarpment Area of High Scenic Value (Plan Policy COU 5/09) and a Historic 
Park, Garden and Demesne. A very small part of the site to the north west extends into a 
Site of Local Nature Conservation Importance (BT 084/27).  
 
BUAP 
Within the BUAP the site is within the settlements limits of Belfast but the land is white 
unzoned land. 
 
Relevant Planning Policies 
Policy SP2 – Sustainable development 
Policy SP6 – Environmental resilience 
 
Policy DES1 – Principles of Urban Design 
Policy DES2 - Masterplanning approach for major development 
 
Policy BH1 - Listed buildings 
Policy BH4 – Works to grounds affecting built heritage assets 
Policy BH6 – Parks, gardens, and demesnes of special historic interest 
 
Policy ITU4 – Renewable energy development 
 
Policy ENV1 – Environmental Quality 
Policy ENV2 - Mitigating environmental change 
Policy ENV3 – Adapting to environmental change 
Policy ENV4 – Flood Risk 
 
Policy TRAN6 – Access to public roads 
 
Policy NH1 – Protection of natural heritage resources 
Policy TRE1 – Trees 
Policy LC1 – Landscape 
Policy LC1C – LLPAs 
 
 

Page 151



Page | 8 
 

8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.0 
 
 
 
 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 

Key issues 
 
The key issues to be considered in the assessment of this application are: 

 Principle of development 

 Built heritage 

 Climate change 

 Natural heritage and landscape 

 Access 

 Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 
 

RDS 
Policy RG5 relates to the delivery of a sustainable and secure energy supply. It states that; 
decision makers will have to balance impacts against the benefits from a secure renewable 
energy stream, and the potential for cleaner air and energy for industry and transportation. 
The first objective is to; Increase the contribution that renewable energy can make to the 
overall energy mix. There will need to be a significant increase in all types of renewable 
electricity installations and renewable heat installations, including a wide range of renewable 
resources for electricity generation both onshore and offshore to meet the region’s needs.  
The proposal is considered to be consistent with the general direction of the Strategy’s 
strategic objectives in this regard. 
 
SPPS 
Para 6.217 of the SPPS states that the main sources of renewable energy are wind, sun 
(solar energy), moving water (hydropower), heat extracted from the air, ground and water 
(including geothermal energy), and biomass (wood, biodegradable waste and energy crops 
such as for use in an Anaerobic Digestor). Para 6.218 states that the aim of the SPPS in 
relation to renewable energy is to facilitate the siting of renewable energy generating facilities 
in appropriate locations within the built and natural environment in order to achieve Northern 
Ireland’s renewable energy targets and to realise the benefits of renewable energy without 
compromising other environmental assets of acknowledged importance.  The proposal is 
considered to be consistent with the general direction of the SPPS policies in this regard. 
 
Principle of development 
Geothermal is seen as one of the most environmentally friendly ways of producing, locally 
sustainable and renewable energy as it harnesses the heat which is continuously produced 
inside the earth. Energy is naturally stored as heat in rocks and waters within the Earth’s 
subsurface.  
 
In the right geological setting heat can be utilised at the surface by either pumping water to 
the surface as a direct heat source or, it can be used to create steam that can power a turbine 
and generate electricity. In most cases, low temperature heat from shallow depths is used 
by transferring heat from the rocks to a circulating fluid in a pipe, which can be extracted and 
further warmed using a heat pump. The heat exchange processes can also operate in 
reverse and transfer excess heat back to the subsurface, thereby cooling buildings. 
 
The Stormont Estate proposal intends to prove that a shallow geothermal system can provide 
efficient, affordable, heating, cooling and thermal storage to help decarbonise and reduce 
the cost of heating buildings not only on the Estate, but elsewhere. 
 
The Design and Access Statement which accompanies the submission highlights that 
accessing geothermal energy is totally different to fracking. Geothermal projects circulate 
fresh water in pre-existing pore spaces and fractures beneath the earth’s surface and once 
the heat has been extracted and used, the water is re-injected into the same formation to 
allow it to re-heat. Fracking is where rock is deliberately fractured under pressure to enable 

Page 152



Page | 9 
 

 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
 

gas to be extracted. The aim of this Geothermal project is to capture natural heat and use it 
as renewable energy, to assist with moving away from fossil fuel use. 
 
The proposed borehole sites are located on or close to existing car parks which are low lying 
with flat topography.  They are situated in locations which will not be visible from public 
viewpoints on the Upper Newtownards Road.  Policy ITU 4, Renewable energy development 
is a material consideration. The consultation responses from Environmental Health and 
DAERA indicate the proposal will not result in an unacceptable adverse impact on human 
health, visual amenity, nature conservation or natural resources. The principle of the 
development is considered to be in keeping with the direction of the criteria set out in Policy 
ITU 4. 
 
Built Heritage 
The proposal has been assessed against Policies BH1, BH4 and BH6 of the Plan Strategy.  
The Historic Environment Division was consulted since the site is in the vicinity of Dundonald 
House (Grade B listed building HB26/13/045), which is of special architectural and historic 
interest, protected by Section 80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011.  HED Historic Buildings 
(HED:HB) has considered the effects of the proposal on the listed building and on the basis 
of the information provided is content subject to the inclusion of conditions. 
 
The application site is also located in an Historic Park, Garden and Demesne however only 
one borehole is within this area (EB3).   An Archaeological and Built Heritage Appraisal 
accompanying the application set out details of archaeological monitoring and earthwork 
restoration, however HED Historic Monuments did not return formal comments.  They 
instead confirmed via internal email they were content with the bore holes “subject to micro-
siting to ensure that the drilling will not cause any damage to the existing tree planting”.  This 
was essentially reiterating their comments from the associated EIA determination 
(LA04/2023/3232/DETEIA).  The proposal therefore complies with policies BH1, BH4 and 
BH6. 
 
Climate change 
Policy ENV2, (Mitigating Environmental Change) states that planning permission will be 
granted for development that incorporates measures to mitigate environmental change and 
reduce greenhouse gas by promoting sustainable patterns of development.  Policy ENV3, 
(Adapting to environmental change) states that planning permission will be granted for 
development that incorporates measures to adapt to environmental change, in order to 
support sustainable and enduring development.   
 
The proposal complies with these policies in seeking to investigate existing resources in 
order to promote and encourage the use of renewable energy, and encourage its use in the 
future.  The proposal does not involve any built development as such so there is no potential 
for SUDs measures. 
 
Natural Heritage and landscape 
A range of ecological reports including a Bat report, Badger Survey and Habitats Regulation 
Assessment were submitted.  DAERA NED assessed the proposal and considered its 
impacts on designated sites and other natural heritage interests, and on the basis of the 
information provided has no concerns subject to the inclusion of conditions should approval 
be granted. Having regard to Policy NH1, Protection of Natural Heritage Resources, it is 
considered that the proposal meets the requirements of the relevant policy. 
 
Policies LC1 and LC1A are of relevance with regard to seeking to protect and improve the 
quality and amenity of the landscape. Given that all associated components of the system 
are not visible from above ground, there would be no visual impact on the landscape area. 
Therefore, the proposal would comply with policy LC1 and LC1A.  This was confirmed 

Page 153



Page | 10 
 

 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.14 
 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.20 
 
 
 
 
9.21 
 
 
 

within BCC Landscape, Planning and Development comments during pre application 
discussions. 
 
A TPO is present on the site (LA04/2023/0053/TPO), and the existing trees adjacent to the 
proposal provide high levels of visual amenity offering and helping promote the character 
within the context of the surrounding area.  A tree protection plan and arboricultural report 
were submitted and forwarded to the BCC Tree Officer for comment.  No trees or 
woodlands are proposed to be removed for installation of the boreholes which are all to be 
constructed outside of the existing RPAs.  Tree protection measures were outlined which 
will be conditioned as part of any approval and the proposal complies with Policy TRE1. 
 
Access  
Access to the five locations will be via Stoney Road, which will then follow the internal road 
network within Stormont Estate.  Drill locations EB1, EB2 and the STRAT/EB4 boreholes are 
located in the southeast of the site at/adjacent to Dundonald House car parking areas. EB5 
will be accessed via Stoney Road and EB3 will be accessed via the internal road to the west 
of the Castle Buildings. 
 
The DAS states that traffic to the site will be limited and typically be of the order of a 
few vehicle trips per day to and from site, including the drilling rig. It will also include visitor 
traffic for those wishing to visit the mobile info kiosk, which is not expected to cause a 
perceptible change to local traffic levels. There are no proposed changes to carparking or 
movement around the Estate with the site accessed from the existing vehicular access. DfI 
Roads Service has considered the proposed development and raise no objection under 
Policy TRAN8. 
 
Drainage and Waste-Water Infrastructure 
As stated previously the proposal does not involve any built development as such so there 
is no potential for SUDs measures, and therefore Policy ENV5 is not applicable. 
 
Shared Environmental Service (SES) carried out a Habitats Regulation Assessment on 
behalf of the Council and advise that the development would not have an adverse effect on 
the integrity of any European site, either alone or in combination with other plans or 
projects subject to mitigation measures which are recommended as a condition. 
 
DAERA’s Drinking Water Inspectorate and Water Management Unit both responded with no 
objection to the proposal and suggested conditions to be included should approval be 
granted. They noted obtaining the requisite statutory permissions and adhering to their 
associated conditions will be fundamental for the project.  NI Water and DfI Rivers Agency 
responded with no objection, and therefore the proposal complies with Policies ENV3, ENV4 
and ENV5. 
 
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts 
A Quantitative Risk Assessment were submitted relating to the risk of contaminated land 
on the site.  BCC Environmental Health and DEARA both responded with no objection to 
the proposal and suggesting conditions to be included should approval be granted. 
 
BCC Environmental Health also have no objection to the proposed development subject to 
the inclusion of a condition relating to the control of noise and vibration impacts detailed 
within the CEMP, should approval be granted.   

10.0 Recommendation: 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  

Page 154



Page | 11 
 

 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 

the wording of conditions, and deal with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the 

decision, provided that they are not substantive. 

11.0 Draft Conditions:  
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
2. Prior to and throughout the exploratory drilling and testing phases of the proposal, the 
appointed contractor must implement, and adhere to, all mitigation measures set out in the 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) – (Tetra Tech, dated August 2023) 
to effectively prevent the egress of contaminated water from the drilling and testing sites. All 
exploratory drilling and testing works must conform with the proposed measures in the 
CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: To ensure the project will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of any 
European site. 
 
3. During construction of the development, noise and vibration impacts shall be controlled 
in accordance with Section 3.9.1 of the submitted Tetra Tech report ‘Geothermal Feasibility 
Study, Stormont Estate, Belfast, Northern Ireland; Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) – Shallow Geothermal Exploratory Drilling and Testing Works’, 
Version 2, dated August 2023. 
 
Reason: Protection of local amenity 
 
4. No development activity, including ground preparation or vegetation clearance, shall 
take place until protection zones, clearly marked with posts joined with hazard warning tape, 
has been provided around badger sett entrances Outlier 3, Outlier 5, and Outlier 7 (as 
identified within Figure 2a of the Badger Survey Report dated August 2023) at a radius of 25 
metres. No works, vegetation clearance, disturbance by machinery, dumping or storage of 
materials shall take place within the protection zones unless an appropriate Wildlife Licence 
has been obtained from NIEA. The protection zones shall be retained and maintained until 
all construction activity has been completed on site. 
 
Reason: To protect badgers and their setts on the site. 
 
5. No works shall take place between 1 March and 31 August inclusive, unless a competent 
ecologist has undertaken a detailed check for active bird’s nests within 48 hours prior to 
works and provided written confirmation that no nests are present / birds will be harmed and 
/ or there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting birds. Any such written 
confirmation shall be submitted to the Planning Authority within 6 weeks of works 
commencing. 
 
Reason: To protect breeding birds. 
 
6. No development shall commence until the applicant has submitted evidence in writing to 
the Planning Authority for its agreement demonstrating that the risks to groundwaters and 
surface waters due to on-site contamination of the groundwater have been effectively 
assessed. This evidence should include: 

Page 155



Page | 12 
 

• Suitable groundwater quality monitoring data and a quantitative risk assessment to 
investigate the risks to groundwater and surface water from groundwater contamination 
identified at the site, 
• If unacceptable risks to the water environment are identified, provision of remedial criteria 
as groundwater concentrations that would not pose a risk to receptors. The remedial criteria 
are required to be derived through quantitative risk assessment based on the Conceptual 
Site Model and the Environment Agency’s Hydrogeological Risk Assessment for Land 
Contamination. Remedial Targets Worksheet v3.2 (P20) or an equivalent risk assessment 
tool.  If unacceptable risks to receptors are identified a remediation strategy to address those 
risks should be submitted to the Planning Authority for agreement. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
7. A watching brief for land contamination should be maintained by a suitably qualified and 
experienced individual during groundworks. If new contamination or risks are encountered 
which have not previously been identified, works should cease, and the Planning Authority 
shall be notified immediately. This new contamination shall be fully investigated in 
accordance with the Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks  In the event of 
unacceptable risks being identified, a remediation strategy shall be agreed with the Planning 
Authority in writing, and subsequently implemented and verified to its satisfaction. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
8. After completing all necessary remediation works, and prior to operation of the 
development, a verification report needs to be submitted in writing and agreed with Planning 
Authority. This report should be completed by competent persons in accordance with the 
Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks  The verification 
report should present all the remediation, waste management and monitoring works 
undertaken and demonstrate the effectiveness of the works in managing all the risks and in 
achieving the remedial objectives. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
9. On completion of the project, all geotechnical boreholes must be fully decommissioned 
and in line with SEPA guidance document Good practice for decommissioning redundant 
boreholes and wells (UK Groundwater Forum) available at: 
https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/34618/decommissioning-redundant-boreholes-andwells.pdf 
 
Evidence of the decommissioning shall be provided in a verification report which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: Protection of environmental receptors to ensure the site is suitable for use. 
 
10.  No works shall commence on site unless a Detailed Method Statement has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council. The Method Statement shall demonstrate 
that Dundonald House shall be monitored for vibration during the proposed works. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is not detrimental to the character, appearance 
or interest of the Listed Buildings. Approval is required upfront to safeguard original features 
of the building. 
 
11. All associated site compounds shall be removed and ground finishes shall be returned 
to their original material and state on completion of the works. 

Page 156

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks
https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/34618/decommissioning-redundant-boreholes-andwells.pdf


Page | 13 
 

 
Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the Listed 
Building 
 
12. On completion of the works bore holes shall be finished with manholes instead of fencing 
compounds. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the Listed 
Building 
 
13. The gates and piers at the main entrance to Upper Newtownards Road and rear entrance 
at Stoney Road shall be protected against impact for the duration the works. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic qualities of the Listed 
Building 
 
14. All trees and planting within the site shall be retained. Any trees or planting indicated on 
the approved drawings which, within a period of five years from the date of planting, die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying, shall be replaced during the 
next planting season (October to March inclusive) with other trees or plants of a location, 
species and size to be first approved in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
15. Prior to any work commencing all tree protective measures, protective barriers (fencing) 
and ground protection is to be erected or installed as specified within the landscape plan and 
in accordance with the British Standard 5837: 2012 (section 6.2) on any trees to be retained 
within the site and must be in place before any materials or machinery are brought onto site 
for demolition, development, or soil stripping. Protective fencing must remain in place until 
all work is completed, and all associated materials and equipment are removed from site. 
 
Reason: To ensure the protection of, and to ensure the continuity of amenity afforded by any 
existing trees to be retained within the site and on adjacent lands. 
 
16. Details specified within the submitted Arb Impact Assessment & Method Statement – J 
Morris Arb Consultancy – date 7th August 2023 submitted in support of the application shall 
be adhered to in full, subject to site supervision as specified within the report, by a suitably 
qualified tree specialist. 
 
Reason: Required to safeguard and enhance the character and amenity of the streetscape 
and to avoid any irreversible damage to retained trees. 
 
17. No storage of materials, parking of vehicles or plant, temporary buildings, sheds, offices 
service runs / cables or fires within the RPA of trees within the site and adjacent lands during 
the construction period. 
 
Reason: To avoid compaction and root severance within the RPA of existing trees to be 
retained. 

 

  

Page 157



Page | 14 
 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   18/08/23 

Date First Advertised  22/09/23 

Date Last Advertised (as above) 
 

Date of Last Neighbour Notification 26/09/23 (85 notified) 

Date of EIA Determination 07/09/23 

 

Page 158



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Application ID:LA04/2023/3076/F Committee Meeting Date: 19th March 2024 

Proposal: 
Single storey extension to the Gael-Ionad Mhic 
Goill building, to provide additional common 
room space and classroom facilities, reception 
area, a multi-purpose room and heritage cafe 
space, with associated toilets and ancillary 
spaces in addition. An external outdoor 
performance area and landscaped areas will 
be provided in addition to car parking areas & 
bin stores. 
 

Location: 
Glor Na Mona, 4 Whiterock Close, Ballymurphy, 
Belfast, Antrim, BY12 7RG 

Referral Route: Council owned land which Gael-loan Mhic Goiland lease from Belfast City 
Council (3.8.5 (d)). 

Recommendation: Approval   

Applicant Name and Address: 
Feargal Mac Ionnrachtaigh 
4 Clos Na Carraige 
Béal Feirste 
BT12 7RG 

Agent Name and Address: 
Kevin Neeson  
McCartan Muldoon Architects 
Studio 1, The Marina Centre 
135a Shore Road 
Ballyronan 
Magherafelt 
BT45 6JA 

Executive Summary: 
This application seeks full planning permission for a single storey extension to the Gael-Ionad 
Mhic Goill building, to provide additional common room space and classroom facilities, reception 
area, a multi-purpose room and heritage cafe space, with associated toilets and ancillary spaces 
in addition. An external outdoor performance area and landscaped areas will be provided in 
addition to car parking areas & bin stores. 
 
The main issues to be considered are:  

 Design, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area 

 Open Space and Landscape Designations 

 Access and Movement  

 Climate Change 

 Waste-water infrastructure  

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including contamination  
 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered on balance acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of the conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, including consideration of the 
outstanding Shared Environmental Services consultation, provided that they are not substantive 
 
 

Page 159

Agenda Item 8f



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 2 of 13 

Officer Report 

1.0 Drawings 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fig 1. Site Location Plan   
 

 
Fig.2 Proposed Site Layout  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 160



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 3 of 13 

1.3  Fig. 1 Contextual Elevations  

 
2.0  Characteristics of the Site and Area 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The site is located at the Glor Na Mona centre in west Belfast.  The site contains an 
existing single storey building with associated car parking.  There are grassed areas 
adjacent to all sides of the building.  There is a fenced off area of vacant, open space 
immediately to the south.  The Whiterock Leisure Centre is to the southwest, there is a 
playground to the west and the City Cemetery to the east.  The site is within BT 99 
Milltown Urban Landscape Wedge, as designated in draft BMAP (2004 version) 

3.0 Description of Proposal 

3.1 
 
 
 

This application seeks full planning permission for a single storey extension to the Gael-
Ionad Mhic Goill building, to provide additional common room space and classroom 
facilities, reception area, a multi-purpose room and heritage cafe space, with associated 
toilets and ancillary spaces in addition. An external outdoor performance area and 
landscaped areas will be provided in addition to car parking areas & bin stores. 
 

4.0 Planning Policy and Other Material Considerations 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 
 
Other Policies 
Developer Contribution Framework (BCC) 
Belfast Agenda 
Creating Places (DfI) 
 
Relevant Planning History 

Page 161



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 4 of 13 

 
4.6  
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8  
 
 
 
4.9   
 
 
 
 

 
 LA04/2022/2137/F Glor na Mona 4 Whiterock Close.  Proposed detached modular 
temporary classroom and toilet unit with ramp for access at Gael-lonad Mhic Goiland.  
Relocation of existing temporary classroom (ref LA04/2021/2577/F) and existing palisade 
fencing on boundary moved 10.5m south to facilitate the new  temporary unit. Permission 
Granted  
 
LA04/2021/2577/F Gael-lonard Mhic Goill. Detached modular temporary classroom unit 
and toilet unit to the south of the existing community facility.  Existing southern fenced 
boundary moved due south by 8.5 metres.  Permission Granted  
 
Z/2014/1741/F Lands 50 metres due south of 2 Whiterock Close.  Change of design from 
that previously approved under application reference Z/2013/1075/f to provide a new single 
storey Irish Language and youth community centre.  Permission Granted  
 
Z/2013/1075/F Lands to East of Whiterock Close, North of Whiterock Leisure Centre, West 
of Belfast cemetery.  New construction timber framed, modular building for Irish Language 
Youth Centre, 2 storeys. Permission Granted 

5.0 Consultations and Representations 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 

Statutory Consultations 

 DfI Roads – Content subject to conditions   

 NI Water – Refusal  

 DAERA- Concerns raised from Water Regulation Unit and no concerns from the 
Natural Environment Division  

 Shared Environmental Services- Awaiting response  
   
 
Non-Statutory Consultations 

 BCC Environmental Health – Content subject to conditions 
 
Whilst consultees may have referred to the no longer extant Planning Policy Statements in 
their consultation responses, the equivalent policies in the Plan Strategy are either the 
same or sufficiently similar to not require the consultees to re-evaluate the proposal in the 
context of the Plan Strategy. 
 
Representations 
 
The application has been advertised and neighbours notified. The Council has received  
no representations in support or objection. 

6.0 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 

Development Plan Context 
 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 

Page 162



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 5 of 13 

 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP) when fully completed will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 
comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 
policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 
provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 
zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the 
statutory local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 
Operational policies – the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant 
to consideration of the application. These are listed in the report. 
 
Proposals Maps – until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must 
have regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban 
Area Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 and 
v2014) (draft BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to 
these proposals maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant 
weight should be given to the proposals map in draft BMAP 2015 (v2014) given its 
advanced stage in the development process, save for retail policies that relate to 
Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 
Relevant Planning Policies 
 
The following policies in the Plan Strategy are relevant to consideration of the application. 
 
Strategic Policies 
Policy SP1A – managing growth and supporting infrastructure delivery 
Policy SP2 – sustainable development 
Policy SP3 – improving health and wellbeing 
Policy SP5 – positive placemaking 
Policy SP6 – environmental resilience 
Policy SP7 – connectivity 
Policy SP8 – green and blue infrastructure network 
 
Spatial Development Strategy 
Policy SD1 – Settlement hierarchy 
Policy SD2 – Settlement Areas 
 
Shaping a Liveable Place  
Policy DES1 – Principles of Urban Design 
Policy CI1- Community Infrastructure 
 
Transport 
Policy TRAN1 – Active travel – walking and cycling 
Policy TRAN 2 – Creating an accessible environment 
Policy TRAN4 – Travel plan  
Policy TRAN6 – Access to public roads  
Policy TRAN8 – Car parking and servicing arrangements  
Policy TRAN10- Design of Car Parking  
 
Building a Smart Connected and Resilient Place  
Policy ENV1 – Environmental Quality 
Policy ENV2 – Mitigating Environmental Change 
Policy ENV3 – Adapting to Environmental Change 
Policy ENV4 – Flood Risk 

Page 163



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 6 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.10 
 
 
 
 
6.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.12 
 
 
 

Policy ENV5 – Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 
Promoting a Green and Active Place 
Policy OS1 – Protection of Open Space  
Policy OS3 – Ancillary Open Space  
Policy TRE1 – Trees 
Policy LC1 – Landscape 
Policy LC1D- Landscape Wedges 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance  
Placemaking and Urban Design 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems  
Transportation 
Trees and Development 
 
Key Issues 
The key issues are: 

 Design, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area 

 Open Space and Landscape Designations 

 Access and Movement  

 Climate Change 

 Waste-water infrastructure  

 Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including contamination.  
 
 
The adoption of the Plan Strategy requires the following updated assessment.  
 
Additional Information 
Officers requested that the applicant provides a “Plan Strategy Statement” that sets out 
how the proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Plan Strategy. Where the 
proposal does not meet the policy requirements, the applicant was asked to either modify 
the proposal or justify why they are not proposing to change the proposal. The applicant 
has subsequently provided a Plan Strategy Statement, which seeks to demonstrate 
compliance with the relevant policies.  
 
The Planning Service’s Plans and Policy team has been consulted on the applicant’s Plan 
Strategy. No further consultations have been considered necessary following adoption of 
the Plan Strategy. 
 
Principle of Development  
The site is located within the existing settlement limit (BUAP and dBMAP).  It is located 
withi the designated Milltown Urban Landscape Wedge (dBMAP).  There are no other 
zonings or designations affecting the site.  Adjacent lands are designated as a Local 
Landscape Policy Area (dBMAP) and represent existing open space, including the 
Whiterock Leisure Centre grounds and City Cemetery).  Policy CI1 Community 
Infrastrcuture generally supports community facilities at appropriate accessible locations 
within the urban area, subject to normal planning considerations.  The proposed 
development represents an extension of an existing community facility and is considered 
to be complaint with this policy.  
 
Design, layout and impact upon the character and appearance of the area 
 
The proposal complies with the criteria set out in A-K of Policy DES 1- Principles of Urban 
Design in that the scheme is of a high quality, sustainable design and makes a positive 

Page 164



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 7 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
6.13 
 
 
 
6.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.15 
 
 
6.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

contribution to placemaking.  The proposal to extend the existing community is considered 
to appropriately tie in with the current design scale and massing.  The finish of materials is 
to match the existing facility, white render with red tones to parts of the front and rear 
elevations.  Appropriate landscaping measures have been included to ensure the integrity 
of the Milltown Landscape Wedge is maintained.  
 
The proposal is considered to tie in with the adjacent housing at Whiterock Close.  There 
will be no issues in relation to overlooking, loss of light, overshadowing and dominance. 
 
Open Space and Landscape Designations  
Policy OS1 (protection of Open Space) protects against the loss of existing open space.  
The site is currently vacant/disused and is secured by palisade fencing.  There is a 
hardstanding area within the site that indicates some former use and it understood that it 
may have been used for community use before 2002.  The current proposal would therefore 
represent the restoration of such previous use, albeit with a substantial intervening period.  
It is considered that the site does not fall within the LDP 2035 definition of open space and 
Policy OS1 is therefore not applicable.  
 
 
The LDP 2035 Landscape Policies (general Policy LC1-Landscape and specific Policy 
LC1D- Landscape Wedges) are applicable in this instance.   
 
The Milltown Landscape Wedge covers an extensive area, from Milltown Cemetery near 
the M1 Motorway through Falls Park and City Cemetery to the Whiterock Leisure Centre. 
The designation at this location includes some existing buildings, such as a 3-storey fold 
housing block, the Whiterock Leisure Centre and the existing Glor na Mona facility. The 
proposed development is for an expansion of the existing community facility and, whilst 
part of it could be considered ‘outdoor recreation’ (permitted by the policy), the proposed 
development’s principle use is not outdoor recreation. Therefore, the proposal is not 
normally supported by the policy.  
 
However, the policy states that development may be considered where it is clearly shown 
that it will bring substantial community benefits that outweigh any potential landscape 
impacts, and that adequate mitigation will be put in place.   Whilst the proposal is situated 
within the Milltown Landscape Wedge, it is currently in a derelict state and is not in use.  
There is a presumption in favour of its retention, therefore an exemption will be granted 
where redevelopment will bring substantial community benefits that outweigh the loss of 
some of the landscape wedge.  It is also considered that the proposal suitably integrates 
with the existing building and surrounding site.  There are suitable landscaping measures 
put in place to ensure the site sits suitably within the landscape.   The proposal will not 
affect views onto the site and will not have a detrimental impact in the integrity of the wedge.  
Therefore, on balance, the proposal is considered acceptable.  
 
 
Climate change 
Policy ENV2 of the Plan Strategy states that planning permission will be granted for 
development that incorporates measures to mitigate environmental change and reduce 
greenhouse gases by promoting sustainable patterns of development. All new 
development proposals will maximise opportunities to incorporate sustainable design 
features where feasible (such as grey water recycling, green roofs, maximising use of 
recycled materials, orientating buildings to optimise solar gain, energy efficiency). 
Development proposals should, where appropriate, demonstrate the highest feasible and 
viable sustainability standards in the design, construction, and operation.  Similarly ENV3 
states that planning permission will be granted for development that incorporates measures 

Page 165



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 8 of 13 

 
 
 
6.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.20 
 
 
6.21 
 
 
 
 
 
6.22 
 
 
 
6.23 
 
 
 
 
6.24 
 
 
6.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.26 
 

to adapt to environmental change, in order to support sustainable and enduring 
development.  
 
The applicant has submitted a Climate Change Statement setting out that the following 
features are incorporated into the design to comply with both ENV2, ENV3 and ENV5: 

 The building is designed to be orientated to optimise solar gain and energy 
efficiency, 

 Improved fabric standards and increased on-site renewable generation will reduce 
carbon emissions to heat and power the building.  

 There will be 10-15 kW array of Photovoltaic Panels (PVs) located on the roof.  This 
will be linked back to the grid- surplus energy can be distributed back to the grid but 
it is intended that the power generated will be used within the building.  A battery 
pack can store the energy for general use and a converter will be used to assist 
with domestic hot water.  

 It is intended that the building will not utilise heating or hot water from traditional 
fossil fuel boilers and all systems will be electric.  

 An increased soft landscaped area with multiple semi mature native species and 
trees and areas of wildflower grasses mix will enhance bio-diversity on the site.  
 

There will be a net gain of 26 trees on site.  Therefore, on balance the proposal is 
considered to mitigate and adapt to climate change and comply with Policy TRE1.  
 
The proposal is considered on balance to satisfy the requirements as set out in ENV2, 
ENV3 and ENV5 of the Plan Strategy.  A pre commencement condition is proposed to 
ensure delivery of the above measures and that soft landscaping within the site introduces 
SuDS measures to partially meet ENV3 and comply with ENV 5.  
 
Access, movement, and parking  
 
The proposal has been assessed against the following policies, TRAN 6, TRAN 8, TRAN 
10. 
 
Policy TRAN 6- DfI Roads were consulted and is satisfied that parking on-street is unlikely 
to have a significant impact on the local road network in terms of traffic and road safety. 
The means of access to the development would be safe. There is sufficient parking 
available having regard to the location and sustainability of the site.   
 
Policy TRAN 8- Car Parking and Servicing Arrangements.  It is considered that adequate 
parking has been provided for the proposal.   
 
Policy TRAN 10 has been met in that the design of car parking meets the following criteria:  

a. It respects the character of the local townscape/landscape as the majority of 
parking is to the rear of the building.  The extent of parking retained at the front of 
the property is consider consistent with other development in the area and is 
screened by the implementation of landscaping along the site frontage.  

b. It will not adversely affect visual and residential amenity  
c. Provision has been made for security, and the direct and safe access and 

movement of pedestrians and cyclists within the site as all parking is overlooked 
and located adjacent to, or within a short distance of, the entrance to the building.  

d. Provision of one parking space has been made for accessible parking bays which 
facilitate safe, convenient access for people with a disability or impaired mobility.  
 

. 
The proposal is considered complaint to Policies, TRAN 2, 4, 6, 8 and 10.  

Page 166



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 9 of 13 

 
6.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.30 
 
 
 
6.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.32 
 
 
 
6.33 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Waste-water infrastructure 
NI Water has objected to the proposal on grounds of insufficient capacity at the local waste-
water treatment plan.  It advises that existing public waste-water infrastructure cannot 
currently support the proposal without significant risk of environmental harm, potential 
pollution, flood risk and harm to local amenity. However, no clear evidence has been 
provided to demonstrate specific harm resulting from the development. Moreover, NI Water 
has a duty to connect committed development across the city to its waste-water 
infrastructure. Such development, which includes significant levels of residential and 
commercial floor space across the city, will not all come forward at once and some may 
not come forward at all. For these reasons, it would be unreasonable for the Council to 
refuse planning permission on these grounds and the proposal is acceptable having regard 
to Policy SP1A of the Plan Strategy. 
 
Ecological Impacts  
Belfast City Council is the Competent Authority under the Conservation (Natural Habitats, 
etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995 (as amended) for undertaking an Appropriate 
Assessment where a proposal is likely to have a significant environmental effect on Belfast 
Lough, an environmentally protected Special Protection Area (SPA), RAMSAR and Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC). Water quality of the lough is a key consideration. The Habitats 
Regulations are framed in such a way that it is not only the impacts of individual 
development proposals that need to be considered, but also “in combination” impacts with 
other development. 
 
Whilst a precautionary approach applies to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), SES 
confirms that the onus is on NIW to provide evidence of likely actual impacts, rather than 
hypothetic impacts. As the Competent Authority, the Council may take its own objective 
view on whether a proposal is likely to have a significant effect on water quality of the 
Lough. However, having regard to the precautionary approach, where there is clear 
intensification, the Council may need to consult SES and ask them to undertake a HRA 
Appropriate Assessment Screening to ascertain whether there would be a likely significant 
impact. This also triggers statutory consultation with DAERA NI Environment Agency.  
 
In this case, it is considered that there would be clear intensification of the existing use of 
the site. Accordingly, it has been necessary to consult SES and DAERA. A response from 
SES is currently outstanding and delegated authority is sought to deal with this issue.  
 
DAERA Environment, Marine and Fisheries Group & NIEA has advised they have no 
objection to the proposal. Having regard to this advice, it is considered necessary to impose 
a condition to require details of foul drainage to be agreed prior to commencement of 
development. Subject to this condition, the proposal is considered compliant with Policy 
NH1 Protection of natural heritage resources and Policy ENV1 Environmental quality and 
the relevant provisions of the Strategic Planning Policy Statement. 
 
DEARA Natural Environment Division (NED) were consulted and are content that the 
proposal is unlikely to significantly impact NI Priority/protected species or habitats.  The 
proposal is therefore considered compliant with Policy NH1 and ENV1.  
 
Noise, odour and other environmental impacts including Contamination  
Policy ENV1 states that planning permission will be granted for development that will 
maintain and, where possible, enhance environmental quality, and protects communities 
from materially harmful development. The proposed development has been assessed by 
Environmental Health in terms of noise, air pollution, general amenity, ambient air quality, 
contaminated land, and other considerations.  
 

Page 167



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 10 of 13 

6.34 
 
 
 
 
6.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.36 
 
 
 
 

Contaminated land 
Environmental Health (EH) is of the opinion that past land-use on or in close proximity to 
this proposed development will not cause a potential impact on the health of the future 
occupants of the proposed development.   
 
Odour 
Environmental Health have advised in order to avoid potential for adverse odour impact on 
other sensitive premises in the vicinity, the applicant should seek advice on provision of 
suitable, fit for purpose kitchen extraction system incorporating sufficient grease filtration 
and any odour control technology as deemed necessary with regard to relevant industry 
guidance on the control of odours from commercial type kitchens.  Consequently, EH have 
requested condition attached to any planning permission.  
 
Noise 
EH offered no objection with regards to noise impacts from the development.  
 
The proposal is therefore considered to accord with Policy ENV1. 

7.0 Recommendation 

7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 

Having regard to the local development plan and other material considerations, the 
proposal is considered on balance acceptable.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise 
the wording of the conditions and Section 76 planning agreement, and deal with any other 
issues that arise, including consideration of the outstanding Shared Environmental 
Services consultation, provided that they are not substantive. 
 

DRAFT CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission. 

 Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2. The vehicular access shall be provided in accordance with Drawing No.02A uploaded to the 
Planning Portal 8th March 2024, prior to the operation of any other works or other development 
hereby permitted.  The vehicular access shall be formed using returned kerbs with pedestrian 
crossing points (tactile paving) provided to both sides of the access.  The vehicular access 
shall be of minimum width 5.0m. 

 
Reason: To ensure there is a satisfactory means of access in the interests of road    
 safety and the convenience of road users. 

 
 

3. The development hereby permitted shall not become operational hard surfaced areas have 
been constructed and permanently marked in accordance with Drawing N02A uploaded to the 
Planning Portal 8th March 2024, to provide for parking within the site.  No part of these hard 
surfaced areas shall be used for any purpose at any time other than for the parking and 
movement of vehicles in connection with the approved development. 

 
            Reason: To ensure adequate provision has been made for parking within the site. 

 

Page 168



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 11 of 13 

4. Prior to the commencement of operation of the hereby permitted kitchen, a kitchen extraction 
and odour abatement system, fit for purpose, designed in accordance with the EMAQ+ ‘Control 
of Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems’ guidance as updated May 
2022 shall be installed to control grease, smoke, and odours from cooking operations. The 
outlet from any extract ventilation ducting shall terminate at a height not less than 1m above 
rear main eaves height, and it shall be directed away from nearby sensitive premises.  
 
Reason: Protection against adverse amenity due to odour  
 

5. The hereby approved extraction and ventilation system shall be retained thereafter and must 
be cleaned and maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions to ensure 
compliance with condition 1 above. 
Reason: Protection against adverse amenity due to odour  

 

6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a landscape management 
plan shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the council. The landscape management 
plan should detail all soft landscaping including species, size and type, and include details of 
appropriate SUDs measures to assist in minimising flood risk. All agreed landscaping and 
SUDs measures shall thereafter be retained and managed as agreed. 

 
Reason: In the interests of mitigating against environmental change.    
 

7. All hard and/or soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the above 
approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. Any existing or proposed trees 
or plants indicated on the approved plans which, within a period of five years from the date of 
planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be replaced 
during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a location, species and size, details 
of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. All hard 
surface treatment of open parts of the site shall be permeable or drained to a permeable area. 
All hard landscape works shall be permanently retained in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 
 

8. All trees and planting within the site shall be retained unless shown on the approved drawings 
as being removed. Any retained trees or planting indicated on the approved drawings which 
become seriously damaged, diseased, or dying, shall be replaced during the next planting 
season (October to March inclusive) with other trees or plants of a location, species and size 
to be first approved in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 

9. All landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details on drawing 
no , uploaded to the planning portal on 05/02/2024 . The works shall be carried out prior to 
the completion of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council. Any 
trees or plants indicated on the approved scheme which, within a period of five years from the 
date of planting, die, are removed or become seriously damaged, diseased or dying shall be 
replaced during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a location, species and 
size, details of which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Council. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area 

Page 169



Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 12 of 13 

 
10. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence on site (other than 

site clearance, site preparation, demolition and the formation of foundations and trenches) 
unless details of foul and surface water drainage, including a programme for implementation 
of these works, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The 
development shall not be carried out unless in accordance with the approved details, which 
shall be retained as such thereafter.  

Reason: To ensure appropriate foul and surface water drainage of the site. Approval is 
required upfront because the design of the drainage is an integral part of the development 
and its acceptability. 

 
                    
DRAFT INFORMATIVES: 
 

1. This decision relates to the following approved drawing numbers: 01A 02A 03A 04A 5 
 

2. Please make sure that you carry out the development in accordance with the approved plans 
and any planning conditions listed above. Failure to do so will mean that the proposal is 
unauthorised and liable for investigation by the Council’s Planning Enforcement team. If you 
would like advice about how to comply with the planning permission, you are advised to the 
contact the Planning Service at Belfast City Council at planning@belfastcity.gov.uk. 
 

3. This planning permission includes condition(s) which require further details to be submitted to 
and approved by the Council. Please read the condition(s) carefully so that you know when this 
information needs to be provided and approved. It could take a minimum of 8 weeks for the 
Council to approve the details, assuming that they are satisfactory, and sometimes longer 
depending on the complexity of the condition. You should allow for this when planning the 
timeline of your project.  
 

4. The grant of planning permission does not dispense with the need to obtain licenses, consents 
or permissions under other legislation or protocols. The requirement for other authorisations 
may have been identified by consultees in their response to the application and can be 
accessed on the Northern Ireland Planning Portal website. The responses from consultees may 
also include other general advice for the benefit of the applicant or developer. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ANNEX 

 
Date Valid   15/04/2023 

Date First Advertised  05/05/2023 

Date Last Advertised 05/05/2023 
 

Neighbours  
 

 

Page 170

mailto:planning@belfastcity.gov.uk


Application ID: LA04/2023/3076/F 

 

Page 13 of 13 

 
 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary 

Committee Meeting Date:   19 March 2024 

Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F LA04/2024/0054/F 

Proposal: Change of use to conference 
centre facility with associated use as 
events/entertainment space   

Location: 
Former Print Hall, Ground floor, 122-144 Royal 
Avenue, Belfast, BT1 1DN 

Referral Route: Belfast City Council has an interest in the land. 
 

Recommendation: Approval 

Applicant Name and Address: 
The Limelight Belfast Ltd 
17 Clarendon Road 
Belfast 
BT1 3BG 

Agent Name and Address: 
Clyde Shanks Ltd 
2nd Floor  
7 Exchange Place 
Belfast 
BT1 2NA 
 

Executive Summary: 
Permanent full planning permission is sought for a change of use of former printing hall and 
premises to conference centre facility with associated use as events/entertainment space.   
 
The site is located within the development limits for Belfast. The site does not have any particular 
zoning within either the BUAP 2001 or draft BMAP 2015. It is located within the City Centre,  
Scotch/Cathedral character area and City Centre Area of Parking Constraint under draft BMAP. 
The site comprises part of the listed Belfast Telegraph Building. 
 
The key issues to be considered are: 
 

 Principle of development and use; 

 Impact on amenity;  

 Impact on the listed building; 

 Provision of parking and access. 
 
The application was neighbour notified and advertised in the local press. No third-party 
representations have been received.  
 
DFI Roads, Environmental Health, and Historic Environment Division have all been consulted. 
None have any objections to the proposal.  
 
There have been two previous temporary permissions for a similar use on this site by the same 
applicant with no detrimental impact on amenity. On balance, considering the previous temporary 
planning permissions granted to date and a live application for renewal of an expired permission 
for the overall redevelopment of the site, it is recommended that permission is granted.   
 
Recommendation: 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations, it is recommended that the 
application is approved, subject to conditions. 
 

Page 173

Agenda Item 8g



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 2 of 11 

Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they are not 
substantive. 
 

 
 

Case Officer Report 

Site Location Plan 

 
 

 
  

Page 174



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 3 of 11 

Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 

1.0 Description of Proposed Development 
 

1.1 The proposal seeks full planning permission for a change of use to conference centre facility 
with associated use as events/entertainment space.    
 

2.0 Description of Site 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 

The site comprises most of the ground floor of Nos. 122-144 Royal Avenue, Belfast. The 
building is four storeys in height and is finished in a mixture of red brick, render and cladding. 
The ground floor of the property was previously a printing hall and associated commercial 
space for Belfast Telegraph and is currently in use as a temporary event space.  
 
The surrounding area is defined by mixed use, with a large student accommodation block 
currently under construction adjacent to the site. Belfast Central Library and a number of 
commercial units including a hair salon are located in the surrounding area. 
 
The site includes part of a Grade B2 Listed Building at Nos. 124-144 Royal Avenue (former 
Belfast Telegraph building). The site is outside but opposite the Cathedral Conservation 
Area to the east. 
 

Planning Assessment of Policy and other Material Considerations 
 

3.0 Site History 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 

LA04/2024/0190/F - Renewal of planning permission ref: LA04/2018/1991/F for the demolition 
of existing non listed buildings and redevelopment of site with 6-8 storey buildings to 
accommodate office led mixed use development comprising Class B1 (a) office, ancillary 
Class B2 industrial floorspace, active ground floor uses retail (A1), restaurants, cafes and bars 
(sui generis); basement parking and associated access and circulation. Proposals include the 
retention and restoration of the listed Seaver building comprising façade restoration; new roof 
and reintroduction of dormers, replacement windows and reinstatement of original entrance to 
southern façade. Pending decision. 
 
LA04/2022/0155/F - Extension of time for temporary change of use of and alterations of former 
printing hall to event space for a period of 18 months. Expired 20 February 2024 
 
LA04/2021/2825/A - Retention of mesh banner signage (19.1m by 9.84m) for a temporary 
period of 24months – Refused 15th April 2022. 
 
LA04/2021/1586/A - Proposed mesh banner signage (19.1m x 9.84m) for a temporary basis 
of 24months – Refused 11th November 2021. 
 
LA04/2020/0662/A - Mesh banner signage (19.1m X 9.84m) (temporary for 1 year) – Granted 
for 1 year – 27th August 2020 for 1 year only. 
 
LA04/2019/0878/F - Extension of time for temporary change of use of and alterations of former 
printing hall to event space for a period of 3 years – Granted on 16th October 2019 for 2 years 
– Expired 16th October 2021. 
 
LA04/2018/1991/F - Former Belfast Telegraph complex at, 124-144 Royal Avenue and, 1-29 
Little Donegall Street, Belfast, BT1 1DN - Demolition of existing non listed buildings and 
redevelopment of site to accommodate office led mixed use development comprising Class 

Page 175



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 4 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
 
 
3.10 

B1 (a) office, ancillary Class B2 industrial floorspace, active ground floor uses retail (A1), 
restaurants, cafes and bars (sui generis); basement parking and associated access and 
circulation. Proposals include the retention and restoration of the listed Seaver building 
comprising façade restoration, new roof and reintroduction of dormers, replacement windows 
and reinstatement of original entrance to southern façade [amended scheme] – Granted – 
19th February 2019 – Expires 21st February 2024. 
 
LA04/2018/1968/LBC - Former Belfast Telegraph complex at, 124-144 Royal Avenue and, 1-
29 Little Donegall Street, Belfast, BT1 1DN., Demolition of attached structures, retention and 
restoration of the listed Seaver building comprising internal reconfiguration works, façade 
restoration of dormers, replacement windows and reinstatement of original entrance to 
southern façade – Consent Granted – 19th February 2019 – Expires 20th February 2024. 
 
LA04/2017/2209/F - Temporary change of use of former printing hall to event space for a 
period of 2 years including internal alterations and creation of two emergency exits onto 
Donegall Street - Granted on 29th November 2017 for a period of 1 year – Expired 28th 
November 2018. 
 
Z/2004/0303/F 124-144 Royal Avenue, Belfast Adjustments to existing roof to facilitate the 
installation of a new printing press – Granted. 

4.0 
 

Planning Policy  

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 

Development Plan – operational policies 
Belfast Local Development Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 
 
Development Plan – zoning, designations and proposals maps 
Belfast Urban Area Plan (2001) BUAP 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2004) 
Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015 (v2014) 
 
Regional Planning Policy 
Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) 
Strategic Planning Policy Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) 

5.0 Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

5.1 
 

DFC Historic Environments Division – No objection subject to conditions. 

5.2 DFI Roads – No objection subject to conditions. 
 

6.0 Non-Statutory Consultees Responses 
 

6.1 BCC Environmental Health – No objection subject to conditions.  
 

7.0 Representations 
 

7.1 
 
 

The application has been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press.  No 
representations have been received. 
 

8.0 Development Plan zonings  

8.1 The Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 shows the site as white un-zoned land. 
 
 
 

Page 176



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 5 of 11 

8.2 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2004 version: 
 
The site is located within the city centre boundary and the Scotch and Cathedral quarter 
character area. 
 

8.3 Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (BMAP) 2014 version (previously adopted and 
subsequently quashed): 
 
The site is located within the city centre boundary and the Scotch and Cathedral quarter 
character area. 
 

9.0 Assessment 
 

9.1 The key issues in the assessment of the proposed development include:  
 

 Principle of development and use; 

 Impact on amenity;  

 Impact on the listed building; 

 Provision of parking and access. 
 
 

 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Plan Context 
Section 6(4) of the Planning (Northern Ireland) Act 2011 states that in making any 
determinations under the Act, regard is to be had to the local development plan, and the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 45(1) of the Act states that in determining planning applications, the Council must 
have regard to the local development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations. 
 
The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP) when fully completed will replace the Belfast 
Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 
comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 
policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 
provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 
zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the 
statutory local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 
 
Operational policies: the Plan Strategy contains a range of operational policies relevant to 
consideration of the application. These are listed below: 
 

 Policy BH1 

 Policy BH2 

 Policy CC1 

 Policy RET1 

 Policy RET6 

 Policy ENV1 

 Policy TLC1 

 Policy TRAN2 

 Policy TRAN3 

 Policy TRAN4 

 Policy TRAN8 

Page 177



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 6 of 11 

 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposals Maps: Until such time as the Local Policies Plan is adopted, the Council must have 
regard to the land-use zonings, designations and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area 
Plan 2001, both versions of the draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan (v2004 and v2014) (draft 
BMAP 2015) and other relevant area plans. The weight to be afforded to these proposals 
maps is a matter for the decision maker. It is considered that significant weight should be given 
to the most recent version of dBMAP 2015 (v2014) given its advanced stage in the adoption 
process, save for retail policies relating to Sprucefield which remain contentious. 
 
The application site is located on un-zoned “white land” in accordance with the BUAP. 
However, the site is located within the City Centre and the Scotch and Cathedral Quarters for 
Belfast as designated by both iterations of Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2015, the 2004 
and 2014 versions.  It is outside the Primary Retail Core in both versions of dBMAP.  
 
Principle of development and use  
The proposal is compatible in principle with other city centre uses given its commercial nature 
and is a non-retail ground floor use outside the primary retail frontage (PRF) of the city centre, 
as defined in dBMAP 2015. It is also considered to be a main town centre use and its location 
within the boundary of Belfast City Centre complies with Policy RET 1 of the LDP.  
 
The supporting statement from the applicant states that although the proposal is for a 
permanent period, it acknowledges that there are plans to redevelop the site for a mixed-use 
scheme and that they will vacate the site once the other plans are ready to be implemented. 
This would be a matter from the landowner/landlord of the site. 
 
Policy CC1 supports mixed use development limit within development opportunity areas 
consistent with a number of principles. New development shall be directed towards sites within 
the development opportunities areas, including the Inner North West. The site is located within 
this area. However, given the nature of the proposal which is for change of use the ground 
floor of existing buildings, it is not considered proportionate nor necessary to require the 
proposal to come forward in accordance with a masterplan, nor are the other requirements of 
Policy CC1 considered applicable.  
 
The proposal does not include any physical alterations. Consideration is also given to the 
planning history, notably planning permission ref. LA04/2018/1991/F (see Site History). This 
has expired but a renewal has been submitted under ref. LA04/2024/0190/F. This, if approved, 
would be more likely to contribute to the delivery of the regeneration strategy for the area. The 
permanent approval of this use may hinder the aims of this policy.  However, the applicant has 
confirmed that there will be a 6-month break clause in the lease which will enable the 
landowner to evict the applicant when they finally are ready to redevelop the site. These lease 
terms will ensure a permanent approval will not restrict any realisation of wider regeneration 
aims for the site and its wider context. As the council is part owner of the site it will be able to 
have control over this. The rationale for a permanent approval this time around is to remove 
the increasing frequency and necessity to seek occasional licences from the Courts for the 
wide range of entertainment space that the venue lends itself to.  
 
Previous Temporary Permissions 
The previous planning permission on this site was for the temporary use of the ground floor 
as an event space and expired on the 20 February 2024. The guiding principle for approving 
a use on a temporary basis is to allow for a ‘test run’. Generally, no more than two consecutive 
temporary permissions should be approved and any application for a renewal should either be 
given a permanent permission or refused. This is the third such application for an event space 
at this site. However, the proposal for conference facilities with an associated event space 
does not sit on all fours with, and can therefore be distinguished from, the previous two 
temporary permissions which were solely for use as an event space.  

Page 178



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 7 of 11 

 
9.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.15 
 
 
 
9.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.17 
 
 
 
9.18 
 
 
 
9.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.21 
 
 

 
The rationale for granting the previous permissions for a limited period was to allow 
Environmental Health to monitor impacts on nearby premises and to ensure no conflict on 
potential future development, specifically at the nearby site, 2-14 Little Donegal Street. These 
comments were based on an historic approval for a mixed-use development including 18 
apartments under reference Z/2007/2120/F at 2-14 Little Donegall Street. It is however noted 
that this permission expired on 8 September 2016. An application to renew under ref. 
LA04/2016/1915/F was refused on 12th December 2018. There has been no further planning 
history on 2-14 Little Donegall Street therefore it is not considered likely that residential units 
will be developed on this site in the near future.  
 
Impact on Amenity 
In respect of noise, nuisance and disturbance from the proposed use, Environmental Health 
has been consulted and offer no objection on the basis that theirs and Building Control’s 
records showed no receipt of noise complaints.  
 
Environmental Health also assessed potential impacts on air quality as a result of the proposal 
and advise that if the proposed development is to include any centralised combustion plant 
(biomass, CHP or gas boilers, etc.), an Air Quality Impact Assessment may be required which 
considers relevant human health receptors and impact on local air quality. In such a scenario 
they would require technical information relating to the proposed centralised combustion plant 
be provided to Planning Service and request if planning permission is forthcoming it is on the 
condition that this information is submitted. However, the proposal is for change of use only 
and any additional plant or equipment may require separate planning permission in its own 
right and does not form part of the prospective permission to be granted. 
 
No commercial cooking operations will be undertaken within the development; outside 
catering will be provided for conferencing events. 
 
Contaminated Land  
It has been confirmed by the agent that there are no proposed groundworks at the 
development site and therefore Environmental Health is content.  
 
Impact on Listed Buildings 
The site partly comprises a Grade B2 Listed Building, although no physical alterations are 
proposed to the building. DfC HED was consulted and considered the effects of the proposal 
on listing buildings. It advises that the proposal is compliant with the Strategic Planning Policy 
Statement for Northern Ireland (SPPS) para(s) 6.13 and Policy BH1 of the Belfast LDP 
strategy and thus offers no objection. It is considered that the proposal would not harm the 
special architectural or historic qualities of the Listed Building, or its setting, and that the 
proposal is compliant with the SPPS and Policy BH1. 
 
Parking Provision and Access  
The applicant has submitted a transport statement incorporating a Transport Assessment, 
travel plan, and service management plan in line with policies TRAN 3 and 4. The 
application site is in an accessible city centre location, with provision of cycle parking, 
access to public transport and convenient walking distance to other parts of the city centre 
and public car parks.  Consideration as to the nature of the proposal as an events and 
music venue and a tourist attraction, it is acknowledged that visitors to the city centre and 
the proposal will less likely need to requiring use of a private car. DfI Roads were 
consulted and have no objection to the proposal, subject to conditions.   
 
In respect of access to the venue, Policy TRAN 2 is relevant. This seeks to ensure access 
to existing buildings via alterations where opportunities arise. The site in on the ground 
floor of the building at street level and accessed via double doors. The internal layout can 

Page 179



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 8 of 11 

 
 
 
 
9.22 
 
 
 
 

easily accommodate persons with disabilities. As such it would not be necessary to 
request modifications to the building to improve accessibility. Policy TRAN 2 is satisfied. 
  
DfI Roads has stipulated that it is content subject to conditions. However, it has requested 
that parking provision is secured by condition.  This condition is not relevant to the proposal 
as no hard surfaced areas and no parking are proposed, nor is this necessary given the 
sustainable location of the site, and therefore should be excluded from the final decision.  
 

10.0 
 
10.1 
 
 
10.2 

Summary of Recommendation:    Approval 
 
Having regard to the policy context and other material considerations above, the proposal is 
considered acceptable and approval is recommended.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of conditions and deal with any other issues that arise, provided that they are not 
substantive. 
 

11.0 
11.1 
 
 
 
 
11.2 
 
 
 
 
11.3 
 
 
 
 
11.4 
 
 
 
 
 
11.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conditions 
The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the date of this 
permission.  
 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
The change of use hereby approved shall relates to the ground floor of the site and as 
shown on the approved plans: 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the extent of the permission. 
 
A minimum of 12 No. cycle parking spaces and stands shall be provided and permanently 
retained within the development for use by staff and visitors to the development.    
 
Reason:  to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport for development users. 
 
The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved Event 
Management Plan dated December 2023 and published on the Planning Portal on 24 
January 2024.  
  
Reason:  in the interests of road safety and the convenience of road users.  
 
The development hereby permitted shall operate in accordance with the approved Travel 
Plan, including the Service Management Plan dated December 2023 and published on the 
Planning Portal on 24 January 2024.  The Site Operator will offer access to the Translink 
iLink Initiative and the Bike2Work Initiative or equivalent measures agreed by DfI Roads.  
 
Reason:  To encourage the use of alternative modes of transport to the private car in 
accordance with the Transportation Principles. 
 

 
  

Page 180



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 9 of 11 

 

ANNEX 
 

Date Valid   19 January 2024 

Date First Advertised  2 February 2024 

Date Last Advertised 2 February 2024 
 

Details of Neighbour Notification (all addresses) 
The Owner/Occupier,  
1-21 ,Little Donegall Street 
Belfast 
BT1 2JD    
 
The Owner/Occupier          
95-97 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2AH  
 
The Owner/Occupier         
DONEGALL STREET CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH  
DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2FJ 
 
The Owner/Occupier        
GROUND & 1ST FLOORS 
95-97 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2AH  
  
The Owner/Occupier        
METROPOL HOUSE 
2-10 YORK STREET 
BELFAST 
BT15 1AQ 
 
The Owner/Occupier      
10 UNION STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JF 
  
The Owner/Occupier       
10A UNION STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JF 
 
 

Page 181



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 10 of 11 

The Owner/Occupier        
12-14 UNION STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JF  
  
The Owner/Occupier      
1ST FLOOR 
98-102 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2GW  
 
The Owner/Occupier        
2ND FLOOR 
98-102 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2GW 
 
The Owner/Occupier        
31A LITTLE DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JD 
  
The Owner/Occupier        
33 LITTLE DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JD  
 
The Owner/Occupier        
35 LITTLE DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JD 
 
The Owner/Occupier      
4 UNION STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JF 
 
The Owner/Occupier          
6-8 UNION STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2J 
 
The Owner/Occupier          
96 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 
BT1 2GW 
 
The Owner/Occupier         
98-102 DONEGALL STREET 
BELFAST 

Page 182



Application ID: LA04/2024/0054/F 

 

Page 11 of 11 

BT1 2GW 
         
OFFICES 1ST AND PART 2ND FLOOR 
2-14 LITTLE DONEGALL STREET 
TOWN PARKS 
BELFAST 
BT1 2JD 
          
CENTRAL LIBRARY ROYAL AVENUE 
TOWN PARKS 
BELFAST 
BT1 1EA 
 
Academy Restaurant         
University of Ulster  
York Street  
Belfast  
BT15 1ED  
  
University of Ulster         
York Street 
Belfast 
BT15 1ED          
 

 
 
 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Officer Report 
Committee Application 

 

Summary  

Application ID: LA04/2023/3758/F Committee Date: Tuesday 19th March 2024 

Proposal:  
New Pedestrian Footbridge and replacement 
steps to comply with DDA requirements. 

Location: 
Queen Mary Gardens 
40m North of 260 Antrim Road,  
Belfast, 
BT15 2AT 

Recommendation:  Approve 

Referral Route: Paragraph 3.8.5 (c) and (d) of the Scheme of 
Delegation (application made by the Council 
and which the Council has an estate) 

Applicant Name and Address: 
Belfast City Council, 
9-21 Adelaide Street,   
Belfast,   
BT2 8DJ 

Agent Name and Address: 
Paul McAlister Architects Ltd 
The Barn Studio,  
64A Drumnacanvy Road, 
Portadown 
BT63 5LY 

Executive Summary:  
The application seeks full planning permission for the redevelopment of the pedestrian footbridge 
within Queen Mary Gardens adjacent Waterworks Swan Lake. This site is adjacent the Antrim 
Road in North Belfast. Associated site works include ground levels being graded to suit the new 
bride and supplementary planting provided. New DDA compliant steps from the park entrance will 
also be provided. 
 
The site falls under draft Belfast Metropolitan Area plan 2015 - designation BT 124 Local 
Landscape Policy Area: Waterworks.  
 
The key issues to be considered are: 

- Scale, Massing & Design 

- Impact on Landscape Character & Historic Buildings / Assets  

- Impact on amenity  
 
 
5 consultations were required, DFI Rivers, DFI Roads, Historic Environment Division, LDP 
Environment & Community and BCC Landscape Planning & Development. All consultees are 
content subject to planning conditions and informatives being included. No representations were 
received from third parties including neighbours. 
 
Recommendation 
Having regard to the development plan and other material considerations, the proposal is 
considered acceptable. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
Delegated authority is sought for the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the 
wording of conditions, and deal with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the decision, 
provided that they are not substantive. 

Page 185

Agenda Item 8h



 
Site Location Plan:  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Existing & Proposed Site Plans 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 186



Proposed Elevations  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

1.0 Characteristics of the Site and Area 
 
The application site is located within the grounds of the Queen Mary Gardens adjacent to 
the Antrim Road in North Belfast. The site is a pedestrian footbridge which extends over a 
watercourse within the a section of the park. The park comprises mature trees and 
vegetation and manicured landscaping. Belfast City Council maintain and own the park. 
 

2.0 Description of Proposal 
 
New Pedestrian Footbridge and replacement steps to comply with DDA requirements. 
 

3.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.0 

Planning Assessment of Policy and Other Material Considerations 
 
Section 45(1) of the Planning Act Northern Ireland 2011 requires regard to be had to the 
development plan insofar as it is material to the application and to any other material 
considerations. Section 6(4) states that the determination must be made in accordance with 
the developmental plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Policy Framework 

Page 187



4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Belfast Local Development Plan (LDP), when fully completed, will replace the Belfast 

Urban Area Plan 2001 as the statutory Development Plan for the city. The Belfast LDP will 

comprise two parts. Part 1 is the Plan Strategy, which contains strategic and operational 

policies and was adopted on 02 May 2023. Part 2 is the Local Policies Plan, which will 

provide the zonings and proposals maps for Belfast and has not yet been published. The 

zonings and proposals maps in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 remain part of the 

statutory local development plan until the Local Policies Plan is adopted. 

The site is designated within BT 124 Waterworks, which is zoned as a Local Landscape 

Policy Area. This footbridge is most accessed via the gates adjacent to 260 Antrim Road 

which is also a Grade B1 Listed Building 

Scale, Massing, Design 
 
Policy DES1 within the LDP states that planning permission will be granted for new 
development that is of a high quality, sustainable design that makes a positive contribution 
to placemaking. The scale and massing of the proposal is deemed sympathetic to the 
location and immediate surrounding area. The pedestrian footbridge will be constructed of 
red brick to match with the existing pillars at the park. Reconstituted concrete decorative 
pillar caps will be used to reflect the existing park pillars. The bridge itself will be constructed 
of steel and decorative steel handrails will be painted black to match the existing park 
railings and features. There will be no change to the existing waterway. The proposed new 
steps within the park (16 No.) will be raised and finished in natural stone all to the required 
DDA (Disability Discrimination Act) standard. This proposal is compliant with the policy 
criteria detailed in DES1 of the LDP and paragraphs 4.23 – 4.40 of the SPPS.  
 
Impact on Landscape Character & Historic Buildings / Assets  
 
Belfast City Council Landscape Planning and Development unit have been consulted on 
this development proposal and have no objections to the design in terms of scale, 
accessibility, and architectural references to the historic parkland setting.  
 
Historic Environment Division (HED) have been consulted as part of this proposal. The site 
is near the Gate lodge at 260 Antrim Road (HB26/44/027A, Grade B1) and the Park Gate 
screen, piers, gates and railings to the Waterworks, Antrim Road, Belfast (HB26/44/027B, 
Grade B2), both of which are listed buildings of special architectural or historic interest, 
protected by Section 80 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011. HED advised that the proposal 
satisfies the requirements of SPPS para 6.12 and Policy BH1 of Belfast Local Development 
Plan, Plan Strategy 2035 on the basis the new vegetation implemented would not obscure 
views of the Gate Lodge from across the park. HED are content subject to a pre-
commencement condition regarding the proposed brick material prior to its construction if 
permission were to be granted.  
 
Impact on Amenity  
 
The application has been advertised in the local press and relevant neighbours have been 
notified of the proposed works. There have been no comments received to the Council.  
The pedestrian footbridge is located approximately 35m from the gated entrance to the 
park. It is set down and screened from public views from the Antrim Road, which is also 
broken up with railings and vegetation at its boundary. There is no associated negative 
visual impact deemed to arise from this proposal. 
 

Page 188



7.2 
 
 
 
 
8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 

The design will not adversely impact on visual amenity, taking account of the consultation 
responses as discussed above. There are no adverse impacts on the amenity of existing 
properties in terms of dominance, overlooking or related matters due to the separation 
distances and is deemed acceptable.  
 
Consultation Responses  
 
The Department for Infrastructure Rivers Agency have considered the supporting 
information including a Flood Risk Assessment and are content subject to conditions and 
informatives.  
 
DFI Roads have been consulted and have no objections to the proposal, subject to 
informatives. Belfast City Council Local Development Plan (Environment & Communities) 
team have been consulted and advised is not considered to raise any significant LDP policy 
issues in relation to the Waterworks Local Landscape Policy Area designation (Policy 
LC1C) or the submitted climate change statement (Policies ENV2/3). The proposal is 
therefore considered compliant with these polices and in relation to climate change.  
 

10.0 Summary of Recommendation:    

It is recommended that planning permission be granted.  Delegated authority is sought for 

the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions, and deal 

with any other matters that arise prior to issuing the decision, provided that they are not 

substantive. 

11.0 Draft Conditions:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun within five years from the 
date of this permission.  

 
Reason: As required by Section 61 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 

2. No development hereby permitted shall commence until a physical sample of 
materials and a construction method statement have first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council. The samples shall be provided on site 
and made available for inspection by the Council for the duration of the 
construction works and the construction method statement shall be carried out 
as agreed. 
 
Reason: to ensure the materials and salvaged brick proposed matches the 
colour, texture and bond of the existing brick piers along the boundary with the 
Antrim Road, in keeping with the character and appearance of the setting to 
the listed assets.  
 

3. All external facing materials shall be carried out as specified on the approved 
plans. 

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area. 

 

 

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Provision: 38 Geary Road
	Plan

	3b Provision: 219 Cregagh Road
	Plan

	4 Planning Appeals Notified
	5 Planning Decisions Issued
	6a Delegation of Local Applications with NI Water Objections
	APPENDIX 1

	6b DFI Consultation Paper - Potential update to SPPS respect of Climate Change Policy
	7a LA04/2017/1991/F - Construction of a new 5 storey office development for science and I.T. based business and associated car parking and public realm works. - Land adjacent to Concourse Buildings, Queens Road
	7c LA04/2023/4021/F - Change of use from dwelling to 5 Bed House in Multiple Occupation (amended description). - 166 Upper Newtownards Road
	7d LA04/2022/1384/F - Residential development of 10 no. apartments within a single building, including demolition of existing structures, car parking and relocation of existing access, and all other associated siteworks. - Lands at 12 Inverary Avenue
	7e LA04/2023/3481/F - Change of use from dwelling to 6 bed HMO (sui generis) - 272 Limestone Road
	7f LA04/2023/3319/F - Change of use from dwelling to 6 Bed House in Multiple Occupation (amended description). - 27 Ponsonby Avenue
	8b LA04/2023/3778/F - Demolition of existing Russell Court buildings and re development of existing surface car park to accommodate two new buildings (five storey and four storey) for the QUB Institute of Research Excellence for Advanced Clinical Healthcare (iREACH Health), including landscaping, parking, and servicing. - 38-52 Lisburn Road
	8d LA04/2023/3856/F - Short duration Geothermal Ground Source Heating Demonstration Project comprising shallow drilling, testing and completion of 5 no. exploratory boreholes, associated temporary access, compound areas and mobile public information kiosk. - Lands at Stormont Estate Upper Newtownards Road
	8f LA04/2023/3076/F - Single storey extension to the Gael-Ionad Mhic Goill building, to provide additional common room space and classroom facilities, reception area, a multi-purpose room and heritage cafe space, with associated toilets and ancillary spaces in addition. An external outdoor performance area and landscaped areas will be provided in addition to car parking areas and bin stores. - Glór na Móna, Gaelionad Mhic Goill 4 Whiterock Close
	8g LA04/2024/0054/F - Change of use to conference centre facility with associated use as events/entertainment space - Former Print Hall,Ground Floor, 124-144 Royal Avenue
	8h LA04/2023/3758/F - New Pedestrian Footbridge and replacement steps to comply with DDA requirements. - Waterworks, 40m North of 260 Antrim Road

